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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risk, assumptions and uncertainties, such as statements of our plans, objectives, expectations, intentions and
forecasts.. These forward-looking statements are generally identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms “anticipate,” “believe,”
“confident,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “likely,” “may,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “should,” “target,”
“will,” “would” and, in each case, their negative or other various or comparable terminology. Our actual results and the timing of selected events could differ
materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements as a result of several factors, including those set forth under the section of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K titled Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These statements involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause our results to vary from
expectations include, but are not limited to: the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and any future outbreaks of contagious diseases on our business; our ability to
design and execute our business strategy; changes in consumer preferences and buying patterns; our ability to compete in our markets; the occurrence of
unfavorable publicity; risks associated with long-term non-cancellable leases for our centers; our ability to retain key managers; risks associated with our
substantial indebtedness and limitations on future sources of liquidity; our ability to carry out our expansion plans; our continued ability to produce content,
build infrastructure and market Professional Bowlers Association (“PBA”) events; our ability to successfully defend litigation brought against us; our ability to
adequately obtain, maintain, protect and enforce our intellectual property and proprietary rights and claims of intellectual property and proprietary right
infringement, misappropriation or other violation by competitors and third parties; failure to hire and retain qualified employees and personnel; the cost and
availability of commodities and other products we need to operate our business; cybersecurity breaches, cyber-attacks and other interruptions to our and our
third-party service providers’ technological and physical infrastructures; catastrophic events, including war, terrorism and other conflicts; public health issues
or natural catastrophes and accidents; changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related private sector initiatives; fluctuations in our operating results; economic
conditions, including the impact of increasing interest rates, inflation and recession; and other risks, uncertainties and factors set forth in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, including those set forth under Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors.” These forward-looking statements reflect our views with respect to future events as
of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or review publicly any forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We anticipate that subsequent events and
developments will cause our views to change. You should read this Annual Report on Form 10-K completely and with the understanding that our actual future
results may be materially different from what we expect. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, merger,
dispositions, joint ventures or investments we may undertake. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements.
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RISK FACTOR SUMMARY

Our business is subject to a number of risks, including risks that may prevent us from achieving our business objectives or may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects. Risks that we deem material are described below. These risks include, but are not
limited to, the following:

« the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our business, including any additional future government-mandated and voluntary shutdowns and operating
restrictions on our business and the level of customer demand,

« lack of demand for our services;

* changes in economic and business conditions;

* inability to sustain further growth in our business;

« failure to meet customer expectations;

 changing patterns in consumer spending and preferences;

» competition that we face;

* inability to maintain our brand identity and our reputation;

* inability to obtain, maintain and defend intellectual property rights;

* inability to manage changes in commodity prices and other product costs;

« risks associated with our non-cancelable, long-term operating leases that account for a significant portion of our operating expenses;

* cybersecurity breaches and data leaks, and our dependence on information technology systems;

« the impact of seasonality, recession, weather, inflation, acts of violence or terrorism and other factors outside our control

These are not the only risks and uncertainties the Company faces, and you should carefully review and consider the full discussion of the Company’s
risk factors in the section titled Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors,” together with the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

Part1
Item 1. Business

Overview

We are the world’s largest operator of bowling entertainment centers. Since the acquisition of the original Bowlmor Lanes location in 1997 in Greenwich
Village, New York City, our journey has continued to revolutionize bowling entertainment. We operate traditional bowling centers and more upscale
entertainment concepts with lounge seating, arcades, enhanced food and beverage offerings, and more robust customer service for individuals and group
events, as well as hosting and overseeing professional and non-professional bowling tournaments and related broadcasting. Our bowling business is our only
reporting segment. All amounts are in thousands, except share, per share or as otherwise specifically noted.

Competitive Strengths

We believe our key competitive strengths include our highly loyal customers, strong branding, diverse product offerings, excellent and well-diversified
geographic locations, proven business model and experienced management team, all of which contribute to our solid track record of sustainable growth and
generating positive earnings.

Loyal Customers: With the over 26-million customers (pre-pandemic) we serve each year, we are well-positioned in highly attractive markets across
North America to capitalize on the very large addressable markets for bowling and out-of-home entertainment. With our strong market position, we are able to
leverage our competitive strengths to grow our business by, among other things, differentiating our bowling, dining and amusement video game entertainment
offerings for our retail, league and group event customers. Retail consists of our walk-in customers and is by far our largest and most diverse audience. Leagues
are a large and stable source of recurring revenue and group events, such as birthday parties and corporate events, are a consistent revenue stream with
significant growth potential.
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Strong Branding: Our centers operate under different brand names and our strong branding plays an integral role in the success of our business. The
Bowlero branded centers offer a more upscale entertainment concept with lounge seating, enhanced food and beverage offerings, and a more robust customer
service for individual and group events. The AMF centers are traditional bowling centers in an updated format.

Diverse Product Offerings: ~ We attribute our success to our many competitive strengths and our ongoing efforts to grow and revitalize all aspects of
the bowling industry. We are well positioned in the marketplace with our well-located centers, combined with our strong branding and highly loyal customer
base. We have made significant investments over the years in upgrading and converting our centers and training our staff to provide our guests with world-class
customer experiences. Our gaming operations pioneer in-center gaming, apps and new technology to bring gaming into our centers and beyond our bowling
centers. Our food and beverage offerings are a key element to the overall experience at our centers for which we are well positioned for the price, quality and
value. Our iconic branding extends to media, as we own, operate and produce all of the content for the Professional Bowlers Association (PBA Tour). As the
leader in bowling entertainment, the PBA is a strategic part of our operations, as the PBA has thousands of members and millions of fans across the globe. The
PBA is the major sanctioning body for the sport of professional ten-pin bowling in the United States, a membership organization for professional bowlers, and
oversees professional bowling tournaments and related broadcasting.

Proven Business Model: ~Bowlero has a lengthy history since our founding in 1997. For the five-year period from March 29, 2015 to March 29, 2020,
which was the last five-year fiscal period which was not affected by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, our revenue increased from $544,200 to $657,100.
However, when including COVID-19 pandemic-impacted periods, for the five-year period beginning July 1, 2018 and ended July 3, 2022, our revenue
increased from $619,100 to $911,705. We remain focused on creating long-term shareholder value by driving organic growth through conversions and
upgrading of centers to more upscale entertainment concepts offering a broader range of offerings, as well as through the opening of new centers. Additionally,
we have implemented several initiatives, including self-service kiosks, robotic process automation, online reservations and event sales, as well as other
technologies to optimize our resources so as to operate with a leaner staffing model, further improving margins and operating cash flows.

A key part of our growth strategy is center acquisitions, as we continually evaluate potential acquisitions that strategically fit within our overall growth
strategy. We also have an established blueprint for in-market acquisitions, including entering markets through direct purchases or through leasing arrangements.
To that end, we entered into an agreement on May 27, 2021 to acquire Bowl America Incorporated (NYSE American: BWL-A) which operated 17 bowling
centers in Florida, Virginia and Maryland. We completed this acquisition on August 16, 2021, as well as a number of other acquisitions in various markets
throughout the year as detailed in Note 3 - Business Combinations and Acquisitions to our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report in
Form 10-K.

Proven Management Team: Our executive management team is well proven and highly experienced with a long track record of driving positive
results for increased shareholder value and world-class experiences for our guests. Our founder continues to drive the entrepreneurial culture which underpins
our ongoing success. Our management team is committed to constantly improving our world-class company. We also have a team of skilled, loyal and
committed managers and other associates at each of our centers. We have developed and maintain as a key initiative the training of our center managers and
associates to attract and retain talent, create high-performance center leadership teams and maintain a culture to build upon our inspiring purpose, vision and
values.

Our Industry

We operate in the leisure industry, which includes entertainment, restaurants and amusements. The leisure industry is comprised of a large number of
venues ranging from small to large, heavily themed destinations. We are the world’s largest owner and operator of bowling centers and we are approximately
six times larger than the next largest operator of U.S. based bowling centers. The out-of-home entertainment market includes concepts that are broad family
entertainment centers, such as amusement parks, movie theaters, sporting events, sports activity centers and arcades. The addressable market in the United
States is estimated to be $4,000,000 (pre-COVID-19 pandemic) for bowling and over $100,000,000 for the out-of-home entertainment. We believe we are well-
positioned with our competitive advantages to grow our revenues and profitability, especially in light of the secular shift in consumer spending from products
to experiential spending.

COVID-19

We believe our bowling centers provide ideal venues for entertainment, even with the COVID-19 pandemic and its variants, when considering social
distancing and other such measures. Our centers are large open buildings with the
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structural separation of lanes and ventilation systems, which became apparent with the strong rebound in our business as we were allowed to return to operation
after the COVID-19 mandated closures.

E-commerce or online shopping continues to increase and negatively impact consumer traffic at traditional “brick and mortar” retail sites located in
regional malls, lifestyle centers, big box shopping centers and entertainment centers. Vacancies have also increased due to the COVID-19 pandemic. A decline
in development or closures of businesses in these settings or a decline in visitors to retail areas near our centers could negatively affect our sales. However,
those vacancies can also create opportunities for us to construct new centers on favorable terms. The impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business are
discussed in further detail throughout this Business section, “Item 1 A. Risk Factors” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” of this report.

Foreign Operations

We currently operate five centers in Mexico and two in Canada. Our Mexican and Canadian centers, combined, represented approximately $8,800 and
$1,200 in revenues for the fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively, and have combined net assets of $23,000 and $24,400 as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021,
respectively. Our foreign operations are subject to various risks of conducting businesses in foreign countries, including changes in foreign currencies, laws,
regulations, and economic and political stability. See “Risk Factors” for more information regarding the risks.

Competition

The out-of-home entertainment industries are highly competitive, with a number of major national and regional chains operating in each of these spaces.
In this regard, we compete for customers on the basis of (a) our name recognition; (b) the price, quality, variety and perceived value of our food and
entertainment offerings; (c) the quality of our customer service; and (d) the convenience and attractiveness of our facilities. Although there are other concepts
that presently utilize the combined family dining and entertainment format, these competitors primarily operate on a regional or market-by-market basis. To a
lesser extent, we also compete directly and/or indirectly with other dining and entertainment formats, including full-service and quick-service restaurants
appealing to families with young children, the quick service pizza segment, movie theaters, themed amusement attractions and other entertainment facilities.

We believe that our principal competitive strengths consist of the quality, variety and unique nature of our entertainment offerings, our established and
well recognized brand, the quality and value of the food and service we provide, the location and attractiveness of our centers and their cleanliness, and the
whole family fun we offer our guests.

Intellectual Property

We own various trademarks, used in connection with our business, which have been registered with the appropriate patent and trademark offices. The
duration of such trademarks is unlimited, subject to continued use and renewal. To further protect our brand, we have registered internet domain names,
including www.bowlero.com. We believe that we hold the necessary rights for protection of the trademarks considered essential to conduct our business. We
believe our trade name and our ownership of trademarks are an important competitive advantage, and we actively seek to protect our interests in such property.

Seasonality

Our operating results fluctuate seasonally. We typically generate our highest sales volumes during the third quarter of each fiscal year due to the timing
of leagues, holidays and changing weather conditions. School operating schedules, holidays and weather conditions may also affect our sales volumes in some
operating regions differently than others. Because of the seasonality of our business, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may
be achieved for our full fiscal year.

Government Regulation

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the development and operation of our centers. For a discussion of
government regulation risks to our business, see “Risk Factors.”

Human Capital Resources
Environmental, Social, Governance (“ESG”) Oversight

We are committed to advancing a purpose-led vision and fostering a culture that encourages our employees to enhance our business and the communities
in which we operate. We endeavor to integrate ESG practices that create
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sustainable economic value to our employees, stockholders, communities, and other stakeholders. Our dedicated environmental and community stewardship is
an integral component of our delivering excellence, driving strategic innovation, and growing long-term stockholder value. We believe that our impact on the
environment, how we manage our relationships with employees, suppliers, guests and the communities where we operate, and the accountability of our
leadership to our stockholders are all critically important to our business. We have undertaken a number of initiatives to further these goals.

From an environmental perspective, we have implemented and plan to continue to implement policies and practices with the goal of supporting the
continued reduction of energy consumption (thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions), water, and waste production across the portfolio. Initiatives we have
taken include the installation of solar panels on the roofs of our bowling centers, electric vehicle charging stations in the parking lots of our bowling centers and
LED lighting. Additionally, we are continuing to research solar and alternative energy options to further reduce our consumption and carbon footprint. We are
committed to maintaining sustainable operations and believe that our long-term sustainability goals will provide positive financial and environmental outcomes
for shareholders, associates and the communities in which we invest.

Oversight of Human Capital Management

As of July 3, 2022, we employed approximately 9,390 employees, including approximately 8,938 in the operation of our centers and approximately 452
at the corporate level. We had 2,965 full-time employees and 6,422 part-time employees, of whom 55 were based in Canada and 127 in Mexico. We had 71
employees who are members of a union. We believe that our employee relations are satisfactory, and we have not experienced any work stoppages at any of our
centers. Each center typically employs a center General Manager, two operation managers, a facilities manager who oversees the maintenance of the facility
and bowling equipment, and approximately 20 to 30 associates to handle food and beverage preparation, customer service and maintenance. Our staffing
requirements are seasonal, and the number of people we employ at our stores will fluctuate throughout the year.

Our reputation for exceptional quality relies on having exceptional people who support our guest-focused mission in our bowling centers, so we ensure
that our team is rewarded, engaged and developed to build fulfilling careers. We provide competitive associate wages that are appropriate to employee
positions, skill levels, experience, knowledge and geographic location. In the United States, we offer our associates a wide array of health, and welfare benefits,
which we believe are competitive relative to others in our industry. We benchmark our benefits plan annually to ensure our associate value proposition remains
competitive and attractive to new talent. In our operations in Canada and Mexico, we offer benefits that may vary from those offered to our U.S. associates due
to customary local practices and statutory requirements. In all locations, we provide time off benefits, company-paid holidays, recognition programs and career
development opportunities.

Workforce

Diversity, equality, inclusion and belonging are fundamental principles in our culture. We strive to create a workplace where all our associates can thrive
and to employ a workforce that represents the communities where we operate and the customers we serve. We are committed to fostering, cultivating,
celebrating and preserving a culture of diversity, equality, inclusion and belonging among our associates, customers and suppliers. We embrace our associates’
differences in age, color, disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability,
political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, caste, veteran status, and other characteristics that make our associates unique.
Bowlero’s diversity initiatives include, but are not limited to, our practices and policies on recruitment and selection; compensation and benefits; professional
development and training; promotions; transfers; social and recreational programs; terminations; and the ongoing development of a work environment that
encourages and enforces respectful communication, teamwork, work/life balance and engaging in community efforts that promote a greater understanding and
respect for the principles of diversity.
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Our workforce diversity is summarized in the table below:

Male Not Declared Total

American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.4 % 0.3 % — % 0.7 %
Asian 1.3% 1.8% —% 3.1 %
Black or African-American 9.4 % 11.2% 0.1 % 20.7 %
Hispanic or Latino 10.1 % 10.5 % 0.2 % 20.8 %
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Island 0.2 % 0.2 % — % 0.4 %
Not Declared 1.1% 1.2 % 0.5 % 2.8%
Two or more Races 22 % 22 % 0.1 % 4.5%
Unknown 0.1 % — % — % 0.1 %
White 20.4 % 25.9 % 0.6 % 46.9 %

Total 452 % 533 % 1.5% 100.0 %

Business Combination

On December 15, 2021, Isos Acquisition Corporation, a Cayman Islands exempted company, (“Isos”) consummated its previously announced
acquisition of Bowlero Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Old Bowlero”), pursuant to the business combination agreement, dated as of July 1, 2021, as amended
(the “Business Combination Agreement”), between Old Bowlero and Isos. In connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the
Business Combination Agreement, Isos was redomiciled as a Delaware corporation and Old Bowlero was merged with and into Isos, with Isos surviving the
merger (the “Business Combination”). In addition, in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, “Isos Acquisition Corporation” was

renamed “Bowlero Corp.”
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the matters addressed under the heading “Forward-
Looking Statements,” you should carefully consider the following risk factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K before investing in our securities. The risk
factors described below disclose both material and are not intended to be exhaustive and are not the only risks facing us. Additional risks not currently known
to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in
future periods or are not identified because they are generally common to businesses.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted and is expected to continue to disrupt our business to some extent, which has had a material adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition and could continue for an extended period of time. Future outbreaks of contagious diseases or other
adverse public health developments in the United States or worldwide could have similar impacts on our business.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has had a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, liquidity and financial condition and the same could
continue for an extended period of time. Beginning in 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacted the economy in general, as well as our business
directly, and continues to negatively affect our business. These effects include, but are not limited to:

. the government-mandated and voluntary shutdowns, and operating restrictions on our business;

. the level of customer demand following re-opening;

. the ability to maintain a functioning workforce;

. the ability to maintain adequate supplies and resources;

. our ability to access funding sources in the future;

. the economic impact of COVID-19 and related disruptions on the communities we serve; and

. management’s ability to estimate future performance of our business and impact on our business.

Prior to the closure of our centers due to COVID-19, the Company consistently grew revenues; however, the closure of our centers due to COVID-19
prohibited the Company from generating sales and cash flows. Consequently, the Company incurred significant losses and consumed cash, and in order to
increase liquidity, the Company incurred additional debt. Net losses in fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were $29,934 and $126,461, respectively, which were driven
by costs associated with the Business Combination in 2022 and the closure of our centers in 2021. In 2021, Net proceeds from financing activities from long-
term debt and revolver directly utilized to support our liquidity were $34,805.

If we are unable to successfully design and execute our business strategy plan, including growing comparable center sales, our revenues and profitability
may be adversely affected.

Our ability to increase revenues and profitability is dependent on executing effective business strategies. If we are delayed or unsuccessful in executing
our strategies or if our strategies do not yield desired results, our business, financial condition and results of operations may suffer. Our ability to meet our
business strategy plan is dependent upon, among other things, our ability to:

. increase gross sales and operating profits at existing centers with bowling, food, beverage, game and entertainment options desired by our guests;
. evolve our marketing and branding strategies to continue to appeal to our guests;

. innovate and implement new initiatives to provide a unique guest experience;

. identify adequate sources of capital to fund and finance strategic initiatives;

. grow and expand operations;

. identify new opportunities to improve customer reach;

. maintain a talented workforce responsive to customer needs and operational demands; and
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. identify, implement and maintain cost-reducing strategies to scale operations.

Changes in consumer preferences and buying patterns could negatively affect our results of operations.

Visiting our centers is a discretionary purchase for consumers; therefore, our business is susceptible to economic slowdowns and recessions. We are
dependent in particular upon discretionary spending by consumers living in the communities in which our centers are located. A significant weakening in the
local economies of these geographic areas, or any of the areas in which our centers are located, may cause consumers to curtail discretionary spending, which
in turn could reduce our centers’ sales and have an adverse effect on our business and our results of operations. Our centers are sometimes located near high
density retail areas such as regional malls, lifestyle centers, big box shopping centers and entertainment centers. We depend on a high volume of visitors at
these locations to attract guests to our centers. As demographic and economic patterns change, current centers may or may not continue to be attractive or
profitable.

E-commerce or online shopping continues to increase and negatively impact consumer traffic at traditional “brick and mortar” retail sites located in
regional malls, lifestyle centers, big box shopping centers and entertainment centers, and a decline in development or closures of businesses in these settings or
a decline in visitors to retail areas near our centers could negatively affect our sales.

Additionally, consumers continually change their dietary preferences. As a result, we are challenged to evolve our food and beverage menu offerings to
appeal to these changing customer preferences, while maintaining our brand character and retaining popular menu items. New information or changes in
dietary, nutritional, allergen or health guidelines or environmental or sustainability concerns, whether issued by governmental agencies, academic studies,
advocacy organizations or similar groups, may cause some groups of consumers to select foods other than those that are offered by our centers. It is also
unclear currently if the COVID-19 pandemic may have a lasting impact on consumer demand. If we fail to anticipate changing trends or other consumer
preferences, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely affected.

Advances in technologies or certain changes in consumer behavior driven by such technologies could have a negative effect on our business. Technology
and consumer offerings continue to develop, and we expect new or enhanced technologies and consumer offerings will be available in the future. As part of our
marketing efforts, we use a variety of digital platforms including search engines, mobile, online videos and social media platforms such as Facebook®,
Twitter® and Instagram® to attract and retain guests. We also test new technology platforms to improve our level of digital engagement with our guests and
employees to help strengthen our marketing and related consumer analytics capabilities. These initiatives may not prove to be successful and may result in
expenses incurred without the benefit of higher revenues or increased engagement.

We may not be able to compete favorably in the highly competitive out-of-home and home-based entertainment markets, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

The out-of-home entertainment market is highly competitive. We compete for customers’ discretionary entertainment dollars with providers of out-of-
home entertainment, including localized attraction facilities such as other bowling centers, movie theaters, sporting events, sports activity centers, arcades and
entertainment centers, nightclubs, and restaurants as well as theme parks. Some of the entities operating these businesses are larger and have significantly
greater financial resources, a greater number of locations, have been in business longer, have greater name recognition and are better established in the markets
where our centers are located or are planned to be located. As a result, they may be able to invest greater resources than we can in attracting customers and
succeed in attracting customers who would otherwise come to our centers. We also face competition from local, regional, and national establishments that offer
similar entertainment experiences to ours that are highly competitive with respect to price, quality of service, location, ambience and type and quality of food.
In addition, we also face competition from increasingly sophisticated home-based forms of entertainment, such as internet and video gaming and home movie
streaming and delivery. Our failure to compete favorably in the competitive out-of-home and home-based entertainment markets could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Unfavorable publicity or a failure to respond effectively to adverse publicity, could harm our business.

Our brand and our reputation are among our most important assets. Our ability to attract and retain customers depends, in part, upon the external
perception of Bowlero, the quality of our facilities and our integrity. Multi-location businesses, such as ours, can be adversely affected by unfavorable publicity
resulting from food safety concerns, flu or other virus outbreaks and other public health concerns stemming from one or a limited number of our centers.
Additionally, we rely on our network of suppliers to properly handle, store, and transport our ingredients for delivery to our centers.
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Failure by our suppliers, or their suppliers, could cause our ingredients to be contaminated, which could be difficult to detect and put the safety of our food in
jeopardy.

Negative publicity may also result from crime incidents, data privacy breaches, scandals involving our employees or operational problems at our centers.
Regardless of whether the allegations or complaints are valid, unfavorable publicity related to one or more of our centers could affect public perception of the
entire brand. Even incidents at similar businesses could result in negative publicity that could indirectly harm our brand. If one or more of our centers were the
subject of unfavorable publicity and we are unable to quickly and effectively respond to such reports, our overall brand could be adversely affected, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

There has been a significant increase in the use of social media and similar platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social media websites and other forms
of Internet-based communications that allow individuals access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested persons. Consumers value readily
available information concerning goods and services that they have or plan to purchase and may act on such information without further investigation or
authentication. Many social media platforms immediately publish the content their subscribers and participants post, often without filters or checks on accuracy
of the content posted. The opportunity exists for dissemination of information, including inaccurate information, to spread quickly. Inaccurate or adverse
information concerning Bowlero may be posted on such platforms at any time. The harm may be immediate without affording us an opportunity for redress or
correction. Such platforms also may be used for dissemination of trade secret information, compromising valuable company assets. In summary, the
dissemination of information via social media and similar platforms may harm our business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations, regardless
of the information’s accuracy. The inappropriate use of social media vehicles by our guests or employees could increase our costs, lead to litigation or result in
negative publicity that could damage our reputation.

Further, if we are not effective in addressing social and environmental responsibility matters or achieving relevant sustainability goals, consumer trust in
our brand may suffer. Consumer demand for our products and our brand value could diminish significantly if any such incidents or other matters erode
consumer confidence in us or our products, which could likely result in lower revenues.

We are subject to risks associated with leasing space subject to long-term, non-cancelable leases.

Payments under our non-cancelable, long-term operating leases account for a significant portion of our operating expenses and we expect many of the
new centers we open in the future will also be leased. We often cannot cancel these leases without substantial economic penalty. If an existing or future center
is not profitable, and we decide to close it, we may nonetheless be committed to perform our obligations under the applicable lease, including, among other
things, paying the rent for the remainder of the lease term. We depend on cash flow from operations to pay our lease obligations. If our business does not
generate adequate cash flow from operating activities and sufficient funds are not otherwise available to us from borrowings under our existing credit facility,
we may not be able to service our operating lease obligations, grow our business, respond to competitive challenges or fund other liquidity and capital needs,
all of which could have a material adverse effect on us.

In addition, as each of our leases expires, we may choose not to renew, or may not be able to renew, such existing leases if the renewal rent is too high
and/or the capital investment required to maintain the centers at the leased locations is not justified by the return required on the investment. If we are not able
to renew the leases at rents that allow such centers to remain profitable as their terms expire, the number of such centers may decrease, resulting in lower
revenue from operations, or we may relocate a center, which could subject us to construction and other costs and risks, and in either case, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our financial performance and the ability to implement successfully our strategic direction could be adversely affected if we fail to retain, or effectively
respond, to a loss of key management.

Our future success is substantially supported by the contributions and abilities of senior management, including key executives and other leadership
personnel. Changes in senior management could expose us to significant changes in strategic direction and initiatives. A failure to maintain appropriate
organizational capacity and capability to support leadership excellence or a loss of key skill sets could jeopardize our ability to meet our business performance
expectations and growth targets. Although we have employment agreements with many members of senior management, we cannot prevent members of senior
management from terminating their employment with us. Losing the services of members of senior management could materially harm our business until a
suitable replacement is found, and such replacement may not have equal experience and capabilities.
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We face risks related to our substantial indebtedness and limitations on future sources of liquidity.

Our substantial indebtedness as of July 3, 2022 and our forecasted current debt service of $53,200 in minimum debt payments and estimated interest
payments in fiscal year 2023 could have important consequences to us, including:

. making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our debt, and any failure to comply with the obligations under our debt
instruments, including restrictive covenants, could result in an event of default under the agreements governing our indebtedness increasing our
vulnerability to general economic and industry conditions, including as a result of disruption caused by the global COVID-19 pandemic;

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to be dedicated to the payment of obligations with respect to our debt, thereby
reducing our ability to use our cash flow to fund our operations, lease payments, capital expenditures, selling and marketing efforts, product
development, future business opportunities and other purposes;

. exposing us to the risk of continued increased interest rates as some of our borrowings are at variable rates;

. limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product development, debt service requirements,
strategic acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes; and

. limiting our ability to plan for, or adjust to, changing market conditions and placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors
who may be less highly leveraged.

Covenants in our debt agreements restrict our business and could limit our ability to implement our business plan.

Our credit facility contains covenants that may restrict our ability to implement our business plan, finance future operations, respond to changing
business and economic conditions, secure additional financing, and engage in opportunistic transactions, such as strategic acquisitions. In addition, if we fail to
satisfy the covenants contained in the credit facility, our ability to borrow under the revolving credit loans portion of the credit facility may be restricted. The
credit facility includes covenants restricting, among other things, our ability to do the following under certain circumstances:

. incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue certain disqualified or preferred stock;

. pay dividends or make other distributions on, or redeem or purchase any equity interests or make other restricted payments;

. make certain acquisitions or investments;

. create or incur liens;

. transfer or sell assets;

. incur restrictions on the payment of dividends or other distributions from our restricted subsidiaries;

. alter the business that we conduct;

. enter into transactions with affiliates; and

. consummate a merger or consolidation or sell, assign, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all our assets.

In addition, failure to meet a leverage-based test that is applicable when our revolving credit facility, along with certain letters of credit, is at least 35%
drawn, is a default under the agreement governing our credit facilities. The leverage-based test is calculated on the basis of our Adjusted EBITDA, as defined
in the agreement governing our credit facilities.

Events beyond our control, including the impact of COVID-19, may affect our ability to comply with our covenants, even after the cessation of the
second amendment suspension period. Additionally, our master lease agreements include cross-default provisions with the agreement governing our credit
facilities. If we default under the credit facility because of a covenant breach or otherwise, all outstanding amounts thereunder could become immediately due
and payable. We cannot assure you that we will be able to comply with our covenants under the credit facility or that any covenant violations will be waived in
the future. Any violation that is not waived could result in an event of default, permitting our lenders to declare outstanding indebtedness and interest thereon
due and payable, and permitting the lenders under the revolving credit loans provided under the credit facility to suspend commitments to make any advance,
or require any
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outstanding letters of credit to be collateralized by an interest bearing cash account, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if we fail to comply with our financial or other covenants under the credit facility, we may need
additional financing to service or extinguish our indebtedness. We may not be able to obtain financing or refinancing on commercially reasonable terms, or at
all. We cannot assure you that we would have sufficient funds to repay outstanding amounts under the credit facility and any acceleration of amounts due
would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

The success of our longer-term growth strategy depends in part on our ability to open and operate new centers profitably.

Our ability to timely and efficiently open new centers on a new-construction or acquisition basis and to operate these centers profitably is dependent on
numerous factors including quality locations, acceptable lease or purchase agreements, zoning, use and other regulations, our liquidity, staffing needs and
training, permitting, customer acceptance, impact on existing centers and financial performance targets. The timing of new location openings may result in
significant fluctuations in our quarterly performance. We typically incur significant costs prior to opening for pre-opening and construction and increased labor
and operating costs for a newly opened center.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements could adversely affect our ability to distribute our media content and/or other of our goods and services,
which could adversely affect our operating results.

A portion of our profits is derived from our media content, which is distributed by cable, satellite and broadcast television networks and digital platforms
around the globe. As detailed below, we have depended on and will continue to depend on, third parties for many aspects of the operation and distribution of
PBA events. Any failure to maintain (such as due to a breach or alleged breach by either party) or renew arrangements with distributors and platforms, the
failure of distributors or platforms to continue to provide services to us or the failure to enter into new distribution opportunities on terms favorable to us could
adversely affect our financial outlook, liquidity, business and operating results. We have relationships with Fox Sports, CBS Sports and Flo Bowling, which
carry PBA events through their cable networks and streaming channels.

Many of our other goods and services, such as our merchandise and arcade games are manufactured and sold by other parties under licenses of our
intellectual property or distribution agreements. Our inability for any reason to enter into, maintain and/or renew or replace, as the case may be, these
agreements on terms favorable to us could adversely affect our financial outlook, liquidity, business and/or operating results.

We produce content, build infrastructure and market PBA events. If, for any number of reasons, we are unable to continue to develop and monetize this
content successfully, it could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Need to Attract, Retain and Replace Fans. We believe that the PBA has a passionate fan base. However, the markets for entertainment video are
intensely competitive and include many subscription, transactional and ad-supported models and vast amounts of pirated materials, all of which capture
segments of the entertainment video market. These markets have and are expected to continue to be subject to rapid changes, and new technologies and
evolving business models are developing at a fast pace. We expect this competition to continue to grow and the markets to continue to transform. Many players
that have entered this space have vastly greater financial and marketing resources than we, as well as longer operating histories, large customer bases and
strong brand recognition. These competitors may aggressively price their offerings and devote more technology and marketing resources. Certain of these
competitors have begun to bundle digital networks. Other competitors for viewers of media content include broadcast, cable and satellite television, many of
which have so-called “TV everywhere,” stand-alone streaming and/or “on demand” content, online movie and television content providers (both legal and
illegal (pirated)), and ad-supported services such as YouTube. In non-pandemic times, viewers also commit viewing dollars to theatrical films, live events or
other leisure activities. Our ability to attract and retain fans for PBA will depend in part on our ability to provide consistent high-quality content and a high
level of service that is perceived as a good value for the consumer’s entertainment dollars in the face of this intense competition. Our failure to do so could
adversely affect our business and operating results.

The adoption or modification of laws and regulations relating to our business could limit or otherwise adversely affect the manner in which we conduct our
business.

The growth and development of the market for online commerce has led to more stringent consumer protection laws, including privacy laws such as the
European Union General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) and the California Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”), imposing additional burdens on us. We
may be required to comply with new regulations or legislation or new interpretations of existing regulations or legislation. This compliance could cause us to
incur
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significant additional expense or alter our business model or could result in substantial fines, civil liability and/or harm to reputation for noncompliance. In
addition, the delivery of PBA content in international markets exposes us to multiple regulatory frameworks and societal norms, the complexity of which may
result in unintentional noncompliance which could adversely affect our business and operating results.

Our failure to continue to build and maintain our brand of entertainment could adversely affect our operating results.

We must continue to build and maintain our strong brand identity to attract and retain fans who have a number of entertainment choices. The creation,
marketing and distribution of live events, programming and films that our fans value and enjoy are at the core of our business. The production of compelling
live, televised, streamed and film content is critical to our ability to generate revenues across our media platforms and product outlets. Our ability to produce
compelling content depends on our ability to attract professional bowlers to our tournaments. Professional bowlers are independent agents and make their own
decisions on whether or not to participate in a tournament. In addition, we are dependent on advertising, sponsorship and marketing revenue from third parties
in order to be able to host tournaments. If such third parties decide to sponsor or advertise at other types of sporting events, our costs for hosting tournaments
will increase, and we may host fewer tournaments, resulting in a decrease in the amount of content that we can produce. We are also dependent on the U.S.
Bowling Congress who own rights to certain tournaments, such as the US Open and the USBC Masters. PBA partners with the U.S. Bowling Congress to
deliver televised events for tournaments owned by the U.S. Bowling Congress. Our current agreements with the U.S. Bowling Congress provide for the
delivery of televised content for such tournaments until 2023, and we may be unable to secure such rights after 2023 at attractive terms or at all. Also important
are effective consumer communications, such as marketing, customer service and public relations. The role of social media by fans and by us is an important
factor in our brand perception. If our efforts to create compelling services and goods and/or otherwise promote and maintain our brand, services and
merchandise are not successful, our ability to attract and retain fans may be adversely affected. Such a result would likely lead to a decline in our television
ratings, attendance at our live events post-pandemic, and/or otherwise impact our sales of goods and services, which would adversely affect our operating
results.

Our failure to compete effectively in a rapidly evolving media landscape could adversely affect our operating results.

The manner in which audio/media content is distributed and viewed is constantly changing, and consumers have increasing options to access
entertainment video. Changes in technology require our resources including personnel, capital and operating expenses. Conversely, technology changes have
also decreased the cost of video production and distribution for certain programmers (such as through social media), which lowers the barriers to entry and
increases the competition for viewership and revenues. While we attempt to distribute our programming across all platforms, our failure to continue to do so
effectively (including, for example, our emphasizing a distribution platform that may in time lessen in importance or become obsolete or our loss of, or other
inability to procure, carriage on an important platform) could adversely affect our operating results. If other providers of video programming address the
changes in consumer viewing habits in a manner that is better able to meet content distributor and consumer needs and expectations, our business could be
adversely affected. The number of subscribers and ratings of television networks and advertising revenues in general have been reported as being impacted by
viewers moving to alternative media content providers, a process known as “cord cutting” and “cord shaving.” Many well-funded digital companies have been
competing with the traditional television business model and, while it has been widely reported that they are paying significant amounts for media content, it is
not clear that these digital distributors will replace the importance (in terms of money paid for content, viewer penetration and other factors) of television
distribution to media content owners. Our media partners’ businesses are affected by their sale of advertising and subscriptions for their services. If they are
unable to sell advertising and/or subscriptions either with regard to PBA programming specifically (such as, by way of example and without limitation, due to a
decline in the popularity of our programming and/or brand) or all of their programming generally, it could adversely affect our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related private sector initiatives could adversely affect our businesses.

Production of video programming by independent producers is generally not directly regulated by the federal or state governments in the United States.
PBA events are on broadcast television on the Fox and CBS Networks, and we are responsible, directly or indirectly, for compliance with certain additional
FCC regulations and statutory requirements applicable to programming distributed over television broadcast stations. Any failure to remain in compliance with
these requirements could expose us to substantial costs and adverse publicity which could impact our operating results. Changes in FCC regulations, and the
ongoing reallocation of satellite spectrum for “5SG” next generation wireless broadband use, could impact the availability of satellite transmission spectrum for
video programming distribution, which could increase the transmission costs of certain of our programming and/or affect transmission quality and reliability.
The markets for programming in the United States and internationally may be substantially affected by government regulations applicable
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to, as well as social and political influences on, television stations and networks. We voluntarily designate the suitability of each of our television and PBA
programs using standard industry ratings. Domestic and foreign governmental and private-sector initiatives relating to the production and distribution of video
programming are announced from time to time. Compliance by our licensees of these initiatives and/or their noncompliance of governmental policies could
restrict our program distribution and adversely affect our levels of viewership, result in adverse publicity and/or otherwise impact our operating results.

Risks Related to Information Technology and Cybersecurity

Information technology system failures or interruptions may impact our ability to effectively operate our business.

We rely heavily on various information technology systems, including point-of-sale, kiosk and amusement operations systems in our centers, data
centers that process transactions, communication systems and various other software applications used throughout our operations. Some of these systems have
been internally developed or we rely on third-party providers and platforms for some of these information technology systems and support. Although we have
operational safeguards in place, those technology systems and solutions could become vulnerable to damage, disability, or failures due to theft, fire, power
outages, telecommunications failure or other catastrophic events. Any failure of these systems could significantly impact our operations and could make our
content unavailable or degraded. These service disruptions could be prolonged. We rely on third-party service providers for certain key elements of our
operations including credit card processing, telecommunications, utilities and delivery of video programming. Our reliance on systems operated by third parties
also present the risk faced by the third party’s business, including the operational, cybersecurity, and credit risks of those parties. If those systems were to fail or
otherwise be unavailable, and we were unable to timely recover, we could experience an interruption in our operations. Our business interruption insurance
may not cover us in the event these types of business interruptions occur.

Cybersecurity breaches or other privacy or data security incidents that expose confidential customer, personal employee or other material, confidential
information that is stored in our information systems or by third parties on our behalf may impact our business.

Many of our information technology systems (and those of our third-party business partners, whether cloud-based or hosted in proprietary servers),
including those used for point-of-sale, web and mobile platforms, mobile payment systems and administrative functions, contain personal, financial or other
information that is entrusted to us by our guests and associates. Many of our information technology systems also contain proprietary and other confidential
information related to our business, such as business plans and initiatives. A cyber incident (generally any intentional or unintentional attack that results in
unauthorized access resulting in disruption of systems, corruption of data, theft or exposure of confidential information or intellectual property) that
compromises the information of our customers or employees could result in widespread negative publicity, damage to our reputation, a loss of customers, and
disruption of our business.

The regulatory environment surrounding information security and privacy is increasingly demanding, with the frequent imposition of new and constantly
changing requirements. Compliance with these requirements can be costly and time-consuming and the costs could adversely impact our results of operations
due to necessary system changes and the development of new administrative processes. The California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018, provides a private right
of action for data breaches and requires companies that process information about California residents to make new disclosures to consumers about their data
collection, use and sharing practices and allow consumers to opt out of certain data sharing with third parties. Security breaches could also result in a violation
of applicable privacy and other laws, and subject us to private consumer, business partner or securities litigation and governmental investigations and
proceedings, any of which could result in our exposure to material civil or criminal liability. We are required to maintain the highest level of Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standard (“PCI”) compliance at our corporate office and centers. If we do not maintain the required level of PCI compliance, we could
be subject to costly fines or additional fees from the card brands that we accept or lose our ability to accept those payment cards. Additionally, an increasing
number of government and industry groups have established laws and standards for the protection of personal and health information.

Our existing cybersecurity policy includes cybersecurity techniques, tactics, and procedures, including continuous monitoring and detection programs,
network protections, annual employee training and awareness and incident response preparedness. In addition, we periodically scan our environment for any
vulnerabilities, perform penetration testing and engage third parties to assess effectiveness of our security measures. We utilize a voluntary tool to help manage
privacy risk by independently benchmarking our cybersecurity program to the NIST Cybersecurity Framework, using an independent third party, and we share
the results of our annual audit with our audit committee. Although we employ security technologies and practices and have taken other steps to try to prevent a
breach, there are no assurances that such measures will prevent or detect cybersecurity breaches, and we may nevertheless not have the resources or technical
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sophistication to prevent rapidly evolving types of cyberattacks. We maintain a separate insurance policy covering cybersecurity risks and such insurance
coverage may, subject to policy terms and conditions, cover certain aspects of cyber risks, but this policy is subject to a retention amount and may not be
applicable to a particular incident or otherwise may be insufficient to cover all our losses beyond any retention. Based on recent court rulings, there is
uncertainty as to whether traditional commercial general liability policies will be construed to cover the expenses related to cyberattacks and breaches if credit
and debit card information is stolen.

We have been and likely will continue to be, the target of cyber and other security threats. If in the future, we experience a security breach, we could
become subject to claims, lawsuits or other proceedings for purportedly fraudulent transactions arising out of the theft of credit or debit card information,
compromised security and information systems, failure of our employees to comply with applicable laws, the unauthorized acquisition or use of such
information by third parties, or other similar claims.

Our reliance on computer systems and software could expose us to material financial and reputational harm if any of those computer systems or software
were subject to any material disruption or corruption.

Our servers and those of third parties used in our business may be vulnerable to cybersecurity attacks, computer viruses (including worms, malware,
ransomware and other destructive or disruptive software or denial of service attacks), physical or electronic break-ins and similar disruptions and could
experience directed attacks intended to lead to interruptions and delays in our service and operations as well as loss, misuse, theft or release of proprietary,
confidential, sensitive or otherwise valuable company or subscriber data or information. Such a cybersecurity attack, virus, break-in, disruption or attack could
remain undetected for an extended period, could harm our business, financial condition or results of operations, be expensive to remedy, expose us to litigation
and/or damage our reputation. Our insurance may not cover expenses related to such disruptions or unauthorized access fully or at all.

Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to, or disable, degrade or sabotage, these systems and servers change frequently and often are
not recognized until launched against a target, we and the third parties used in distribution of our content may be unable to anticipate these techniques,
implement adequate preventative measures or remediate any intrusion on a timely or effective basis. Moreover, the development and maintenance of these
preventative and detective measures is costly and requires ongoing monitoring and updating as technologies change and efforts to overcome security measures
become more sophisticated. Despite the efforts of us and/or third parties, the possibility of these events occurring cannot be eliminated.

Risks Related to the Location-Based Entertainment Industry

Our success depends upon our ability to recruit and retain qualified center management and operating personnel while also controlling our labor costs.

We must continue to attract, retain, and motivate qualified management and operating personnel to maintain consistency in our service, hospitality,
quality, and atmosphere of our centers, and to also support future growth. Adequate staffing of qualified personnel is a critical factor impacting our guests’
experience in our centers. Qualified management and operating personnel are typically in high demand. Current unemployment subsidies and difficult
pandemic-related operating demands are resulting in aggressive competition for talent, wage inflation and pressure to improve benefits and workplace
conditions to remain competitive. If we are unable to attract and retain a satisfactory number of qualified management and operating personnel, labor shortages
could delay the planned openings of new centers or adversely impact our existing centers. Any such delays, material increases in employee turnover rates in
existing centers or widespread employee dissatisfaction could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Competition for
qualified employees could require us to pay higher wages, which could result in higher labor costs and could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Our revenues and operating results may fluctuate significantly due to various risks and unforeseen circumstances, including increases in costs,
seasonality, weather, acts of violence or terrorism and other factors outside our control.

Certain regions in which our centers are located have been, and may in the future be, subject to natural disasters, such as earthquakes, floods, and
hurricanes. Depending upon its magnitude, a natural disaster could severely damage a cohort of our centers, which could adversely affect our business, results
of operations or financial condition. Our corporate headquarters and our data center are located in Richmond, Virginia and our backup data facility is located in
Dallas, Texas. A natural or man-made disaster could significantly impact our ability to provide services and systems to our centers and negatively impact our
operations.
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Any act of violence at or threatened against our centers or the retail complexes in which they are located, including active shooter situations and terrorist
activities, may result in restricted access to our centers and/or closures in the short-term and, in the long term, may cause our guests and associates to avoid
visiting our centers. Any such situation could adversely impact cash flows and make it more difficult to fully staff our centers, which could materially adversely
affect our business.

Our operating results fluctuate significantly due to seasonal factors. We typically generate our highest sales volumes during the third quarter of each
fiscal year due to the timing of leagues, holidays and changing weather conditions. School operating schedules, holidays and weather conditions may also
affect our sales volumes in some operating regions differently than others. In addition, unfavorable weather conditions during the winter and spring seasons
could have a significant impact on our results.

Our operations are susceptible to the changes in cost and availability of commodities and other products, which could negatively affect our operating
results.

Our profitability depends in part on our ability to anticipate and react to changes in commodity and other product costs. Various factors beyond our
control, including adverse weather conditions, governmental regulation and monetary policy, product availability, recalls of food products, disruption of our
supplier manufacturing and distribution processes due to public health crises or pandemics, and seasonality, may affect our commodity costs or cause a
disruption in our supply chain. In an effort to mitigate some of this risk, we have multiple short-term supply contracts with a limited number of suppliers. If any
of these suppliers do not perform adequately or otherwise fail to distribute products or supplies to our centers, we may be unable to replace the suppliers in a
short period of time on acceptable terms, which could increase our costs, cause shortages of food and other items at our centers and cause us to remove certain
items from our menu. Changes in the price or availability of commodities for which we do not have short-term supply contracts could have a material adverse
effect on our profitability. Expiring contracts with our food suppliers could also result in unfavorable renewal terms and therefore increase costs associated with
these suppliers or may necessitate negotiations with other suppliers. Other than short-term supply contracts for certain food items and certain utilities contracts,
we currently do not engage in futures contracts or other financial risk management strategies with respect to potential price fluctuations in the cost of food and
other supplies. Also, the unplanned loss of a major distributor could adversely affect our business by disrupting our operations as we seek out and negotiate a
new distribution contract. If we have to pay higher prices for food or other product costs, our operating costs may increase, and, if we are unable to adjust our
purchasing practices or pass any cost increases on to our guests, our operating results could be adversely affected.

Our procurement of new games and amusement and entertainment offerings is contingent upon availability, and in some instances, our ability to obtain
licensing rights.

Our ability to continue to procure new games, amusement and entertainment offerings, and other entertainment-related equipment is important to our
business strategy. The number of suppliers from which we can purchase games, amusement offerings and other entertainment-related equipment is limited. To
the extent the number of suppliers declines, we could be subject to the risk of distribution delays, pricing pressure, lack of innovation and other associated
risks. We may not be able to anticipate and react to changing amusement offerings cost by adjusting purchasing practices or game prices, and a failure to do so
could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. In addition, any decrease in availability of new amusement offerings that appeal to guests could
lead to decreases in revenues as guests negatively react to lack of new game options.

Our ability to develop future offerings is dependent on, among other things, obtaining rights to compelling game content and developing new
amusement offerings that are accepted by our guests. There is no guarantee that additional licensing rights will be obtained by us or that our guests will accept
the future offerings that we develop. The result could be increased expenses without increased revenues putting downward pressure on our results of operations
and financial performance.

We may not be able to operate our centers or obtain/maintain licenses and permits necessary for such operation, in compliance with laws, regulations and
other requirements, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We are subject to licensing and regulation by state and local authorities relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages, health, sanitation, safety, building and
fire codes. Each center is required to obtain a license to sell alcoholic beverages on the premises from a state authority and, in certain locations, county and
municipal authorities. Typically, licenses must be renewed annually and may be revoked or suspended for cause at any time. In some states, the loss of a license
for cause with respect to one center may lead to the loss of licenses at all centers in that state and could make it more difficult to
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obtain additional licenses in that state. Alcoholic beverage control regulations relate to numerous aspects of the daily operations of each center, including
minimum age of patrons and employees, hours of operation, advertising, wholesale purchasing, inventory control and handling and storage and dispensing of
alcoholic beverages. We generally have not encountered any material difficulties or failures in obtaining and maintaining the required licenses, permits and
approvals that could impact the continuing operations of an existing center, or delay or prevent the opening of a new center. Although we do not anticipate any
material difficulties occurring in the future, the failure to receive or retain a liquor license, or any other required permit or license, in a particular location, or to
continue to qualify for, or renew licenses, could have a material adverse effect on operations and our ability to obtain such a license or permit in other locations.

We are subject to extensive laws and regulations and failure to comply with existing or new laws and regulations could adversely affect our operational
efficiencies, cost structure and talent availability.

Restrictions put in place by federal, state and local governments in response to the COVID-19 pandemic have caused operations and business at our
centers to be impaired. While many states have rescinded such restrictions, it is not certain when all restrictions will be lifted in the remaining states where such
restrictions are still in place.

We are also subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations that govern numerous aspects of our business, including the following:

. the Fair Labor Standards Act and other federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern employment practices and working conditions,
including minimum wage rates, wage and hour practices, gratuities, overtime, labor practices, various family leave mandates, discrimination and
harassment, immigration, workplace safety and other areas;

. the Americans with Disabilities Act and similar state laws that give civil rights protections to individuals with disabilities in the context of
employment, public accommodations and other areas;

. the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act as amended by the Health Care and Education Affordability Reconciliation Act of 2010
(“PPACA”) and uncertainties surrounding future changes to or replacement of our health insurance system;

. preparation, sale and labeling of food, including the federal regulations of the Food and Drug Administration, which oversees the safety of the
entire food system, including inspection and mandatory food recalls, menu labeling and nutritional content, and additional requirements in certain
states and local jurisdictions;

. environmental laws and regulations governing, among other things, discharges of pollutants into the air and water as well as the presence,
handling, release and disposal of and exposure to hazardous substances;

. liquor laws and regulations governing the service and sale of alcohol; and
. other environmental matters, such as climate change, the reduction of greenhouse gases, water consumption and animal health and welfare.

Compliance with these laws and regulations and future new laws or changes in laws or regulations that impose additional requirements can be costly.
Any failure or perceived failure to comply with these laws or regulations could result in, among other things, revocation of required license, administrative
enforcement actions, fines, civil and criminal liability, and/or closure of centers. We could also be strictly liable, without regard to fault, for certain
environmental conditions at properties we formerly owned or operated as well as at our current properties. Further, more stringent and varied requirements of
local and state governmental bodies with respect to zoning, land use and environmental factors could delay or prevent development of new centers in certain
locations.

We believe it is becoming increasingly likely that the United States federal government will significantly increase the federal minimum wage and tip
credit wage (or eliminate the tip credit wage) and require significantly more mandated benefits than what is currently required under federal law. Should this
happen, other jurisdictions that have historically mandated higher wages and greater benefits than what is required under federal law may seek to further
increase wages and mandated benefits. In addition to increasing the overall wages paid to our minimum wage and tip credit wage earners, these increases create
pressure to increase wages and other benefits paid to other associates who, in recognition of their tenure, performance, job responsibilities and other similar
considerations, historically received a rate of pay exceeding the applicable minimum wage or minimum tip credit wage. Because we employ a large workforce,
any wage increase and/or expansion of benefits mandates could have a particularly significant impact on our labor costs. Our vendors, contractors and business
partners are similarly impacted by wage and benefit cost inflation, and many have or will increase their price for goods, construction, and services in order to
offset their increasing labor costs. We may not be able to partially or fully
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offset cost increases resulting from changes in minimum wage rates by increasing bowling, menu or game prices, improving productivity, or through other
adjustments, and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. Moreover, although only a few of our employees have
been or are now represented by any unions, labor organizations may seek to represent an increasing number of our employees in the future, and if they are
successful, our payroll expenses and other labor costs may be increased in the course of collective bargaining, and/or there may be strikes or other work
disruptions that may adversely affect our business.

We face potential liability with our gift cards under the property laws of some states.

Our gift cards, which may be used to purchase bowling, food, beverages, merchandise and game play credits in our centers, may be considered stored
value cards. Certain states include gift cards under their abandoned and unclaimed property laws and require companies to remit to the state cash in an amount
equal to all or a designated portion of the unredeemed balance on the gift cards based on certain card attributes and the length of time that the cards are
inactive. To date we have not remitted any amounts relating to unredeemed gift cards to states based upon our assessment of applicable laws.

The analysis of the potential application of the abandoned and unclaimed property laws to our gift cards is complex, involving an analysis of
constitutional, statutory provisions and factual issues. In the event that one or more states change their existing abandoned and unclaimed property laws or
successfully challenge our position on the application of its abandoned and unclaimed property laws to our gift cards, our liabilities with respect to unredeemed
gift cards may be materially higher than the amounts shown in our financial statements. If we are required to materially increase the estimated liability recorded
in our financial statements with respect to unredeemed gift cards, our net income could be materially and adversely affected.

Litigation, including allegations of illegal, unfair or inconsistent employment practices, may adversely affect our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

Our business may be adversely affected by the risk of legal proceedings brought by or on behalf of our customers, employees, suppliers, shareholders,
government agencies or others through private actions, class actions, administrative proceedings, regulatory actions or other litigation. In recent years, a
number of companies have been subject to lawsuits, including class action lawsuits, alleging violations of federal and state law regarding workplace and
employment matters, discrimination and similar matters, and a number of these lawsuits have resulted in the payment of substantial damages by the defendants.
We have had from time to time and now have such lawsuits pending against us. In addition, from time to time, customers file complaints or lawsuits against us
alleging that we are responsible for some illness or injury they suffered at or after a visit to a center. We are also subject to a variety of other claims in the
ordinary course of business, including personal injury, lease, and contract claims.

We are also subject to “dram shop” statutes in certain states in which our centers are located. These statutes generally provide a person injured by an
intoxicated person the right to recover damages from an establishment that wrongfully served alcoholic beverages to the intoxicated individual. Recent
litigation against restaurant chains has resulted in significant judgments and settlements under dram shop statutes. Because these cases often seek punitive
damages, which may not be covered by insurance, such litigation could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
Regardless of whether any claims against us are valid or whether we are liable, claims may be expensive to defend and may divert time and money away from
operations and hurt our financial performance. A judgment significantly in excess of our insurance coverage or not covered by insurance could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Also, adverse publicity resulting from these allegations may materially affect our
centers and us.

Failure to adequately protect our intellectual property could harm our business.

We regard our intellectual property as having significant value and being important to our marketing efforts. We use a combination of intellectual
property rights, such as trademarks and trade secrets, to protect our brand and certain other proprietary processes and information material to our business. The
success of our business strategy depends, in part, on our continued ability to use our intellectual property rights to increase brand awareness and further develop
our branded products in both existing and new markets. If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights adequately, we may lose an important advantage in
the markets in which we compete. If third parties misappropriate or infringe on our intellectual property, the value of our image, brand and the goodwill
associated therewith may be diminished, our brand may fail to achieve and maintain market recognition, and our competitive position may be harmed, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, including our revenues. Policing unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult, and we
cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent the violation or misappropriation of such intellectual
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property rights by others. To protect our intellectual property, we may become involved in litigation, which could result in substantial expenses, divert the
attention of management and adversely affect our revenue, financial condition and results of operations.

We cannot be certain that our products and services do not and will not infringe on the intellectual property rights of others. Any such claims, regardless
of merit, could be time-consuming and expensive to litigate or settle, divert the attention of management, cause significant delays, materially disrupt the
conduct of our business and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. As a consequence of such claims, we could be
required to pay a substantial damage award, take a royalty-bearing license, discontinue the use of third-party products used within our operations and/or
rebrand our products and services.

We conduct business internationally, which exposes us to additional risks.

Our ability to successfully conduct operations in international markets is affected by many of the same risks we face in our U.S. operations, as well as
unique costs and difficulties of managing international operations. Our international operations, which accounted for approximately $8,800 in revenues for the
fiscal year 2022, expose us to certain additional risks, including:

. difficulty in staffing international operations;

. different political, economic and regulatory conditions;

. local laws and customs;

. violations of anti-bribery and anti-corruption laws, such as the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act;

. violations of economic sanctions laws, such as the regulations enforced by the U.S. Department of The Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control;

. currency fluctuations;

. limitations on our ability to enforce legal rights and remedies with third parties or partners outside the United States;

. adverse tax consequences; and

. dependence on other economies.

Fluctuations in other factors relating to international operations, such as tariffs, transportation costs and inflation are additional risks for our international
operations.

General Risk Factors

Changes in tax laws and resulting regulations could result in changes to our tax provisions and subject us to additional tax liabilities that could materially
adversely affect our financial performance.

We are subject to income, sales, use and other taxes in the United States and certain non-U.S. jurisdictions including Mexico and Canada. Changes in
applicable U.S. federal, state, local or non-U.S. tax laws and regulations, including the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”), or their interpretation and application, including the possibility of retroactive effect and changes to state tax
laws that may occur in response to the Tax Act or the CARES Act, could affect our effective income tax rate. Further, tax proposals issued recently in the
United States under the Biden administration have contained important amendments that could have a material impact on the overall tax position of U.S.
taxpayers.

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (the “OECD”), has been working on a Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Project
(“BEPS”), and issued a report in 2015, an interim report in 2018, and has issued additional guidelines and proposals that may change various aspects of the
existing framework under which our tax obligations are determined in the countries in which we do business. While this project is in an advanced stage, we
cannot predict what its outcome will be or what potential impact it may have on our tax obligations and operations. In July and October of 2021, the OECD/G-
20 Inclusive Framework on BEPS released statements outlining a political agreement on the general rules to be adopted for taxing the digital economy,
specifically with respect to nexus and profit allocation (Pillar One) and rules for a global minimum tax (Pillar Two). Further details regarding implementation
of these rules are expected to be finalized in the near future. These rules, should they be implemented via domestic legislation of countries or via international
treaties,
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could have a material impact on our effective tax rate or result in higher cash tax liabilities. There can be no assurance that our tax payments, tax credits, or
incentives will not be adversely affected by these or other initiatives.

Moreover, the final determination of any tax audits or related litigation could be materially different from our historical tax provisions and accruals.
Changes in our tax expense or an increase in our tax liabilities, whether due to changes in applicable laws and regulation, the interpretation or application
thereof, or a final determination of tax audits or litigation, could materially adversely affect our financial performance.

Our ability to use net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes may be limited in connection with the Business Combination or other ownership
changes.

Old Bowlero had incurred losses during its history. To the extent that we continue to generate taxable losses, unused losses will carry forward to offset
future taxable income, if any, until such unused losses expire, if at all. As of July 3, 2022, Old Bowlero had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $460,572. Under the Tax Act, as modified by the CARES Act, U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards generated in taxable periods
beginning after December 31, 2017, may be carried forward indefinitely, but the deductibility of such net operating loss carryforwards in taxable years
beginning after December 31, 2020, is limited to 80% of taxable income. It is uncertain if and to what extent various states will conform to the Tax Act or the
CARES Act.

In addition, Old Bowlero’s net operating loss carryforwards are subject to review and possible adjustment by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), and
state tax authorities. Under Sections 382 and 383 of the Code, Bowlero’s federal net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes may become subject
to an annual limitation in the event of certain cumulative changes in the ownership of Bowlero’s stock. An “ownership change” pursuant to Section 382 of the
Code generally occurs if one or more stockholders or groups of stockholders who own at least 5% of a company’s stock increase their ownership by more than
50 percentage points over their lowest ownership percentage within a rolling three-year period. Our ability to utilize certain net operating loss carryforwards
and other tax attributes to offset future taxable income or tax liabilities may be limited as a result of ownership changes, including potential changes in
connection with the Business Combination or other transactions. Similar rules may apply under state tax laws. It is currently estimated that $276,057 of the
Company’s NOLs are subject to limitation due to the changes in ownership that occurred in 2004 and 2017 and that $195,900 of this amount may expire
unused even if there is sufficient taxable income to absorb such NOLs. The Company has not experienced an ownership change, as defined under Section 382
and 383, since July 2017.

We have recorded a valuation allowance related to Old Bowlero’s net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of
the ultimate realization of the future benefits of those assets.

Failure of our internal control over financial reporting could harm our business and financial results.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial
reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide
absolute assurance that we would prevent or detect a misstatement of our financial statements or fraud. Any failure to maintain an effective system of internal
control over financial reporting, including such a failure or inability to provide timely reporting about the effectiveness of their controls of our third-party
service providers on whose controls we rely, could limit our ability to report our financial results accurately and timely or to detect and prevent fraud.
Historically, Bowlero has had several material weaknesses and significant accounting deficiencies, which may occur again. A significant financial reporting
failure or material weakness in internal control over financial reporting could result in substantial cost to remediate and could cause a loss of investor
confidence and decline in the market price of our stock. See “Additional Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A common stock — The obligations
associated with being a public company will involve significant expenses and will require significant resources and management attention, which may divert
from our business operations.”

We identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we fail to remediate these material weaknesses, identify additional
material weaknesses, or if we otherwise fail to establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, our ability to accurately and timely
report our financial results could be adversely affected.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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We did not design and maintain effective controls over certain financial reporting processes, including acquisition accounting, accounting for fixed
assets, and certain financial reporting disclosures. Additionally, we did not design and maintain effective controls over system access controls to establish
segregation of duties for those with roles and responsibilities for the general ledger. We continue to develop and implement a plan to remediate the material
weaknesses described above, which will include additional training of existing staff, hiring additional staff with technical accounting skills and engaging third-
party experts to assist in accounting for acquisitions and technical areas, as well as the development of more formal internal control processes and improving
information technology controls over system access.

As a public company, we will be required to comply with the SEC’s rules implementing Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which will
require management to certify financial and other information in our quarterly and annual reports and provide an annual management report on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Though we will be required to disclose changes made in our internal control over financial reporting
on a quarterly basis, we will not be required to make our first annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 until
the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC.

Additional Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A common stock

Our only significant assets are our ownership interests in our operating subsidiaries and such ownership may not be sufficient to pay dividends or
make distributions or loans to enable us to pay any dividends on our common stock or satisfy our other financial obligations.

We have no direct operations and no significant assets other than our ownership of our operating subsidiaries. We depend on our operating subsidiaries
for distributions, loans and other payments to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations, including our expenses as a publicly traded
company and to pay any dividends with respect to our common stock. The financial condition and operating requirements of our operating subsidiaries may
limit our ability to obtain cash from such subsidiaries. The earnings from, or other available assets of, Bowlero may not be sufficient to pay dividends or make
distributions or loans to enable us to pay any dividends on our common stock or satisfy our other financial obligations.

This lack of diversification may subject us to numerous economic, competitive and regulatory risks, any or all of which may have a substantial adverse
impact upon us.

The price of our Class A common stock may be volatile.

The price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate due to a variety of factors, including:

. developments involving our competitors;

. changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

. variations in our operating performance and the performance of our competitors in general;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operating results;

. publication of research reports by securities analysts about us or our competitors or our industry;

. the public’s reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

. actions by stockholders, including the sale by them of any of their securities;

. additions and departures of key personnel;

. commencement of, or involvement in, litigation involving the Company;

. changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of additional debt;
. the volume of shares of our Class A common stock available for public sale; and

. general economic and political conditions, such as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, supply chain issues, inflation, recessions, interest rates,

local and national elections, fuel prices, international currency fluctuations, corruption, political instability and acts of war or terrorism.

These market and industry factors may materially reduce the market price of our Class A common stock regardless of our operating performance.
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We do not intend to pay cash dividends for the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to finance the further development and expansion of our business and do not intend to pay cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends is at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our financial
condition, results of operations, capital requirements, restrictions contained in future agreements and financing instruments, business prospects and such other
factors as our board of directors deems relevant.

If analysts do not publish research about our business or if they publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, our stock price and trading volume could
decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that analysts publish about our business. We do not
have any control over these analysts. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research
about our business, the price of our Class A common stock could decline. If few analysts cover us, the demand for our Class A common stock could decrease
and its price and trading volume may decline. Similar results may occur if one or more of these analysts stop covering us in the future or fail to publish reports
on us regularly.

We may be subject to securities litigation, which is expensive and could divert management attention.

The market price of our Class A common stock may be volatile and, in the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their
stock have been subject to securities class action litigation. We may be the target of this type of litigation in the future. Securities litigation against us could
result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention from other business concerns, which could seriously harm our business.

Future resales of our Class A common stock may cause the market price of our securities to drop significantly, even if our business is performing well

As of September 9, 2022, Isos Acquisition Sponsor LLC (the “Sponsor”), LionTree Partners LLC (“LionTree”), A-B Parent LLC (“Atairos”) and Cobalt
Recreation LLC, which is indirectly owned by Mr. Shannon (“TS”) collectively beneficially own more than 80% of the outstanding shares of Bowlero’s
common stock (which includes both Class A common stock and Class B common stock). Although the Sponsor and LionTree are subject to a contractual lock-
up with respect to the shares held by them that will expire on December 15, 2022, neither Atairos nor TS are subject to any lock-ups and are not restricted from
selling shares of Bowlero’s common stock held by them, other than by applicable securities laws. We have also registered shares held by the Sponsor,
LionTree, Atairos and TS for sale under various registration statements and such registration statements remain available for use. As such, sales of a substantial
number of shares of Bowlero’s common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a
large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of Class A common stock.

Compliance obligations under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires substantial financial and management resources.

The standards required for a public company under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are significantly more stringent than those that were required
of Old Bowlero as a privately held company and our compliance obligations will require substantial financial and management resources. Management may
not be able to effectively and timely implement controls and procedures that adequately respond to the increased regulatory compliance and reporting
requirements that are applicable to us. If we are not able to implement the requirements of Section 404, including any additional requirements once we are no
longer an emerging growth company, in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, we may not be able to assess whether our internal controls over
financial reporting are effective, which may subject us to adverse regulatory consequences and could harm investor confidence and the market price of our
Class A common stock. Additionally, once we are no longer an emerging growth company, we will be required to comply with the independent registered
public accounting firm attestation requirement on our internal control over financial reporting.

The obligations associated with being a public company involve significant expenses and require significant resources and management attention, which
may be diverted from our business operations.

As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Exchange Act requires the filing of annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to a public company’s business and financial
condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that a public company establish and maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting. As a result, we have and will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not previously incur due to
implementation of internal controls over financial reporting as a public company and to remediate significant
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deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting. Our management team and many of our other employees have devoted and
will continue to need to devote substantial time to compliance, and may not effectively or efficiently manage our transition into a public company.

These rules and regulations have resulted and will continue to result in our incurring substantial legal and financial compliance costs and will make some
activities more time-consuming and costly. For example, these rules and regulations will likely continue to make it more difficult and more expensive for us to
obtain or maintain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher
costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be difficult for us to attract and retain qualified people to serve on our board of directors, our
board committees or as executive officers.

We are currently an emerging growth company within the meaning of the Securities Act, and to the extent we have taken advantage of certain exemptions
from disclosure requirements available to emerging growth companies, this could make our securities less attractive to investors and may make it more
difficult to compare our performance with other public companies.

We are currently an “emerging growth company” within the meaning of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act of
2012, (the “JOBS Act”) and we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies
that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from
the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously
approved. As a result, our shareholders may not have access to certain information they may deem important. We cannot predict whether investors will find our
securities less attractive because we will rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our securities less attractive as a result of our reliance on these
exemptions, the trading prices of our securities may be lower than they otherwise would be, there may be a less active trading market for our securities and the
trading prices of our securities may be more volatile.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial
accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of
securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a
company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such
election to opt out is irrevocable. We have elected not to opt out of such extended transition period, which means that when a standard is issued or revised and
it has different application dates for public or private companies, we, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private
companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of our financial statements with another public company which is neither an
emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the extended transition period difficult or impossible because of the
potential differences in accountant standards used.

If we cease to be an emerging growth company, we will no longer be able to take advantage of certain exemptions from reporting, and, absent other
exemptions or relief available from the SEC, we will also be required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act. We will incur additional expenses in connection with such compliance and our management will need to devote additional time and effort to implement
and comply with such requirements.

Delaware law and our organization documents contain certain provisions, including anti-takeover provisions that limit the ability of stockholders to take
certain actions and could delay or discourage takeover attempts that stockholders may consider favorable.

Our organizational documents and the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) contain provisions that could have the effect of rendering more
difficult, delaying, or preventing an acquisition that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive
a premium for their shares. These provisions could also limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our Class A common
stock, and therefore depress the trading price of the Class A common stock. These provisions could also make it difficult for stockholders to take certain
actions, including electing directors who are not nominated by the current members of our board of directors or taking other corporate actions, including
effecting changes in our management.

Any issuance by us of preferred stock could delay or prevent a change in control of us. Our board of directors has the authority to cause us to issue,
without any further vote or action by the stockholders, shares of preferred stock in one or
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more series, to designate the number of shares constituting any series, and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions thereof, including dividend
rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, redemption price or prices, and liquidation preferences of such series. The issuance of shares of our
preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control without further action by the stockholders, even where
stockholders are offered a premium for their shares.

In addition, as long as Atairos and Mr. Shannon beneficially own at least a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock, Atairos and
Mr. Shannon will be able to control all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors, amendment of our certificate of
incorporation and certain corporate transactions. Together, these certificate of incorporation, bylaw and statutory provisions could make the removal of
management more difficult and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market prices for our common
stock. Furthermore, the existence of the foregoing provisions, as well as the significant common stock beneficially owned by Atairos and Mr. Shannon could
limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock. They could also deter potential acquirers, thereby reducing
the likelihood that our stockholders could receive a premium for their common stock in an acquisition.

Our certificate of incorporation contains a provision renouncing our interest and expectancy in certain corporate opportunities.

Under our certificate of incorporation, none of Atairos or any affiliates of Atairos, or any of their respective officers, directors, agents, stockholders,
members or partners, has any duty to refrain from engaging, directly or indirectly, in the same business activities, similar business activities, or lines of
business in which we operate. In addition, our certificate of incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, no officer or director of ours who
is also an officer, director, employee, managing director or other affiliate of Atairos will be liable to us or our stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty by
reason of the fact that any such individual directs a corporate opportunity to Atairos, instead of us, or does not communicate information regarding a corporate
opportunity to us that the officer, director, employee, managing director, or other affiliate has directed to Atairos. These potential conflicts of interest could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, or prospects if attractive corporate opportunities are allocated by
Atairos to itself or its affiliates instead of to us.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the sole and exclusive forum for substantially all
disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our
directors, officers or employees.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that, unless Bowlero otherwise consents in writing, the Court of Chancery (the “Chancery Court”) of the State
of Delaware (or, in the event that the Chancery Court does not have jurisdiction, another court of the State of Delaware or, if no court of the State of Delaware
has jurisdiction, then the United States District Court for the District of Delaware) will be the sole and exclusive forum for resolution of (a) any derivative
action or proceeding brought on behalf of Bowlero, (b) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any current or former director,
officer, employee, agent or stockholder of Bowlero to Bowlero or any of the Bowlero’s stockholders, (c) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any
provision of the DGCL, the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws or (d) any action asserting a claim governed by the “internal affairs doctrine.”
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the federal district courts of the United States will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any claims arising under the
Securities Act, the Exchange Act, or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction.

We recognize that the forum selection clause in our certificate of incorporation may impose additional litigation costs on stockholders in pursuing any
such claims, particularly if the stockholders do not reside in or near the State of Delaware. Additionally, the forum selection clause in our certificate of
incorporation may limit our stockholders’ ability to bring a claim in a forum that they find favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees,
which may discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and employees even though an action, if successful, might benefit our stockholders.
The Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware may also reach different judgments or results than would other courts, including courts where a stockholder
considering an action may be located or would otherwise choose to bring the action, and such judgments may be more or less favorable to us than our
stockholders.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of our capital stock will be deemed to have notice of and, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, to have consented to the provisions of our certificate of incorporation described above. The choice of forum provision may limit a
stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees, which may
discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and other employees. However, the enforceability of similar
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forum provisions (including exclusive federal forum provisions for actions, suits or proceedings asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act) in
other companies’ organizational documents has been challenged in legal proceedings and there is uncertainty as to whether courts would enforce the exclusive
forum provisions in our certificate of incorporation. If a court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our certificate of incorporation to be
inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We cannot predict the impact that our dual class structure may have on the stock price of our Class A common stock.

We cannot predict whether our dual class structure will result in a lower or more volatile market price of our Class A common stock or in adverse
publicity or other adverse consequences. For example, certain index providers have announced restrictions on including companies with multiple-class share
structures in certain of their indexes. In July 2017, FTSE Russell and S&P Dow Jones announced that they would cease to allow most newly public companies
utilizing dual or multi-class capital structures to be included in their indices. Affected indices include the Russell 2000 and the S&P 500, S&P MidCap 400 and
S&P SmallCap 600, which together make up the S&P Composite 1500. Beginning in 2017, MSCI, a leading stock index provider, opened public consultations
on its treatment of no-vote and multi-class structures and temporarily barred new multi-class listings from certain of its indices; however, in October 2018,
MSCI announced its decision to include equity securities “with unequal voting structures” in its indices and to launch a new index that specifically includes
voting rights in its eligibility criteria. Under the announced policies, our dual class capital structure would make us ineligible for inclusion in certain indices,
and as a result, mutual funds, exchange-traded funds and other investment vehicles that attempt to passively track those indices will not be investing in our
stock. These policies are still fairly new and it is as of yet unclear what effect, if any, they will have on the valuations of publicly traded companies excluded
from the indices, but it is possible that they may depress these valuations compared to those of other similar companies that are included. Because of our dual
class structure, we will likely be excluded from certain of these indexes and we cannot assure you that other stock indexes will not take similar actions. Given
the sustained flow of investment funds into passive strategies that seek to track certain indexes, exclusion from stock indexes would likely preclude investment
by many of these funds and could make shares of our Class A common stock less attractive to other investors. As a result, the market price of shares of our
Class A common stock could be adversely affected.

The dual class structure of our common stock, as well as board designation rights of Mr. Shannon and Atairos and consent rights of Atairos have the effect
of concentrating voting power with Mr. Shannon and Atairos, which limit an investor’s ability to influence the outcome of important transactions,
including a change in control.

Shares of Class B common stock have 10 votes per share, while shares of Class A common stock have one vote per share. Mr. Shannon holds all of the
issued and outstanding shares of Class B common stock. Accordingly, Mr. Shannon, directly or indirectly, holds over 80%of the voting power of our capital
stock and is able to control matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the election of directors, amendments of our organizational documents
and any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our assets or other major corporate transactions. So long as at least 18.1% of the outstanding of
shares of our Class B common stock remain outstanding, the holders of Class B common stock will be able to control the outcome of matters submitted to a
stockholder vote requiring a majority vote.

In addition, pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement (as defined below), Mr. Shannon and Atairos have board designation rights and Atairos also has
certain consent rights as described below.

Mr. Shannon and Atairos may have interests that differ from our stockholders and may vote in a way with which our stockholders disagree and which
may be adverse to our stockholders' interests. This concentrated control may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of
Bowlero, could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their capital stock as part of a sale of Bowlero, and might ultimately affect
the market price of shares of our Class A common stock.

Bowlero’s founder and Chief Executive Officer controls a significant percentage of our voting power and is able to exert significant control over the
direction of our business.

Thomas F. Shannon, our Chairman, Founder and Chief Executive Officer, holds shares of Class B common stock that entitle him to 10 votes per share of
Class B common stock, which provides him with approximately 83.5% of the voting power of Bowlero despite holding only 33.6% of the total shares of
Bowlero’s common stock. Accordingly, for so long as Mr. Shannon continues to control a significant percentage of the voting power of Bowlero, he will be
able to significantly influence the composition of our board of directors and management and the approval of actions requiring stockholder approval. The
concentration of ownership could also deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a
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premium for their shares of Class A common stock as part of a sale and ultimately might affect the market price of Class A common stock.

Bowlero’s founder and Chief Executive Officer and Atairos have certain board nomination rights that enable them to exercise substantial control over all
corporate actions, which could limit your ability to influence the outcome of matters submitted to stockholders for a vote.

We have entered into a stockholders agreement with Atairos and TS (the “Stockholders Agreement”), which Mr. Shannon controls, pursuant to which
each of Atairos and TS has the right to designate nominees for election to our board of directors at any meeting of our stockholders. The number of nominees
that each of Atairos and TS are entitled to nominate is dependent on their respective beneficial ownership of the Class A common stock and the Class B
common stock. For so long as Atairos and its affiliates own (i) 15% or more of the combined Class A common stock and the Class B common stock, Atairos
will be entitled to designate three directors to our board of directors and (ii) less than 15% but at least 5%, Atairos will be entitled to designate one director to
our board of directors. For so long as TS and its affiliates own (i) 15% or more of the combined Class A common stock and the Class B common stock, TS will
be entitled to designate three directors to our board of directors and (ii) less than 15% but at least 5%, TS will be entitled to designate one director to our board
of directors.

In addition, the Stockholders Agreement grants Atairos special governance rights for so long as Atairos and its affiliates collectively maintain beneficial
ownership of at least 15% of the combined Class A common stock and Class B common stock, including, but not limited to, rights of approval over certain
strategic transactions such as mergers or other similar transactions in significance that is above 15% of the total enterprise value of Bowlero, joint ventures
involving investment or contribution in excess of 15% of the total enterprise value of Bowlero, incurring indebtedness above a certain threshold, increasing the
size of the board of directors, and issuing capital stock representing more than 15% of the outstanding common stock or creating a capital stock that is senior to
the common stock.

Accordingly, for so long as Atairos and Mr. Shannon continue to control a significant percentage of the voting power of Bowlero, they will be able to
significantly influence the composition of our board of directors and management and the approval of actions requiring stockholder approval. The
concentration of ownership could also deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their shares of Class A common stock as part of a
sale of Bowlero and ultimately might affect the market price of Class A common stock.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). As a result, we qualify for exemptions from
certain corporate governance requirements that would otherwise provide protection to stockholders of other companies.

Thomas F. Shannon, our founder, Chief Executive Officer and director, controls a majority of the voting power of Bowlero. As a result, Bowlero is a
“controlled company” within the meaning of the corporate governance standards of the NYSE. Under these rules, a company of which more than 50% of the
voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a “controlled company” and may elect not to comply with certain corporate governance
requirements, including the requirements that:

. a majority of our board of directors consist of “independent directors” as defined under the rules of the NYSE;

. we have a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the committee’s purpose
and responsibilities;

. we have a nominating and corporate governance committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing
the committee’s purpose and responsibilities; and

. an annual performance evaluation of the compensation and nominating and corporate governance committees be conducted.

We currently do not and do not intend to utilize any of these exemptions. However, we will be able to utilize any of these exemptions in the future at our
discretion for so long as Bowlero is a “controlled company.” Accordingly, you may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that
are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of the NYSE.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company conducts its operations in properties that are owned and leased. We lease our corporate headquarters located at 7313 Bell Creek Road,

Mechanicsville, Virginia 23111. We also lease office space and storage space in various locations.

We operate bowling centers in 31 states, as well as centers in Mexico and Canada. The following summarizes the Company’s current centers in
operation by country and ownership classification as of July 3, 2022:

Centers in United States

Leased 278
Owned 32
Total centers in the United States 310
Centers in Mexico
Leased 2
Owned 3
Total centers in Mexico 5
Centers in Canada
Leased 2
Owned —
Total centers in Canada 2
Total centers 317
The following table summarizes the Company’s current operating centers in the United States by state or territory as of July 3, 2022:
State Number of Locations State Number of Locations

Alabama 8 Missouri 4

Arizona 18 New Jersey 9

California 44 New York 21

Colorado 13 North Carolina 13

Connecticut 5 Ohio 8

Delaware 1 Oklahoma 3

Florida 28 Oregon 1

Georgia 13 Pennsylvania 9

Illinois 14 Puerto Rico 1

Indiana 1 Rhode Island 1

Kansas 4 South Carolina 3

Louisiana 1 Texas 22

Maine 5 Virginia 29

Maryland 17 Washington 3

Michigan 3 Wisconsin 2

Minnesota 6

As of July 3, 2022, we currently have three centers in development, and four closed centers in our real estate portfolio.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in various inquiries, investigations, claims, lawsuits and other legal proceedings that are incidental to the conduct of
our business. These matters typically involve claims from customers, employees or other third parties involved in operational issues common to the retail,
restaurant and entertainment industries. Such matters typically represent actions with respect to contracts, intellectual property, taxation, employment,
employee benefits, personal injuries and other matters. A number of such claims may exist at any given time and there are currently a number of claims and
legal proceedings pending against us.

There is currently a group of approximately 76 pending claims, filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (the “EEOC”), between
2016 and 2019, generally relating to claims of age discrimination. Of the pending charges, 69 allege age discrimination only, two allege retaliation only, and
five allege age discrimination and retaliation. To date, the EEOC issued determinations of probable cause as to thirteen of the charges, which the Company
contests and intends to defend vigorously. The Company now awaits conciliation proposals from the EEOC with respect to such individual charges. The
remaining charges remain pending before the EEOC in various stages of investigation. In addition, the EEOC has conducted its own administrative
investigation of an alleged pattern or practice of age discrimination (the “Pattern and Practice Charge”), which resulted in a determination of probable cause
dated March 7, 2022, in which the Commission alleged that evidence purportedly exists of such a pattern or practice dating back to 2013. The Company
contests such determination and intends to defend vigorously. Following that determination, the EEOC asked for additional information and, on August 22,
2022, sent a proposal to the Company to participate in conciliation for the Pattern and Practice Charge. The EEOC’s proposal includes a demand for monetary
and non-monetary remedies. In the opinion of our management, after consultation with legal counsel, the amount of liability with respect to claims or
proceedings currently pending against us is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. In
particular, our management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the EEOC claims alleging age discrimination, and the facts alleged therein, do
not pose any material risk to the business or operations of the Company because, among other things, management believes such claims to be in the ordinary
course and without substantive merit. In addition, management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that approximately 65 of such EEOC claims
would be time barred due to expiry of the statute of limitations if the individuals were to bring the claims themselves, but not so barred if the EEOC were to
bring the claims. Nevertheless, even if such claims were not time barred, they would not pose a material risk to the Company's business or operations and may
be barred by the equitable doctrine of laches.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Our Class A common stock is currently listed on the NYSE under the symbol “BOWL”.

Holders of Common Stock

As of September 6, 2022, there were 118 holders of record of our Class A common stock. Such amounts do not include Depository Trust Company

participants or beneficial owners holding shares through nominee names.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On February 7, 2022, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a share and warrant repurchase program providing for repurchases
of up to $200,000 of the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock and warrants through February 3, 2024. Repurchases of shares and warrants are made
in accordance with applicable securities laws and may be made from time to time in the open market or by negotiated transactions. The amount and timing of
repurchases are based on a variety of factors, including stock price, regulatory limitations, debt agreement limitations, and other market and economic factors.
The share repurchase plan does not require the Company to repurchase any specific number of shares, and the Company may terminate the repurchase plan at

any time.

The Company purchased 3,430,667 shares of our Class A common stock during the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022. The following table provides

information regarding purchases of our securities made by us for the quarter ended July 3, 2022.

Total Number of Shares
Total Number of Purchased as Part of Dollar Value of Shares that
Class A Shares Average Price Paid Publicly Announced May Yet Be Purchased
Fiscal Period Purchased per Class A Share Programs Under the Plan
March 28, 2022 to May 1, 2022 — 3 — — 3 193,592
May 2, 2022 to May 29, 2022 503,720 9.31 503,720 188,902
May 30, 2022 to July 3, 2022 2,817,193 10.24 2,817,193 160,061
Total 3,320,913 $ 10.10 3,320,913
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Performance Graph

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Bowlero Corp., the S&P TMI Consumer Discretionary Index
and the S&P 500 Index
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Bowlero Corp $ 100.00 § 91.50 § 108.60 § 110.00
S&P TMI Consumer Discretionary 100.00 100.92 90.46 68.55
S&P 500 100.00 100.37 96.84 81.89

*Assumes $100 was invested on December 15, 2021, the day our stock began trading as Bowlero Corp., following the Business Combination between
Old Bowlero and Isos, including reinvestment of dividends.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on the Class A common stock to date. As a holding company, our ability to pay dividends depends on our receipt of
cash dividends from our operating subsidiaries. We may retain future earnings, if any, in order to pursue our business plan, cover operating costs and otherwise
remain competitive, and have no current plans to pay cash dividends on the Class A common stock in the foreseeable future. Any decision to declare and pay
dividends in the future will be made at the discretion of the board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial
condition, cash requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors that the board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, under Delaware law, our
board of directors may declare dividends only to the extent of our surplus (which is defined as total assets at fair market value minus total liabilities, minus
statutory capital) or, if there is no surplus, out of our net profits for the then-current and/or immediately preceding fiscal year. In addition, our ability to pay
dividends may be limited by covenants of any existing and future outstanding indebtedness we or our subsidiaries incur. We do not anticipate declaring any
cash dividends to holders of the common stock in the foreseeable future.

For our Series A Preferred Stock, dividends accumulate on a cumulative basis on a 360-day year commencing from the issue date. The dividend rate is
fixed at 5.5% per annum on a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. Payment dates are June 30 and December 31 of each year with a record date of June
15 for the June 30 payment date and December 15 for the December 31 payment date. Declared dividends will be paid in cash if the Company declares the
dividend to be paid in
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cash. If the Company does not pay all or any portion of the dividends that have accumulated as of any payment date, then the dollar amount of the dividends
not paid in cash will be added to the liquidation preference and deemed to be declared and paid in-kind.

Item 6. [Reserved]

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion should be read in conjunction with Bowlero Corp.’s audited consolidated financial statements and notes included herein. This discussion
contains forward-looking statements and involves numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those described under the heading “Risk
Factors.” Actual results may differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. All period references are to our fiscal periods unless
otherwise indicated. Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations” to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” and “Bowlero” are intended to mean the business and operations of Bowlero Corp. and its consolidated
subsidiaries. Unless otherwise indicated, all financial information in this section is presented in thousands.

Overview

Bowlero Corp. is the world’s largest operator of bowling entertainment centers. The Company operates traditional bowling centers and more upscale
entertainment concepts with lounge seating, arcades, enhanced food and beverage offerings, and more robust customer service for individuals and group
events, as well as hosting and overseeing professional and non-professional bowling tournaments and related broadcasting.

The Company remains focused on creating long-term shareholder value through continued organic growth, the conversion and upgrading of centers to
more upscale entertainment concepts offering a broader range of offerings, the opening of new centers and acquisitions. A core tenet of our long-term strategy
to increase profitability is to grow the size and scale of the Company in order to improve our leverage of Selling, General and Administrative expenses
(“SG&A”). Due in part to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company’s revenue for fiscal 2021 as compared to fiscal 2020 decreased by 26.7% on a same-store
basis. However, during fiscal year 2021, the Company saw positive trends for revenue growth as we re-opened our centers, as well as positive growth from
acquisitions and new centers. Our current fiscal year ended July 3, 2022 was fifty-three weeks, while fiscal year 2021 and pre-pandemic were fifty-two weeks.
The additional week in fiscal 2022 added approximately $14,921 in sales. The following amounts are reported fiscal year amounts and are not adjusted for the
additional week in fiscal 2022. For fiscal 2022 as compared to fiscal 2021 (which was adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic) and pre-pandemic
periods (the first and second quarters of fiscal 2020 combined with the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2019), the Company’s total revenue (inclusive of
acquisitions and new centers) increased by 131% and 31%, respectively. For fiscal 2022 as compared to fiscal 2021 (which was adversely affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic) and pre-pandemic periods (the first and second quarters of fiscal 2020 combined with the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2019), the
Company’s total revenue on a same-store basis increased by 120% and 19%, respectively.

Same-store revenues includes centers that are open in periods presented (open in both the current period and the prior period being reported) and
excludes centers that are not open in periods presented, such as acquired new centers or centers closed for upgrades, renovations or other such reasons, as well
as media revenues. We continue to see positive momentum for future demand and we have recovered to better than pre-pandemic performance. This growth
came despite the emergence of the COVID-19 Omicron and other variants, which had a significant impact on our results. In particular, the corporate event
business (which typically peaks in the second fiscal quarter) was significantly reduced in connection with delayed/reversed returns to the office. This was
particularly impactful in New York City area and Silicon Valley, CA area. While we generated a strong financial performance prior to the COVID-19 pandemic
and during the previous four quarters, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, various COVID-19 virus variants, the governmental actions imposed in response
to the pandemic, and the resulting consequences on our consumer’s risk tolerance toward health and safety matters remains uncertain.

Business Combination

On December 15, 2021, we completed the Business Combination contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2021, as
amended on November 1, 2021, by and among Isos and Bowlero Corp. (“Old Bowlero”). Pursuant to the BCA, Old Bowlero was merged with and into Isos,
with Isos surviving the merger, and Isos was renamed “Bowlero Corp.”

Recent Developments

Bowlero’s results for the current fiscal year ended 2022 exhibited a strong rebound in our operations after the COVID-19 pandemic, the strength of our
business model, the increase in confidence of our customers and the resilience in
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the bowling market. Additionally, the further improvements in our quarterly results demonstrate our continued ability to execute our growth strategy and
business model. To highlight the Company’s recent activity during the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022:

. We made ten acquisitions (inclusive of those acquisitions of businesses that are accounted for as asset acquisitions) that we believe will aid the
Company in several key geographic markets and aid in leveraging our fixed costs by adding 27 net new centers. We had signed two agreements to
acquire three additional centers as of July 3, 2022, which are expected to close in fiscal year 2023.

. During fiscal year 2022, we completed two new builds, which opened in the beginning of our second fiscal quarter. We also signed three new
agreements for build-outs in prime markets.

We continue to address the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including the governmental actions imposed in response to it. The rise of other variants
of COVID-19 and public health officials’ response to potential resurgences in the virus could impact our future operations. Although we believe our recent
results, actions and goals exhibit our strength in the bowling market and our position for the future growth, we may incur future expenses related to training,
hiring and retaining associates, and navigating the disruption in the food and beverage supply chains. For more, see “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Bowleros
Business and Industry.”

Impact of COVID-19

The Company continues to monitor health authority requirements when evaluating the protocols we have in place. While the future impact of the
COVID-19 situation is not known, as centers remain open and operating, we continue to see favorable trends with increasing sales and positive center-level
cash flows due, in part, to a revamped operating model that is being executed at lower cost. We continue to monitor the situation closely and it is possible that
we will implement further measures.

Trends

There are a number of trends that we expect to materially affect our future profitability, including changing economic conditions with the resulting
impact on our sales, profitability, and capital spending, changes in our debt levels and applicable interest rates, and increasing prices of labor, raw materials and
other food and beverage costs. Additionally, sales and results of operations could be impacted by acquisitions and restructuring projects. Restructuring can
include various projects, including closure of centers not performing well, cost reductions through staffing reductions, and optimizing and allocating resources
to improve profitability.

The following graph and table detail the Company’s quarterly revenues and net income (loss) over the previous eight quarters:

Quarterly Revenues and Net income (loss) (in thousands)
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September 27, December 27, September 26, December 26,
(in thousands) 2020 2020 March 28, 2021 June 27, 2021 2021 2021 March 27, 2022 July 3,2022
Revenues $ 49,931 $ 73,988 $ 112,212 § 159,103 $ 180,978 $ 205,190 $ 257,820 $ 267,717
Net (loss) income (40,772) (49,137) (23,091) (13,461) 15,564 (34,454) (17,987) 6,943

Presentation of Results of Operations

The Company reports on a fiscal year with each quarter generally comprised of one 5-week period and two 4-week periods. Our current fiscal year ended
July 3, 2022 (“fiscal 2022”) was fifty-three weeks, which consisted of an extra week in the last period of quarter four as compared to our fifty-two week fiscal
years. Fiscal year 2021 was fifty-two weeks and ended on June 27, 2021 (“fiscal 2021”).

All amounts are presented in thousands, unless otherwise noted, except share and per share amounts.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended July 3, 2022 Compared To the Fiscal Year Ended June 27, 2021

Analysis of Consolidated Statement of Operations. The following table displays certain items from our consolidated statements of operations for the
fiscal year ends presented below:

Fiscal Year Ended

(in thousands) July 3, 2022 %W June 27, 2021 %W Change % Change
Revenues $ 911,705 100.0% $ 395,234 100.0 % $ 516,471 131 %
Costs of revenues 609,971 66.9 % 374,255 94.7 % 235,716 63 %

Gross profit 301,734 33.1 % 20,979 53 % 280,755 1338 %
Operating (income) expenses:
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 180,702 19.8 % 78,335 19.8 % 102,367 131 %
Asset impairment 1,548 0.2 % 386 0.1 % 1,162 301 %
Gain on sale or disposal of assets (4,109) (0.5)% (46) —% (4,063) 8833 %
Other operating expense 6,968 0.8 % 1,131 0.3 % 5,837 516 %
Business interruption insurance recoveries — —% (20,188) 5.1)% 20,188

Total operating expense 185,109 20.3 % 59,618 15.1 % 125,491 210 %

Operating profit (loss) 116,625 12.8 % (38,639) (9.8)% 155,264 (402)%
Other expenses:
Interest expense, net 94,460 10.4 % 88,857 22.5% 5,603 6%
Change in fair value of earnout liability 25,800 2.8 % — —% 25,800
Change in fair value of warrant liability 26,840 29% — — % 26,840
Dther expense 149 — % — —% 149

Total other expense 147,249 16.2 % 88,857 22.5% 58,392 66 %

Loss before income tax benefit (30,624) B3.4)% (127,496) (32.3)% 96,872 (76)%

Income tax benefit (690) 0.1)% (1,035) (0.3)% 345 (33)%

Net loss $ (29,934) (33)% $ (126,461) (32.00% 96,527 (76)%

Note: Fiscal 2022 consisted of 53 weeks compared to fiscal 2021, which consisted of 52 weeks.

Note: (1) Percent calculated as a percentage of revenues and may not total due to rounding.
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Revenues: For fiscal 2022, revenues totaled $911,705 and represented an increase of $516,471, or 131%, over the prior fiscal year. The Company’s
revenue for fiscal 2022 as compared to fiscal 2021 increased by 120% on a same-store basis. The overall increase in revenues is due to the continued organic
growth, improvement in market conditions, with less COVID-related restrictions put in place by federal, state and local government policies, the impact of 29
centers added through acquisitions and new construction and the additional week in fiscal 2022 as compared to fiscal 2021. The additional week in fiscal 2022
added approximately $14,921 in sales as compared to fiscal 2021. The following table summarizes the increase in the Company’s revenue on a same-store-
basis for fiscal 2022 (including the additional week) compared to fiscal 2021:

Fiscal Year Ended
(in thousands) July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021 Change % Change
Center revenues on a same-store basis $ 831,266 $ 378,063 $ 453,203 120 %
Revenues for media, new and closed centers 80,439 17,171 63,268 368 %
Total revenues $ 911,705 $ 395,234 $ 516,471 131 %

Same-store revenues includes centers that are open in periods presented (open in both the current period and the prior period being reported) and
excludes centers that are not open in periods presented such as acquired new centers or centers closed for upgrades, renovations or other such reasons, as well
as media revenues. The increase in same-store revenues during fiscal 2022 reflects a significantly lower level of center closures and restrictions on our
operations due to the COVID-19 pandemic, as compared to fiscal 2021, as well as an overall improvement in demand for our products and services.

Cost of Revenues: The Company’s cost of revenues includes costs that are not variable or less variable with changes in revenues, such as depreciation,
amortization, rent, property taxes, supplies and insurance, as well as more fully variable costs that include labor, food and beverage costs, prize funds,
production expenses and amusement costs. The increase in cost of revenues of $235,716, or 63%, is mainly due to the increase in revenues and operating
activities in comparison to the prior fiscal year, as well as the higher costs due to inflation. In fiscal 2021, our operations were greatly impacted by the closure
of our centers in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, and we responded by cutting costs. Partially offsetting the increase in costs of revenue is a
reduction in rent expense of approximately $5,603 related to rent relief obtained by the Company. As detailed in Note 6 - Leases to the consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, this rent abatement is part of the Company's efforts to secure rent relief from landlords due to the
COVID-19 pandemic closures. Cost of revenues as a percent of revenues decreased from 95% during fiscal 2021 to 67% during fiscal 2022, mainly due to the
increase in revenues and the resulting operating leverage expansion, since a large portion of our cost of revenues do not generally grow with increased sales. As
we increase our revenues, we expect our cost of revenues as a percent of revenue to continue to decrease.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”): SG&A expenses include employee related costs with payroll and benefits as well as
depreciation and amortization (excluding those related to our center operations), media and promotional expenses. SG&A expenses increased $102,367 or
131% to $180,702, mainly due to approximately $68,405 in transactional costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Business Combination, including
share-based compensation of $42,212 incurred in connection with the Business Combination. Also contributing to the overall increase in SG&A is the increase
in revenues and operating activities as compared to the same period last fiscal year, including an increase of $8,275 in compensation, an increase of $4,860 in
share-based compensation not directly related to the close of the Business Combination, a $3,783 increase in professional fees and the overall impact of higher
costs due to inflation. The increase in compensation costs mainly reflects increases in pay rates and higher staffing to support the increase in business. The
increase in share-based compensation costs reflects new equity awards as a public-company to key members of management as an incentive to motivate and
retain associates. Partially offsetting the increase in SG&A costs is a reduction in rent expense of approximately $1,867 related to COVID-19 rent relief
obtained by the Company. As detailed in Note 6 - Leases to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, this rent
abatement is part of the Company's efforts to secure rent relief from landlords in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic closures. Total SG&A expenses as a
percent of net sales for fiscal 2022 was approximately 20%, which was materially unchanged when compared to fiscal 2021. SG&A expenses as a percentage
of revenue would have decreased as compared to the prior year except for the higher costs associated with the Business Combination. The Company is able to
achieve improved operating leverage with the impact of higher revenues, since a large proportion of our SG&A costs are highly leverageable and not variable
with changes in revenue. Excluding the $68,405 in Business Combination-related transactional costs and expenses, SG&A costs as a percentage of revenues
were approximately 12%.

Other operating expense: Other operating expenses include various cost, including professional fees related to transactions, such as acquisitions of
centers. The increase in other operating expenses is mainly due to an increase in transactions as compared to the prior year.
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Business interruption insurance proceeds: During fiscal 2021, the Company collected and recognized as income $20,188 in business interruption
insurance proceeds due to the closure of our centers starting in mid-March 2020 during the COVID-19 pandemic. There were no business interruption
insurance proceeds received during the current fiscal year.

Interest expense, net: Interest expense primarily relates to interest on debt and capital leases. Interest expense increased $5,603, or 6%, to $94,460.
The higher interest expense is primarily the result of our increased capital lease obligation and expense during fiscal 2022. Total average outstanding debt was
approximately $881,046 during fiscal 2022 as compared to $866,993 during fiscal 2021. The Company’s weighted average interest rate on debt was
approximately 5.39% for fiscal 2022, as compared to 5.48% for fiscal 2021.

Change in fair value of earnouts and warrants: As a result of Business Combination, the Company recorded liabilities for earnouts and warrants. The
Company redeemed all outstanding public and private warrants as of May 16, 2022. Changes in the fair value of the earnout and warrant liabilities are
recognized in the statement of operations. Decreases in the liability will have a favorable impact on the statement of operations and increases in the liability
will have an unfavorable impact. The estimated fair value of the liabilities is determined using a Monte-Carlo simulation model. Inputs that have a significant
effect on the valuation include the expected volatility, stock price, expected term, risk-free interest rate and performance hurdles. The unfavorable impact on the
statement of operations during fiscal 2022 is due to the increase in the fair value of the earnouts and warrants, which mainly reflects the increase in the
Company’s stock price.

Income Taxes: Income tax (benefit) expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect management’s assessment of the Company’s tax position.

The income tax benefit for fiscal 2022 is due to the release of a portion of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets resulting from recording of
deferred tax liabilities associated with accounting for the acquisition of Bowl America, which was partially offset by increases in income tax expense due to
higher taxable income with improved operating results and income from the sale of certain Bowl America non-operating assets. The prior year income tax
benefit was mainly driven by losses before tax offset in part by valuation allowance increases.

No provisions for United States income taxes have been made with respect to earnings that are planned to be reinvested indefinitely outside the United
States.

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, which often result in proposed
assessments. Management performs a comprehensive review of our tax positions and accrues estimated amounts for applicable tax positions. Based on these
reviews, the results of discussions and resolutions of matters with certain tax authorities and the closure of tax years subject to tax audit, liabilities for
applicable tax positions are adjusted as necessary.

Non-GAAP measure

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, measures prepared in accordance with GAAP.
The Company believes certain financial measures which meet the definition of non-GAAP financial measures provide important supplemental information.
The Company considers Adjusted EBITDA as an important financial measure because it provides a financial measure of the quality of the Company’s earnings.
Other companies may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, which might limit its usefulness as a comparative measure. Adjusted EBITDA is
used by management in addition to and in conjunction with the results presented in accordance with GAAP. We have presented Adjusted EBITDA solely as a
supplemental disclosure because we believe it allows for a more complete analysis of results of operations and assists investors and analysts in comparing our
operating performance across reporting periods on a consistent basis by excluding items that we do not believe are indicative of our core operating
performance, such as Interest, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, Share-based Compensation, EBITDA from Closed Centers, Foreign Currency
Exchange Loss (Gain), Asset Disposition Loss (Gain), Transactional and other advisory costs, Charges attributed to new initiatives, Extraordinary unusual non-
recurring gains or losses and Changes in the value of earnouts and warrants. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not
consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are that Adjusted EBITDA and trailing
twelve month Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect:

. every expenditure, future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;
. changes in our working capital needs;
. the interest expense, or the amounts necessary to service interest or principal payments, on our outstanding debt;
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. income tax (benefit) expense, and because the payment of taxes is part of our operations, tax expense is a necessary element of our costs and
ability to operate;

. non-cash equity compensation, which will remain a key element of our overall equity based compensation package; and
. the impact of earnings or charges resulting from matters we consider not to be indicative of our ongoing operations.
Refer to notes below for additional details concerning the respective items for Adjusted EBITDA.

The following table provides a reconciliation from net loss to Adjusted EBITDA for the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021 :

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021

Net loss $ (29,934) $ (126,461)
Adjustments:

Interest expense 94,460 88,857
Income tax benefit (690) (1,035)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges 108,505 91,851
Share-based compensation 50,236 3,164
Closed center EBITDA® 1,480 4,039
Foreign currency exchange loss (gain) 5 (188)
Asset disposition gain (4,109) (46)
Transactional and other advisory costs® 38,140 10,737
Charges attributed to new initiatives® 362 531
Extraordinary unusual non-recurring losses 5,131 1,670
Changes in the value of earnouts and warrants and settlement costs® 52,789 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 316,375 § 73,119

Adjusted EBITDA represents Net income (loss) before Interest, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, Share-based Compensation, EBITDA
from Closed Centers, Foreign Currency Exchange Loss (Gain), Asset Disposition Loss (Gain), Transactional and other advisory costs, Charges attributed to
new initiatives, Extraordinary unusual non-recurring gains or losses and Changes in the value of earnouts and warrants. Refer to notes below for additional
details concerning the respective items for Adjusted EBITDA.

Notes to Adjusted EBITDA:

(1)  The closed center adjustment is to remove EBITDA for closed centers. Closed centers are those centers that are closed for a variety of reasons, including
permanent closure, newly acquired or built centers prior to opening, centers closed for renovation or rebranding and conversion. Closed centers do not
include centers closed in compliance with local, state and federal government restrictions due to COVID-19. If a center is not open on the last day of the
reporting period, it will be considered closed for that reporting period. If the center is closed on the first day of the reporting period for permanent
closure, the center will be considered closed for that reporting period.

(2)  The adjustment for transaction costs and other advisory costs is to remove charges incurred in connection with any transaction, including mergers,
acquisitions, refinancing, amendment or modification to indebtedness, dispositions and costs in connection with an initial public offering, in each case,
regardless of whether consummated.

(3)  The adjustment for charges attributed to new initiatives is to remove actual charges attributed to new initiatives, including charges with the undertaking
and/or implementation of new initiatives, business optimization activities, cost savings initiatives, cost rationalization programs, operating expense
reductions and/or synergies and/or similar initiatives and/or programs including any restructuring charge (including any charges relating to any tax
restructuring), any charge relating to the closure or consolidation of any office or facility, any systems implementation charge, any severance charge, any
one time compensation charge, any charge relating to entry into a new market, any charge relating to any strategic initiative or contract and any lease
run-off charge.

(4)  The adjustment for extraordinary unusual non-recurring gains or losses is to remove extraordinary gains and losses, which include any gain or charge
from any extraordinary item as determined in good faith by the Company and/or
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any non-recurring or unusual item as determined in good faith by the Company and/or any charge associated with and/or payment of any legal
settlement, fine, judgment or order.

(5)  The adjustment for changes in the value of earnouts and warrants is to remove of the impact of the revaluation of the earnouts and warrants. As a result
of the Business Combination, the Company recorded liabilities for earnouts and warrants. Changes in the fair value of the earnout and warrant liabilities
are recognized in the statement of operations. Decreases in the liability will have a favorable impact on the statement of operations and increases in the
liability will have an unfavorable impact. The adjustment also includes realized costs associated with the settlement of warrants during the fiscal year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We manage our liquidity through assessing available cash-on-hand, our ability to generate cash and our ability to borrow or otherwise raise capital to
fund operating, investing and financing activities. The Company remains in a positive financial position with available cash balances. We also obtained rent
deferrals or abatements on a substantial number of our leases due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.

A core tenet of our long-term strategy is to grow the size and scale of the Company in order to improve our operating profit margins through leveraging
our fixed costs. As such, one of the Company’s known cash requirements is for capital expenditures related to the construction of new centers and upgrading
and converting existing centers. We believe our financial position, generation of cash, available cash on hand, existing credit facility, and access to potentially
obtain additional financing from sale-lease-back transactions or other sources will provide sufficient capital resources to fund our operational requirements,
capital expenditures, and material short and long-term commitments for the foreseeable future. However, there are a number of factors that may hinder our
ability to access these capital resources, including but not limited to the ongoing impacts of COVID-19 on our business, our degree of leverage, and potential
borrowing restrictions imposed by our lenders. See “Risk Factors” for further information.

On December 15, 2021, we entered into an amendment to our First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2017, by and among Bowlero, Kingpin
Intermediate Holdings LLC, as borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the lenders from time to time party thereto (as amended,
the “First Lien Credit Agreement”), pursuant to which we refinanced our then-existing revolving credit facility with a $140,000 senior secured revolving credit
facility that has a maturity date of the earlier of December 15, 2026 or the date that is 90 days prior to the scheduled maturity date of term loans outstanding
under the First Lien Credit Agreement in an aggregate principal amount exceeding $175,000. Interest on borrowings under the new revolving credit facility is
initially based on either the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate or the Alternate Base Rate (each as defined in the First Lien Credit Agreement). In addition, on
December 17, 2021, we entered into a further amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement pursuant to which the total revolving commitments under the new
revolving credit facility were increased by $25,000 to an aggregate amount of $165,000.

On December 15, 2021, the principal, accrued and unpaid interest, fees, premium, if any, and other amounts (other than obligations not then due and
payable or that by their terms survive the termination thereof) outstanding under the Incremental Liquidity Facility was repaid in full and all commitments to
extend credit thereunder were terminated.

At July 3, 2022, we had approximately $132,236 of available cash and cash equivalents.

Fiscal Year Ended July 3, 2022 Compared To the Fiscal Year Ended June 27, 2021

The following compares the primary categories of the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, June 27, $ %
(in thousands) 2022 2021 Change Change
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 177,670 $ 58232 § 119,438 205.11 %
Net cash used in investing activities (220,345) (46,676) (173,669) 372.07 %
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (12,136) 34,805 (46,941) (134.87)%
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (46) 27 (73) (270.37)%
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ (54,857) $ 46,388 § (101,245) (218.26)%

During fiscal 2022, net cash provided from operations totaled $177,670, as compared to $58,232 during the prior fiscal year. The increase in cash
provided by operating activities reflects the strong recovery with higher revenues and
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operating leverage. We benefited during fiscal year 2022 from the rebound in consumer demand and revenues from recently acquired centers and opening
newly built centers.

Investing activities utilized $220,345, reflecting our acquisitions of businesses, including $44,621 related to the asset acquisition of Bowl America, and
capital expenditures, as well as center conversions and related capital expenditures. We expect to continue to invest in accretive acquisitions in future periods as
well as center upgrades and conversions.

Financing activities utilized $12,136 in fiscal 2022 reflecting $31,463 for the repurchase of treasury stock, $5,375 for the settlement of warrants and
scheduled long-term debt payments, partially offset by net funds received from the Business Combination. In the comparable period in the prior fiscal year, we
obtained additional funds under our Incremental Liquidity Facility, which was entered into on September 25, 2020, as part of the Company’s response to the
COVID-19 pandemic to increase liquidity.

Our contractual obligations primarily include, but are not limited to, debt service, self-insurance liabilities, and leasing arrangements. The Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K provide additional information on the timing and amounts of those contractual obligations.
We believe our sources of liquidity, namely available cash on hand, positive operating cash flows, and access to capital markets will continue to be adequate to
meet our contractual obligations, as well as fund working capital, planned capital expenditures, center acquisitions, and execute purchases under our share
repurchase program.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of July 3, 2022, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
Critical Accounting Estimates

Our results of operations and financial condition as reflected in the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgements, and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We
base these estimates and judgments on historical experience and assumptions believed to be reasonable under current facts and circumstances. Actual results,
however, may differ from the estimated amounts we have recorded. We regularly evaluate these estimates, judgements and assumptions.

The following discussion provides information on our critical accounting estimates that require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex
judgments, and which may result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions. Additionally, we expect that the COVID-19
outbreak may impact future assumptions and estimates made related to the critical accounting estimates listed below, though the extent of those impacts is
uncertain at this time.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets other than goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets (such as Bowlero and Professional Bowlers Association trade names and
liquor licenses), including property and equipment and other definite-lived intangibles such as trade names and customer relationships are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. The COVID-19 pandemic did not result in
an impairment of long-lived assets since the COVID-19 situation was considered temporary and the Company’s overall business was expected to recover.

For long-lived assets, an impairment is indicated when the estimated total undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset or group of assets is less
than carrying value. If impairment exists, an adjustment is made to write the asset down to its fair value, and a loss is recorded as the difference between the
carrying value and fair value. The Company recognized impairment charges of $1,548 and $386 in fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively. The impairments
primarily relate to long-lived assets for an open center, closed centers and liquor licenses. We estimated the fair value of these assets utilizing the business
enterprise valuation based on discounted cash flows for the open center, and for the closed centers and liquor licenses, the market approach using orderly
liquidation values or broker quotes for sale of similar properties. We then compared these fair values to the related carrying value of the long-lived assets.

36



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Management assesses impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets, including goodwill, brokered liquor licenses on a quota system and our Bowlero
and Professional Bowlers Association trade names, on an annual basis during the fourth quarter or more frequently under certain circumstances.

We assessed macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors that could have a negative impact, overall financial
performance including actual results and trends, and other relevant entity-specific events. For fiscal 2022, we performed a qualitative assessment of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill and brokered liquor licenses. For fiscal 2021, the Company performed a quantitative assessment of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill and brokered liquor licenses due to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic with
the temporary closure of our centers. There were no impairment charges for goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets other than brokered liquor licenses
recorded in fiscal 2022 or 2021.

Valuation of Earnouts and Warrants

The estimated fair value of the earnout liabilities is determined by using a Monte-Carlo simulation model and the estimated fair value of previous
warrant liabilities was determined by using a Monte-Carlo simulation model. Inputs that have a significant effect on the valuation include the expected
volatility, stock price, expected term, risk-free interest rate and performance hurdles.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Recently Issued Accounting Standards: In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (“Topic 842”). Following ASU 2016-02, the
FASB issued subsequent guidance and amendments including ASU 2017-13, 2018-01, 2018-11, 2018-20, 2019-01, and 2020-05 (collectively, including ASU
2016-02, “Topic 842”). Topic 842 will replace the guidance in Topic 840. The main objectives are to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by recognizing right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. The right-
of-use asset reflects the lessee’s right to direct the use of and obtain substantially all the economic benefits from that asset over the lease term, and it will be
based on the lease liability at commencement, subject to certain adjustments such as accrued rent, lease incentives, lease intangibles, initial direct costs and
prepaid rent. The lease liability reflects the obligation to make payments for the right to use that asset, which is the present value of future payments. Operating
leases will remain being expensed on the straight-line basis of the lease, and finance leases will retain their front-loaded expense pattern, similar to current
capital leases.

As aresult of ASU 2020-05, Topic 842 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company has not adopted Topic 842, which be effective for the Company for its fiscal year ending 2023. We are
currently evaluating our lease population, current processes, internal controls, and timeline required for adoption. Additionally, we are still evaluating the
practical expedients and the methods of adoption that we will use when adopting the new standard. Although management continues to evaluate the effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and disclosures, management currently estimates total operating lease assets and liabilities will increase
approximately $430,000 to $530,000, respectively, upon adoption based on the lease population as of July 3, 2022. The Company estimates that this standard
will result in a material impact to our balance sheet from the recognition of right of use assets and liabilities. We do not believe the adoption of this standard
will have a material impact on our statement of operations or cash flows.

Emerging Growth Company Accounting Election

The Company is an emerging growth company, as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act
of 2012, and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not
emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements.

Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting
standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a registration statement under the Securities Act declared effective or do not have a class of
securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a
company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such an
election to opt out is irrevocable. We have elected not to opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it
has different application dates for public or private companies, we, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private
companies
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adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of our financial statements with those of another public company that is neither an emerging
growth company nor an emerging growth company that has opted out of using the extended transition period difficult or impossible because of the potential
differences in accounting standards used.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earlier of: (1) the last day of the fiscal year (a) following the fifth anniversary of Isos’ IPO, (b) in
which we have total annual gross revenue of at least $1,070,000 or (c) in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer, which means the market value of
our common equity that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700,000 as of the end of the prior fiscal year’s second fiscal quarter; and (2) the date on which we
have issued more than $1,000,000 in non-convertible debt securities during the prior three-year period. References herein to “emerging growth company” have
the meaning associated with it in the JOBS Act.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in, among other things, the ongoing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, interest rates, credit risk, labor
costs, health insurance claims and foreign currency exchange rates, which could impact its results of operations and financial condition. We attempt to address
our exposure to these risks through our normal operating and financing activities.

Interest Rate Risk

Under our term and revolving credit facilities, we are exposed to a certain level of interest rate risk. Interest on the principal amount of our borrowings
under our revolving credit facility loan accrues at a LIBOR-based rate plus a margin. We previously hedged our variable interest rate exposure to a fixed rate
for approximately $650,000 of our debt with interest rate swaps and caps, which expired on June 30, 2022. For the portion of debt that is not fixed with the
hedging, our results will be adversely affected by any increase in interest rates.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and temporary investments, and interest rate
swaps and caps. We are exposed to credit losses in the event of non-performance by counter parties to our financial instruments. We place cash and temporary
investments with various high-quality financial institutions. Although we do not obtain collateral or other security to secure these obligations, we periodically
monitor the third-party depository institutions that hold our cash and cash equivalents. Our emphasis is primarily on safety and liquidity of principal and
secondarily on maximizing yield on those funds.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to market price fluctuation in food, beverage, supplies and other costs such as energy. Given the historical volatility of certain of our
food product prices, including proteins, produce, dairy products, and cooking oil, these fluctuations can materially impact our food costs. While our purchasing
commitments partially mitigate the risk of such fluctuations, there is no assurance that supply and demand factors such as disease or inclement weather will not
cause the prices of the commodities used in our food operations to fluctuate. Additionally, the cost of purchased materials may be influenced by tariffs and
other trade regulations which are outside of our control. To the extent that we do not pass along cost increases to our customers, our results of operations may
be adversely affected.

Inflation

We experience inflation and deflation related to our purchase of certain products that we need to operate our business. This price volatility could
potentially have a material impact on our financial condition and/or our results of operations. In order to mitigate price volatility, we monitor price fluctuations
and may adjust our prices accordingly, however, our ability to recover higher costs through increased pricing may be limited by the competitive environment in
which we operate.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Bowlero Corp.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bowlero Corp. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of July 3, 2022 and June
27, 2021, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, temporary equity and stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for
each of the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

Richmond, Virginia
September 15, 2022
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Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $504 and $204, respectively
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Assets held-for-sale
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Internal use software, net

Property and equipment under capital leases, net
Intangible assets, net

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities, Temporary Equity and Stockholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net
Long-term obligations under capital leases
Earnout liability
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11)

Temporary Equity

Series A preferred stock - Old Bowlero
Series A preferred stock
Redeemable Class A common stock - Old Bowlero

41

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
132,236 $ 187,093
5,227 3,300
10,310 8,310
12,732 8,056
8,789 686
169,294 207,445
534,721 415,661
11,423 9,062
262,703 284,077
92,593 96,057
742,669 726,156
41,022 43,780
1,854,425 $ 1,782,238
38,217 $ 29,489
62,854 63,650
4,966 5,058
13,123 9,176
119,160 107,373
865,090 870,528
397,603 374,598
210,952 —
54,418 87,749
14,882 11,867
1,662,105 1,452,115
— 141,162
206,002 —
— 464,827



Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Stockholders’ Deficit

Class A common stock $ 11 3 10
Class B common stock 6 —
Additional paid-in capital 335,015 —
Treasury stock, at cost (34,557) —
Accumulated deficit (312,851) (266,472)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,306) (9,404)
Total stockholders’ deficit (13,682) (275,866)

Total liabilities, temporary equity and stockholders’ deficit $ 1,854,425 § 1,782,238

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Fiscal Years Ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues
Costs of revenues
Gross profit

Operating (income) expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Asset impairment

Gain on sale or disposal of assets

Other operating expense

Business interruption insurance recoveries
Total operating expense

Operating profit (loss)

Other expenses:
Interest expense, net
Change in fair value of earnout liability
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Other expense

Total other expense

Loss before income tax benefit

Income tax benefit
Net loss

Series A preferred stock dividends
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Net loss per share attributable to Class A and B common stockholders, basic and diluted

Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic
and diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, June 27,

2022 2021
911,705 $ 395,234
609,971 374,255
301,734 20,979
180,702 78,335

1,548 386
(4,109) (46)
6,968 1,131
— (20,188)
185,109 59,618
116,625 (38,639)
94,460 88,857
25,800 —
26,840 —
149 —
147,249 88,857
(30,624) (127,496)
(690) (1,035)
(29,934) (126,461)
(10,233) (8,015)
(40,167) $ (134,476)
0.26) $ (0.92)
155,837,154 146,848,329




Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
Fiscal Years Ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

Net loss
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives
Reclassification to earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, June 27,
2022 2021
(29,934) $ (126,461)
60 (371)
8,809 9,002
(771) 977
8,098 9,608
(21,836) $ (116,853)




Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Temporary Equity and Stockholders’ Deficit
Fiscal Years Ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

Redeemable Class A Class A Class B " Accumulated
common stock Series A preferred stock common Stock common Stock Treasury stock Additional other Total
Paid-in Accumulated  comprehensive  stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount capital deficit loss equity (deficit)

Balance, June 28, 2020 2,069,000  $ 160,601 106,378  $ 133,147 3,842,428 § 1 — 3 = — 3 — $ 271,776 $  (102,701) $ (19,012) 8 150,064

Retroactive application of recapitalization ~ 49,328,025 — 2,536,209 — 91,608,875 9 — — — — — ) — —
Adjusted balance, beginning of period 51,397,025 $ 160,601 2,642,587  $133,147 95,451,303 $ 10 $ $ $ 271,776 $  (102,710) $ (19,012)  § 150,064

Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (126.,461) — (126,461)

Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — — — — — 977 977

Unrealized loss on derivatives — — — — — — — — — — — — (371) (371)

Reclassification to earnings 9,002 9,002

Accrued dividends on pre-merger Series A

preferred stock — — — 8,015 — — — — — — (8,015) — — (8,015)

Change in fair value of redeemable Class

A common stock of Old Bowlero — 304,226 — — — — — — — — (304,226) — — (304,226)

Stock based compensation — — — — — — — — — — 3,164 — — 3,164

Reclass of negative APIC to accumulated

deficit — — — — — — — — — — 37,301 (37,301) = —
Balance, June 27, 2021 51,397,025  $464,827 2,642,587  $ 141,162 95,451,303  $ 10 — — — 3 — — 8 (266,472)  § (9.404) 8 (275.866)

Net loss — = = = — = — — = = = (29,934) = (29,934)

Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — — — — — (771) (771)

Unrealized gain on derivatives — — — — — — — — — — — — 60 60

Reclassification to earnings — — — — — — — — — — — — 8,809 8,809

Reclass of negative APIC to accumulated

deficit — — — — — — — — — — 16,445 (16,445) — —

Accrued dividends on pre-merger Series A

preferred stock — — — 4,136 — — — — — — (4,136) — — (4,136)

Change in fair value of redeemable Class

A common stock of Old Bowlero — 38,864 — — — — — — — — (38,864) — — (38,864)

Stock based compensation — — — — 93,662 — — — — — 6,804 — — 6,304

Merger induced stock based compensation — — — — 2,529,360 — 5,839,993 1 — — 42,555 — — 42,556

Issuance of common stock and preferred

stock in connection with Merger

Capitalization, net of Bowlero equity

issuance costs and fair value of liability-

classified warrants and earnout — — 95,000 95,000 42,185,233 4 1,074,185 — — — 120,805 — — 120,809

Settlement of pre-merger Series A

preferred stock — — (2,642,587)  (145,298) — — — — — — — — — —

Conversion of Class A common stock of

Old Bowlero to Series A preferred stock — — 105,000 105,000 (10,499,900) (€] — — — — (104,999) — — (105,000)

Consideration to existing shareholders of

0Old Bowlero — — — — | @2599.800) @) — — — — (225,998) — — (226,000)

Consideration paid to Old Bowlero

optionholders —_ —_ —_ — —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ (15,467) —_ —_ (15,467)

Exchange of redeemable Class A common

stock of Old Bowlero for Class B common

stock (51,397,025)  (503,691) — — — — 51,397,025 5 — — 503,686 — — 503,691

Accrual of paid-in-kind dividends on

Series A preferred stock — — — 6,002 — — — — — — (6,002) — — (6,002)

Repurchase of Class A common stock into

Treasury stock — — — — (3,430,667) — — — 3,430,667 (34,557) — — — (34,557)

Class A common stock issued in

conjunction with exercise of warrants — — — — 4,266,439 — — — — — 40,186 — — 40,186

Conversion of Class B common stock into

Class A common stock = = = — 2,400,000 — (2,400,000) — — — — = — —
Balance, July 3, 2022 — 8 — 200,000 $206,002 | 110395630 $ 11 55911203 §$ 6 3430,667 $(34557) $ 335015 §  (312,851) § (1,306) $ (13,682)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Years Ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Operating activities
Net loss $ (29,934) $ (126,461)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Asset impairment 1,548 386
Depreciation and amortization 106,957 91,851
Gain on sale or disposal of assets, net (4,109) (46)
Income from joint venture (388) (223)
Loss on refinance of debt 953 —
Loss on settlement of warrants 149 —
Amortization of deferred financing costs 3,502 3,431
Amortization of deferred rent incentive (281) (1,766)
Non-cash interest expense on capital lease obligation 5,098 6,986
Amortization of deferred sale lease-back gain (1,015) (1,204)
Deferred income taxes (6,879) (1,418)
Stock based compensation 50,236 3,164
Distributions from joint venture 401 210
Change in fair value of earnout liability 25,800 —
Change in fair value of warrant liability 26,840 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable and notes receivable, net (1,928) 458
Inventories (1,925) (137)
Prepaids, other current assets and other assets (6,301) (2,184)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (409) 40,073
Other current liabilities 6,677 725
Other long-term liabilities 2,678 44,387
Net cash provided by operating activities 177,670 58,232
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (162,371) (43,137)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 17,105 1,273
Purchases of intangible assets (2,427) (60)
Proceeds from sale of intangibles — 140
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (72,652) (4,892)
Net cash used in investing activities (220,345) (46,676)
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Bowlero Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Years Ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021
(Amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021

Financing activities
Repurchase of Series A preferred stock - Old Bowlero $ (145,298) $ —
Proceeds from issuance of Series A preferred stock 95,000 —
Proceeds from issuance of Class A common stock to Isos investors 94,413 —
Transaction costs related to Merger recapitalization (20,670) —
Proceeds from PIPE Investment 150,604 —
Proceeds from Forward Investment 100,000 —
Payment to existing shareholders of Old Bowlero (226,000) —
Consideration paid to existing option holders of Old Bowlero (15,467) —
Repurchase of treasury stock (31,463) —
Repurchase of warrants (5,375) —
Payment of long-term debt (10,263) (8,211)
Payment of First Lien Credit Facility Revolver (39,853) —
Proceeds from Incremental Liquidity Facility — 45,000
Payment of Incremental Liquidity Facility (45,000) —
Payments of deferred financing costs (977) (1,984)
Payments for tax withholdings on share-based awards (503) —
Proceeds from New Revolver 86,434 —
Construction allowance receipts 2,282 —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (12,136) 34,805
Effect of exchange rates on cash (46) 27
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equivalents (54,857) 46,388
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 187,093 140,705
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 132,236 § 187,093

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOWLERO CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts or otherwise noted)

(1) Description of Business

Bowlero Corp., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries “(collectively, the Company)” are the world’s largest operator of bowling entertainment
centers.

The Company operates bowling centers under different brand names. The AMF branded centers are traditional bowling centers and the Bowlero branded
centers offer a more upscale entertainment concept with lounge seating, enhanced food and beverage offerings, and more robust customer service for
individuals and group events. The Bowlmor centers were rebranded to Bowlero and offered a more upscale entertainment concept. Additionally, within the
brands, there exists a spectrum where some AMF branded centers are more upscale and some Bowlero branded centers are more traditional. All of our centers,
regardless of branding, are managed in a fully integrated and consistent basis since all of our centers are in the same business of operating bowling
entertainment. The following summarizes the Company’s centers by country and major brand as of the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021:

July 3, June 27,
2022 2021
Bowlero 161 133
AMF & other 147 136
Bowlmor 2 14
Total centers in the United States 310 283
Mexico (AMF) 5 6
Canada (AMF and Bowlero) 2 2
Total 317 291

Impact of COVID-19

In mid-March of 2020, the Company temporarily suspended all operations in compliance with local, state, and federal governmental restrictions to
prevent the spread of the novel coronavirus and variants collectively known as COVID-19. Starting in April 2020, the Company began reopening centers and
restoring operations. As of the beginning of fiscal 2022, all of our centers were open except for two of our centers that re-opened on September 13, 2021. Due
to governmental restrictions, the company had two centers in Canada that closed on January 5, 2022 and reopened on January 31, 2022. Since March of 2020,
some centers have not operated at full capacity due to, among other factors, social distancing requirements, limited hours of operation, limitations on available
offerings, and other operational restrictions. The temporary suspension of our operations and subsequent operational restrictions have had an adverse impact on
the Company’s profitability and cash flows, in response to which the Company has taken and continues to take actions to address.

Segment Information

The Company has one reporting segment, which consists of operating a bowling entertainment business. Operating segments are identified as
components of an enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”) in
making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing performance. Management continually assesses the Company’s operating structure, and this
structure could be modified further based on future circumstances and business conditions. Our CODM assesses performance based on consolidated as well as
bowling center-level revenue and operating profit.

The Company attributes revenue to individual countries based on the Company’s bowling center locations. The Company’s bowling centers are located
in the United States, Mexico, and Canada. The Company’s revenues generated outside of the United States for fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were not material.
The Company’s long-lived assets located in Mexico and Canada are not material.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Reverse Recapitalization: On December 15, 2021, (the “Closing Date”), the Company consummated the previously announced Business Combination
pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement (“BCA”) t dated as of July 1, 2021, by and among Bowlero Corp. prior to the Closing Date (“Old Bowlero™)
and Isos Acquisition Corporation (“Isos”).

Notwithstanding the legal form of the Business Combination pursuant to the BCA, the Business Combination is accounted for as a reverse
recapitalization. Under this method of accounting, Isos is treated as the acquired company and Old Bowlero is treated as the acquirer for accounting and
financial statement reporting purposes.

Old Bowlero has been determined to be the accounting acquirer based on evaluation of the following facts and circumstances:

*  Old Bowlero’s existing stockholders have the greatest voting interest in the Company;

*  Old Bowlero’s existing stockholders have the ability to control decisions regarding election and removal of directors and officers of the Company;

*  Old Bowlero comprises the ongoing operations of the Company;
*  Old Bowlero’s relevant measures, such as assets, revenues, cash flows and earnings, are higher than Isos’; and

* Old Bowlero’s existing senior management is the senior management of the Company.

As a result of Old Bowlero being the accounting acquirer, the financial reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) by the
Company subsequent to the Business Combination are prepared as if Old Bowlero is the predecessor and legal successor to the Company. The historical
operations of Old Bowlero are deemed to be those of the Company. Thus, the financial statements included in this report reflect (i) the historical operating
results of Old Bowlero prior to the Business Combination, (ii) the combined results of the Old Bowlero and Isos following the Business Combination on
December 15, 2021, (iii) the assets and liabilities of Old Bowlero at their historical cost and (iv) the Company’s post-merger equity structure for all periods
presented. The recapitalization of the number of shares of common stock and preferred stock attributable to the purchase of Bowlero Corp. in connection with
the Business Combination is reflected retroactively to the earliest period presented and is utilized for calculating earnings per share in all prior periods
presented. No step-up basis of intangible assets or goodwill was recorded in the Business Combination transaction consistent with the treatment of the
transaction as a reverse recapitalization of Isos.

In connection with the Business Combination, Isos changed its name to Bowlero Corp. The Company’s Class A common stock became listed on the
NYSE under the symbol BOWL and warrants to purchase the Class A common stock became listed on the NYSE under the symbol BOWL.WS in lieu of the
Isos ordinary shares and Isos’s warrants, respectively. Isos’ units automatically separated into the Isos ordinary shares and Isos’ warrants and ceased trading
separately on the NYSE following the Closing Date. Prior to the Business Combination, Isos neither engaged in any operations nor generated any revenue.
Until the Business Combination, based on Isos’ business activities, it was a shell company as defined under the Exchange Act.

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of operations prior to the reverse recapitalization are those of the Company, thus the shares and
corresponding capital amounts and losses per share, prior to the reverse recapitalization, have been retroactively restated based on shares reflecting the
exchange ratio of 24.841 established in the BCA.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements and related notes include the accounts of Bowlero Corp. and the subsidiaries it
controls. Control is determined based on ownership rights or, when applicable, based on whether the Company is considered to be the primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity. The Company’s interest in 20% to 50% owned companies that are not controlled are accounted for using the equity method, unless the
Company does not sufficiently influence the management of the investee. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Fiscal Year: The Company reports on a fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to June 30th with each quarter generally comprising thirteen weeks.
Fiscal year 2022 contained fifty-three weeks and ended on July 3, 2022, and the 53rd week fell within the fourth quarter. Fiscal year 2021 contained fifty-two
weeks each and ended on June 27, 2021.

Reclassification: Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation. Internal use software as of
June 27, 2021 has been reclassified on the consolidated balance sheet and in Note
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5 - Property and Equipment to conform to current period presentation. Investment in joint venture as of June 27, 2021 has been reclassified to other assets on
the consolidated balance sheet. In our Consolidated Statement of Operations, we began combining income from joint venture, management fee income and
other operating expense, into one line item as other operating expense to simplify our reporting presentation. The reclassification had no impact on total
operating costs, earnings from operations, net earnings, earnings per share or total equity.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the balance sheets, statement of operations and
accompanying notes. Significant estimates made by management include, but are not limited to, cash flow projections; the fair value of assets and liabilities in
acquisitions; derivatives with hedge accounting; stock based compensation; depreciation and impairment of long-lived assets; carrying amount and
recoverability analyses of property and equipment, assets held for sale, goodwill and other intangible assets; valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities and
income tax uncertainties; and reserves for litigation, claims and self-insurance costs. Significant assumptions also include the Company’s position that the
COVID-19 pandemic is temporary. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair-value Estimates: We have various financial instruments included in our financial statements. Financial instruments are carried in our financial
statements at either cost or fair value. We estimate fair value of assets using the following hierarchy using the highest level possible:

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but are corroborated by market data.
Level 3:  Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. The Company had cash equivalents of $88,067 and $86,003 at July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively. The Company accepts a range of
debit and credit cards, and these transactions are generally transmitted to a bank for reimbursement within 24 hours. The payments due from the banks for these
debit and credit card transactions are generally received, or settled, within 24 to 48 hours of the transmission date. The Company considers all debit and credit
card transactions that settle in less than seven days to be cash equivalents. Amounts due from the banks for these transactions classified as cash equivalents
totaled $8,688 and $8,534 at July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively.

Accounts Receivable: The Company records accounts receivable at the invoiced amount. Accounts receivable do not bear interest unless specified in a
formal agreement. An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on management’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the existing
accounts receivable. The Company determines the allowance based on a number of factors, including historical write-off experience and its knowledge of
specific customer accounts. Past-due balances meeting specific criteria are reviewed individually for collectability. The Company reviews all other balances on
a pooled basis. Accounts are written off once collection efforts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Actual uncollectable
accounts could exceed the Company’s estimates, and changes to estimates are accounted for in the period of change. The Company does not have any off-
balance sheet credit exposures to its customers.

Inventories: Inventory, which includes operational items such as food and beverages, is valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined
using an average cost method.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets: Prepaid expenses consists primarily of payments made for goods and services to be received in the near
future. Prepaid expenses consists of prepaid rents, sales tax, insurance premiums, deposits, and other costs. Other current assets of $676 and $980 at July 3,
2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively, are included with prepaid expenses on our consolidated balance sheets.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated principally on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful lives of individual assets or classes of assets.

Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Amortization of leasehold improvements is calculated principally on the straight-line method over the
lesser of the estimated useful life of the leasehold improvement or the lease term. Renewal periods are included in the lease term when the renewal is
determined to be reasonably assured.

Internal costs, including compensation and employee benefits for employees directly associated with capital projects, are capitalized and amortized over
the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 2 —39 years
Leasehold improvements lesser of asset’s useful life or lease term (1 month— 20 years)
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 2 — 15 years

Expenditures for routine maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the life of an asset are expensed as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the remaining life of the asset or, if applicable, the lease term. Upon retirement or sale of an asset, its cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from property and equipment and any gain or loss is recognized.

The Company’s policy is to capitalize interest cost incurred on debt during the construction of major projects. Interest costs are capitalizable for all
assets that require a period of time to get them ready for their intended use (an acquisition period). The amount capitalized in an accounting period is
determined by applying the capitalization rate to the accumulated expenditures for the asset during the period. The capitalization rate used is based on the rates
applicable to borrowings outstanding during the acquisition period.

Leases: For operating leases, we recognize rent expense straight-line over the lease term, including rent-free periods. To offset the costs of leasehold
improvements, some leases also provide allowances in the form of cash, or credits against monetary obligations payable by us within the lease. All lease
incentives are recorded as a liability and amortized over the term of the lease. Where applicable, we recognize contingent rent expense when total gross sales
exceed specific thresholds, and we accrue for contingent rent expense when probable those thresholds will be met. Future payments for contingent rent and
other costs such maintenance, insurance, taxes and other expenses are excluded from minimum lease payments. For capital leases, we record interest expense
on the obligation and amortize the asset over the lease term. We record a capital lease liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments over
the lease term discounted using the incremental borrowing rate for that lease. We calculate the current portion of our capital lease obligation as the total
payments that are due in the next 12 months that are attributed to principal payments in the capital lease obligation amortization schedule.

Tenant Improvement Incentives — The Company has leasehold improvement allowances of $14,254 and $15,100 as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021,
respectively, from landlords recorded as liabilities in other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities and amortized as a reduction of rent expense over
the life of the lease.

Internal Use Software: We capitalize qualifying software costs incurred during the “application development stage” when the preliminary project stage
has been completed, management has authorized the project, and it is probable that the project will be completed. The estimated useful life of internal-use
software is between three and five years.

Costs related to the development or purchase of internal-use software are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the software. Costs
that are capitalized include external direct costs of materials and services to develop or obtain the software, interest, and internal costs, including compensation
and employee benefits for employees directly associated with a software development project. As of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, the Company has
recognized internal use software, net of amortization, of $11,423 and $9,062, respectively. Amortization expense was $3,298 and $2,400 for the fiscal years
2022 and 2021, respectively.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: Goodwill is recognized for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed of businesses acquired.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets include liquor licenses and the Bowlero and Professional Bowlers Association trade names. The cost of purchasing
liquor licenses in quota controlled states are capitalized as indefinite lived intangible assets. Because the number of liquor licenses in a quota controlled state
are based on the population count, the values ascribed to these liquor licenses are primarily dependent on the supply and demand in the particular jurisdictions
in which they are issued. Liquor licenses are an intangible asset which are not assigned a useful life and not amortized. Bowlero is the corporate name of the
Company and the brand name associated with many of the Company’s bowling centers. Professional Bowlers Association is the brand name of the entity
owned by the Company associated with the main sanctioning body for ten-pin bowling. The fair value of the trade names stems from the customer appeal and
revenue streams derived from these brands.

Finite-lived intangible assets primarily include AMF and other acquired trade names, customer relationships and management contracts, which have
remaining useful lives ranging from 1 to 9 years. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized based on the pattern in which the economic benefits are used or on
a straight-line basis.

Favorable and Unfavorable leases: Favorable and unfavorable leases are included in other assets and other long-term liabilities, respectively, and are
amortized on a straight-line basis, over remaining lease terms, which range from 1 to 36 years.
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Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible and Long-Lived Assets: Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment at the reporting unit level. The
Company has determined it has one reporting unit, operating a bowling entertainment business.

We perform our annual impairment testing on the first day of our fiscal fourth quarter of each year. When evaluating goodwill and tradenames for
impairment, the Company first performs a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that its reporting unit or tradenames are
impaired. For fiscal 2021, the Company performed a quantitative assessment of goodwill using the income approach due to the economic impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic with the temporary closure of our centers. For fiscal 2022, the Company performed a qualitative assessment of goodwill and concluded it
was not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit was less than its carrying value. There were no impairment charges for goodwill or
indefinite-lived intangible assets, excluding liquor licenses, recorded in fiscal years 2022 or 2021.

For long-lived assets (such as property and equipment and other definite-lived intangibles), an impairment is indicated whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset or asset group’s carrying value may not be recoverable. An asset group may not be recoverable if the total estimated
undiscounted cash flows associated with the use and eventual disposition of the asset group is less than its carrying value. If the asset group isn’t recoverable
and the fair value is less than its carrying value, then an impairment exists and an adjustment is made to write down the asset to its fair value. The Company
recognized impairment charges of $1,548 and $386 in fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively. The impairment charges in fiscal years 2022 and 2021 relate to
long-lived assets and liquor licenses. We estimated the fair value of these assets utilizing either an income approach that projects the total cash flows from use
and eventual disposition of the asset group discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate, or a market based approach using orderly liquidation values or broker
quotes for sale of similar properties.

Derivatives: We are exposed to interest rate risk. To manage these risks, we entered into interest rate swap derivative transactions to manage the
interest rate risk associated with a portion of our outstanding debt. The interest rate swaps were designated for accounting purposes as cash flow hedges of
forecasted floating interest payments on variable rate debt. The Company's interest rate swaps expired on June 30, 2022.

For financial derivative instruments that are designated as a cash flow hedge for accounting purposes, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
financial derivative instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same line item associated with
the forecasted transaction, and in the same period or periods during which the forecasted transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the financial
derivative representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in current earnings.

We have entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively modified our exposure to interest rate risk by converting a portion of our interest
payments on floating rate debt to a fixed rate basis, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes on future interest expense. These agreements typically
involved the receipt of floating rate amounts in exchange for fixed interest rate payments over the life of the agreements without an exchange of the underlying
principal amount. See Note 9 - Debt for more information.

Self-Insurance Programs: The Company is self-insured for a portion of its general liability, workers’ compensation and certain health care exposures.
We also purchase stop-loss insurance coverage through third-party insurers. The undiscounted costs of these self-insurance programs are accrued based upon
estimates of settlements and costs for known and anticipated claims. For claims that exceed the deductible amount, the Company records a receivable
representing expected recoveries pursuant to the stop-loss coverage and a corresponding gross liability for its legal obligation to the claimant, since the
Company is not legally relieved of our obligation to the claimant. The Company recorded gross estimated liabilities of $15,797 and $17,363 at July 3, 2022 and
June 27, 2021, respectively, to cover known general liability, health and workers’ compensation claims, and the estimate of claims incurred but not reported.
Corresponding stop-loss receivables for expected recoveries of self-insured claims in the amounts of $4,414 and $4,780 were recorded at July 3, 2022 and
June 27, 2021, respectively.

The short-term portion of the self-insurance liabilities is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The long-term
portion is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The stop-loss receivable is included in other assets.
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Income Taxes: The Company utilizes the asset and liability approach in accounting for income taxes. We recognize income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we have a presence. For each jurisdiction, we estimate the actual amount of income taxes currently payable or receivable, as well as
deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded to recognize the expected future tax benefits or costs of events that
have been, or will be, reported in different years for financial statement purposes than tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which these items are
expected to reverse. We review our deferred tax assets to determine if it is more-likely-than-not that they will be realized. If we determine it is not more-likely-
than-not that a deferred tax asset will be realized, we record a valuation allowance to reverse the previously recognized tax benefit.

The Company recognizes tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions if we believe it is more likely than not the benefit will be realized. Recognized
income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected
in the period in which a change in judgment occurs.

Interest and penalties were $3 in fiscal year 2022 and $36 in fiscal year 2021. The U.S. federal, and in general, state returns are open to examination for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and thereafter. The net operating loss carryforward from fiscal year ended July 3, 2005 is also open to examination.

Revenue Recognition: The following table presents the Company’s revenue disaggregated by major revenue categories:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, June 27,
2022 % of revenues 2021 % of revenues

Major revenue categories:
Bowling $ 452,349 51% $ 203,730 52 %
Food and beverage 321,441 35 % 128,393 32 %
Amusement 118,940 13% 48,414 12 %
Media 18,975 2% 14,697 4%

Total revenues $ 911,705 100% $ 395,234 100 %

Bowling revenue — The Company recognizes revenue for providing bowling services to customers in exchange for consideration that is recognized as
revenue on the day that the services are performed. Any prepayments for bowling revenue are recognized as deferred revenue and recognized when earned.

Food and beverage revenue — Sales of food and beverages at our bowling centers are recognized at a point-in-time.

Amusement revenue — Amusement revenue includes amounts earned through arcades and other games. Similar to bowling and food and beverage
revenue, almost all of our revenue is earned at a point-in-time.

Media revenue — The Company earns media revenue from sanctioning official PBA tournaments and licensing media content to our customers, which
include television networks and multi-year contracts. The Company considers each tournament as a separate performance obligation because each tournament’s
pricing is negotiated separately and represents its stand-alone selling price based on the terms of the contract and the relative nature of the services provided.
Media revenue is generated through producing and licensing distribution rights to customers, which is recognized at the point-in-time the Company produces
and delivers programming for a respective tournament. Tournament revenue includes sponsorships, entry and host fees. Fees received for sponsorships and
tournaments are recognized as deferred revenue until the respective tournament occurs, at which point, the Company recognizes those fees as revenue.

The Company sells gift and game cards that do not expire. Gift and game card revenue is recognized as gift and game cards or game-play tokens are
redeemed by customers. The Company accrues unearned revenue as a liability for the unredeemed tickets that may be redeemed or used in the future. Gift and
game card sales are recorded as an unearned gift and game card revenue liability when sold. Unearned gift and game card revenue or deferred revenue is
reported in accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets and is disclosed in Note 8 - Accrued Expenses.

The Company also has a loyalty program called the Most Valuable Bowler (MVB) program. MVB participants earn rewards in the form of coupons or
points based on their cumulative spend with an expiration date. The loyalty program creates material rights, which are valued as separate performance
obligations and deferred until use or expiration. The deferred portion is included in deferred revenue and is not material to the financial statements.
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From time to time, the Company offers discount vouchers through outside vendors. Revenue for these vouchers is recognized as revenue when the
voucher is redeemed by the guest or as breakage on a pro-rated basis based on historical redemption patterns. Revenue is recognized for the gross amount paid
by customers for purchased vouchers. The fee paid to the outside vendors, in the form of the discount, is recognized in cost of revenues. We recognize this
revenue on a gross basis, as we are responsible for providing the service desired by the customer.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to government authorities are excluded from revenue in the consolidated statement of operations. The
remittance obligation is included in accrued liabilities until the taxes are sent to the appropriate taxing authorities.

Costs of Revenues: The Company’s costs of revenues all relate to center operations and are comprised primarily of fixed costs that are not variable or
less variable with changes in revenues, and include depreciation, amortization, property taxes, supplies, insurance, fixed rent, and utilities. Variable costs
included within costs of revenues primarily comprise labor, food and beverage costs, supplies, prize funds, variable rent, tournament production expenses and
amusement costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”): SG&A expenses are comprised primarily of employee costs, media and promotional
expenses, and depreciation and amortization (excluding those related to our center operations), and other miscellaneous expenses. A portion of SG&A costs are
not variable in nature and do not fluctuate significantly with changes in revenue, and include such expenses as depreciation, amortization and certain
compensation.

Other Operating Expenses: Other operating expenses comprise various costs primarily driven by professional fees and transactional related expenses
associated with business acquisitions, and foreign currency gains/losses.

Pre-Opening Costs: Pre-opening costs are expensed as incurred, and primarily consist of labor, rent, occupancy costs, travel, marketing expenses and
other miscellaneous expenses incurred prior to the opening of a new center.

Share-Based Compensation: Stock based compensation is recorded based on the grant-date fair value. Bowlero Corp. recognizes share-based
compensation on a straight-line basis or based on a graded vesting schedule over the requisite service period for time-based awards and recognizes the cost for
performance-based awards upon meeting performance targets. The Company does not recognize the effect of forfeitures until they occur. All compensation
expense for an award is recognized by the time it becomes fully vested. Stock based compensation is recorded in cost of revenues and selling, general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations based on the employees’ respective functions. The Company records deferred tax assets for
awards that may result in deductions on the Company’s income tax returns, based on the amount of compensation cost recognized and the Company’s statutory
tax rate in the jurisdiction in which it will receive a deduction.

We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to calculate the fair value of stock options. This option valuation model requires the use of
subjective assumptions, including the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock, the expected stock price volatility, and the expected term of the
option.

. Fair value of common stock - During the periods in which the Company was privately held, there was no public market for our stock. The fair
value of the Company’s equity was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors using a third-party valuation specialist and factors it believed
were material to the valuation process, including but not limited to, the price at which recent equity was issued by the Company to independent
third parties, actual and projected financial results, risks, prospects, economic and market conditions, and estimates of weighted average cost of
capital. The Company believed the combination of these factors provided an appropriate estimate of the expected fair value of the Company and
reflects the best estimate of the fair value of the Company’s common stock at each grant date. As a publicly held company, we now determine the
fair value of the Company’s common stock based on the closing market price on the date of grant.

. Expected Term - We estimate the expected term of our time-based awards to be the weighted average mid-point between the vesting date and the
end of the contractual term. We use this method to estimate the expected term since we do not have sufficient historical exercise data.

. Expected volatility — Given the limited market trading history as a publicly held company, and no public market for the Company’s shares prior to
the Closing Date, the expected volatility rate is based on an average historical stock price volatility of comparable publicly-traded companies in the
industry group.

. Risk-free interest rate — The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding
with the expected term of the option.
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. Expected dividend yield— The Company has not paid and does not expect to pay dividends. Consequently, the Company uses an expected
dividend yield of zero.

Advertising and Television Costs: Costs for advertising are expensed when incurred and recorded as operating expenses. Total advertising expenses
for fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were $3,942 and $3,576, respectively. Advertising expense is included within costs of revenues on the consolidated statement of
operations. Television spending, including costs associated with bowling tournaments that are televised, are capitalized as prepaid costs and expensed at the
time the event takes place.

Foreign Currency Translation: The Company’s financial statements are reported in U.S. dollars. Our foreign subsidiaries maintain their records in the
currency of the country in which they operate.

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Translation adjustments are
recorded in other comprehensive income (loss). Revenues and expenses are translated at rates of exchange in effect during the year. Transaction gains and
losses are recorded in net income (loss).

Commitments and contingencies: Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other sources
are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated.

Business Interruption Insurance: The Company recognized $20,188 of business interruption insurance recoveries as other operating income in the
consolidated statements of operations during fiscal year 2021, as a result of the insured claim resulting from the temporarily suspension of operations in
compliance with local, state, and federal governmental restrictions to prevent the spread of the COVID-19.

Series A Preferred Stock: As part of the reverse recapitalization, the Company issued redeemable Preferred Stock that is classified in temporary equity
as certain redemption provisions are not solely within the control of the Company. The pre-merger preferred stock was classified as temporary equity and
settled at the merger date. Please refer to Note 15 - Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity for more details.

Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders: We compute net loss per share of Class A common stock and Class B common stock
under the two-class method. Holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock have equal rights to the earnings of the Company. Our participating
securities include the redeemable convertible preferred stock that have a non-forfeitable right to dividends in the event that a dividend is paid on common
stock, but do not participate in losses, and thus are not included in a two-class method in periods of loss. Since the Company has reported net losses for all
periods presented, all potentially dilutive securities have been excluded from the calculation of the diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders as their effect is antidilutive and accordingly, basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is the same for all periods
presented. Dilutive securities include convertible preferred stock, warrants, earnouts, stock options, and restricted stock units (“RSUs”). See Note 17 - Net Loss
Per Share.

Earnouts: Following the Closing Date, Isos and Bowlero equity holders at the effective time of the Business Combination have the contingent right to
receive, in the aggregate, up to 22,361,278 shares of Class A common stock if, from the Closing Date until the fifth anniversary thereof, the reported closing
trading price of the Class A common stock exceeds certain thresholds. As of the Closing Date, since earnouts are subject to change in control acceleration
provisions, that result in settlement value not fully indexed to share price, all but 152,370 of the earnout shares are reported as a liability in the consolidated
balance sheets. Changes in the value of earnouts are recorded as a non-operating item in the consolidated statements of operations. Those earnout shares not
classified as a liability are classified as equity compensation to employees. The fair value of the earnout shares was estimated by utilizing a Monte-Carlo
simulation model. Inputs that have a significant effect on the earnout shares valuation include the expected volatility, stock price, expected term, risk-free
interest rate and the performance hurdles. The Company evaluated its earnouts under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 815-40, Derivatives
and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity, and concluded that they do not meet the criteria to be classified in stockholders’ equity. Since these earnouts
meet the definition of a derivative under ASC 815, the Company recorded these earnouts as long-term liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value upon the
Closing Date, with subsequent changes in their respective fair values recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss at each
reporting date. See Note 13 - Earnouts and Note 14 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments for further information.

Warrants: Previously outstanding warrants consisted of public warrants and private warrants, including warrants issued by Isos which continued to exist
following the Closing Date and warrants issued by the Company on the Closing Date. The outstanding warrants were accounted for as freestanding financial
instruments and were classified as liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The estimated fair value of the warrants is described in Note 12 -
Warrants. Changes in the value of warrants were recorded as a non-operating item in the statements of operations. The Company
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evaluated its warrants under ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity, and concluded that they do not meet the criteria to be
classified in stockholders’ equity. Since these warrants met the definition of a derivative under ASC 815, the Company recorded these warrants as long-term
liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value upon the Closing Date, with subsequent changes in their respective fair values recognized in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss at each reporting date. The Company completed the redemption of all outstanding publicly traded and
privately held warrants on May 16, 2022.

Emerging Growth Company Status: The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by
the JOBS Act, and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not
emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial
accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of
securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a
company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such
election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or
revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised
standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company’s financial statements with another
public company which is neither an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the extended transition period
difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards: 1In April 2020, the FASB issued interpretive guidance (Accounting for Lease Concessions Related to the
Effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic) in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The guidance permits entities to elect to not evaluate whether lease-related relief
that lessors provide to mitigate the economic effects of COVID-19 on lessees is a lease modification under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 840. This
election is available for concessions related to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic that do not result in a substantial increase in the rights of the lessor or our
obligations as the lessee, i.e. the total payments required by the modified contract are substantially the same or less than the total payments required by the
original contract. The FASB staff expects that reasonable judgement will be exercised in making those determinations and expects that there will be multiple
ways to account for those deferrals, none of which the staff believes are more preferable than the others. Two of those methods include:

a. Account for the concessions as if no changes to the lease were made. Under that method, a lessor would increase its lease receivable, and a lessee
would increase its liabilities as receivables/payments accrue. In its income statement, a lessor would continue to recognize income, and a lessee would
continue to recognize expense during the deferral period.

b. Account for the deferred payments as variable lease payments.
In certain circumstances, the Company adopted option (a) for deferrals of rental payments and option (b) for abatements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards: In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (“Topic 842”). Following ASU 2016-02, the
FASB issued subsequent guidance and amendments including ASU 2017-13, 2018-01, 2018-11, 2018-20, 2019-01, and 2020-05 (collectively, including ASU
2016-02, “Topic 842”). Topic 842 will replace the guidance in Topic 840. The main objectives are to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by recognizing right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. The right-
of-use asset reflects the lessee’s right to direct the use of and obtain substantially all the economic benefits from that asset over the lease term, and it will be
based on the lease liability at commencement, subject to certain adjustments such as accrued rent, lease incentives, lease intangibles, initial direct costs and
prepaid rent. The lease liability reflects the obligation to make payments for the right to use that asset, which is the present value of future payments. Operating
leases will remain being expensed on the straight-line basis of the lease, and finance leases will retain their front-loaded expense pattern, similar to current
capital leases.

As aresult of ASU 2020-05, Topic 842 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company has not adopted Topic 842, which be effective for the Company for its fiscal year ending 2023. We are
currently evaluating our lease population, current processes, internal controls, and timeline required for adoption. Additionally, we are still evaluating the
practical expedients and the methods of adoption that we will use when adopting the new standard. Although management continues to evaluate the effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and disclosures, management currently estimates
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total operating lease assets and liabilities will increase approximately $430,000 to $530,000, respectively, upon adoption based on the lease population as of
July 3, 2022. The Company estimates that this standard will result in a material impact to our balance sheet from the recognition of right of use assets and
liabilities. We do not believe the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on our statement of operations or cash flows.

(3) Business Combinations and Acquisitions

Business Combination: For accounting purposes, the Business Combination was treated as the equivalent of Bowlero Corp. issuing stock for the net
assets of Isos, accompanied by a recapitalization. The following summarizes the elements of the Business Combination to the consolidated statement of cash
flows, including the transaction funding, sources and uses of cash, and merger-related earnouts and warrants:

Recapitalization

Cash-Isos Acquisition Corporation Trust $ 254,851
Less: Isos transaction costs paid from Trust (23,869)
Less: Redemptions of existing shareholders of Isos (136,569)
Net cash proceeds from SPAC shareholders $ 94,413
Cash-PIPE issuance $ 150,604
Cash-Forward issuance 100,000
Net cash proceeds from SPAC shareholders 94,413
Cash-Preferred issuance 95,000
Less: Bowlero transaction costs (20,670)
Total cash received, net of transaction costs 419,347
Payoff of preferred stock and accumulated dividends (145,298)
Consideration to existing Bowlero shareholders (226,000)
Consideration to Bowlero option holders (15,467)
Total distributions (386,765)
Net cash received $ 32,582
Earnout liability $ 181,113
Warrant liability 22,426
Total liabilities recognized $ 203,539

After making adjustments to the issuance of the Business Combination consideration shares, the redemption of the Isos ordinary shares, the
consummation of the PIPE Offerings and the Forward Purchase Contract, the roll-over of vested options and the withholding of 1,068,884 shares for tax
obligations from certain current and former employees and the conversion of common shares to preferred shares, there were 165,378,145 shares of the
Common Stock issued and outstanding as of the Closing Date, of which 107,066,302 shares were Class A common stock and 58,311,203 shares were Class B
common stock. There were 17,225,692 warrants outstanding as of the Closing Date.

The Company expensed $2,956 in transaction costs for amounts allocated to that portion of the earnouts related to Bowlero rather than as an offset to
equity.

Acquisitions: The Company continually evaluates potential acquisitions, which can be either business combinations or asset purchases, that strategically
fit within the Company’s existing portfolio of centers as a key part of the Company’s overall growth strategy in order to expand our market share in key
geographic areas, and to improve our ability to leverage our fixed costs.

Acquisitions that meet the definition of a business under ASC 805, “Business Combinations,” are accounted for using the acquisition method of
accounting. The Company estimates the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date for business
combinations and utilizes valuation specialists to assist in doing so. For business combinations, we will continue to evaluate and refine the estimates used to
record the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed throughout the permitted measurement period, which may result in
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corresponding offsets to goodwill in future periods. We expect to finalize the valuations as soon as possible, but no later than one year from the acquisition
dates.

The goodwill acquired in the business combinations represents:

»  the value of an assembled workforce

»  future earnings and cash flow potential of these businesses, and

» the complementary strategic fit and resulting synergies these businesses bring to existing operations

From the business combinations during fiscal year 2022, $8,097 of the goodwill recognized is deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisitions that do not meet the definition of a business under ASC 805 are accounted for as an asset acquisition, using a cost accumulation model.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognized at cost, which is the consideration the acquirer transfers to the seller, including direct transaction costs,
on the acquisition date. The cost of the acquisition is then allocated to the assets acquired based on their relative fair values. Goodwill is not recognized in an
asset acquisition.

2022 Business Combinations: The Company’s accounting for the allocations of the purchase price for the acquisitions of bowling businesses that were
treated as business combinations at the dates of the respective acquisitions is based upon its understanding of the fair value of the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities. The Company obtains this information during due diligence and through other sources. The Company completed eight acquisitions for a total
consideration of $72,737. The Company's consolidated financial statements reflect final and preliminary allocations of the purchase price to the assets and
liabilities assumed based on fair value as of the date of the acquisition. The total consideration of acquisitions with final purchase price allocations was
$53,146. The one transaction with a preliminary purchase allocation, which occurred at the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022, was for a total consideration
0f $19,591. The Company’s preliminary estimate of the fair value of specifically identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition
is subject to change upon finalizing its valuation analysis. The remaining fair value estimates to finalize include working capital, intangibles, and property and
equipment. The final determination may result in changes in the fair value of certain assets and liabilities as compared to these preliminary estimates, which is
expected to be finalized in fiscal year 2023.

The following table summarizes the final and preliminary purchase price allocations for the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired, components of
consideration transferred and the transactional related expenses using the acquisition method of accounting:

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Final Preliminary Total

Current assets $ 2,531 $ 16 $ 2,547

Property and equipment 32,718 17,293 50,011

Identifiable intangible assets 3,400 620 4,020

Goodwill 14,944 1,762 16,706
Total assets acquired 53,593 19,691 73,284

Current liabilities (447) (100) (547)
Total liabilities assumed (447) (100) (547)
Total fair value, net of cash acquired of $49 $ 53,146 § 19,591 § 72,737

Components of consideration transferred

Cash 50,068 19,191 69,259

Holdback 1,608 400 2,008

Contingent consideration 1,470 — 1,470
Total consideration transferred $ 53,146 § 19,591 $ 72,737

Transaction expenses included in “other operating expense” in the consolidated

statement of operations for fiscal year 2022 $ 830 $ 241 § 1,121
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2022 Asset Acquisitions: The following table summarizes the application of the cost accumulation model to acquired bowling centers treated as asset
acquisitions:

Other Asset

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Bowl America Acquisition Total
Current assets $ 2,949 § 53 2,954
Property and equipment 40,121 8,564 48,685
Identifiable intangible assets 1,099 1,136 2,235
Assets held for sale 10,985 — 10,985
Current liabilities (1,426) (81) (1,507)
Deferred tax liability (9,107) — (9,107)

Total consideration transferred $ 44,621 § 9,624 § 54,245

2021 Business Combination: The Company acquired the following bowling business (“2021 Business Combination”) in fiscal year 2021 for a total
purchase price of $2,760, net of cash acquired. The balance sheets reflect assets acquired and liabilities assumed recorded at fair values and resulting
recognition of goodwill.

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation for the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired, components of consideration
transferred and the transactional related expenses using the acquisition method of accounting:

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Total

Current assets $ 90

Property and equipment 181

Identifiable intangible assets 465

Goodwill 2,350
Total assets acquired 3,086

Current liabilities 326
Total liabilities assumed 326
Total fair value, net of cash acquired of $5 $ 2,760

Components of consideration transferred

Cash $ 2,760
Transaction expenses included in "other operating expense" in the consolidated statement of operations for
fiscal year 2021 $ 69

The following summarizes key valuation approaches and assumptions utilized in calculating the fair values for Business Combinations and Asset
Acquisitions, which are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting and cost accumulation model, respectively:

Property and equipment — Buildings, improvements, and equipment are valued using the cost approach and land is valued at its highest and best use by
the market or sales comparison approach. The fair value of tangible personal property was determined primarily using variations of the cost approach. Certain
assets with an active secondary market were valued using the market approach. The current use of certain nonfinancial assets acquired differed from their
highest and best use, due to local market conditions, the value of the land exceeding the combined fair values of the land and building, and zoning and
commercial viability of the surrounding area. The valuation inputs used to determine the fair value of the land and building are based on level 3 inputs,
including discount rates, sales projections, and future cash flows.

Assets held for sale — We utilize a valuation specialist to assist with our determination of the assets held for sale estimated fair value less costs to sell,
using a market approach. These inputs are classified as level 2 fair value measurements.

Intangible assets — We acquired intangible assets including trade names, non-competition agreements, customer relationships, and liquor licenses.
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—  Trade names: Trade names are recognized during Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions using the relief-from-royalty method, which is
considered a Level 3 fair value measurement due to the use of unobservable inputs. Significant assumptions used in the calculation include: revenue
projections, a royalty rate based on qualitative factors and the market-derived royalty rates, discount rate based on the Company’s weighted average
cost of capital (WACC) adjusted for risks commonly inherent in trade names and an indefinite life for Professional Bowlers Association trade name as
management intends to use the trade name in perpetuity.

—  Non-Competition: Non-compete agreements are recognized during Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions. The Company records the fair
value of non-competition agreements using the differential discounted cash flow method income approach, a Level 3 fair value measurement due to
the use of unobservable inputs. Significant assumptions used in the fair value calculations for non-competition agreements include: potential
competitor impact on revenue and expense projections, discount rate based on the Company’s WACC adjusted for risks commonly inherent in
intangible assets, specifically non-compete agreements.

—  Customer relationships: The Company records customer relationships for bowling leagues for Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions based on
the fair value of relationships using the excess earnings income approach and discounted cash flow method, which are considered Level 3 fair value
measurements due to the use of unobservable inputs. Significant assumptions used in the fair value calculations for relationships include: revenue and
expense projections, customer retention rate for leagues, discount rate based on the Company’s WACC adjusted for risks inherent in intangible assets,
specifically customer relationships and the remaining useful life.

—  Liquor licenses: The Company records the fair value of brokered liquor licenses acquired in Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions using the
market approach. Significant assumptions used in the calculation include approximation based on recent sales of liquor licenses in the respective
jurisdictions and assignment of an indefinite useful life as licenses do not expire and can be sold to third parties.

Contingent Consideration — A business combination during fiscal year 2022 included $1,470 of contingent consideration. The contingency depends on
approvals by the local township that requires us to transfer real property in the event of certain decisions being made. The range of contingent consideration is
$0 - $1,470. We recorded the amount based on:

(i) The probability of the contingency being met
(i) A comparable sales approach to determine the value of the non-cash consideration.

These inputs are classified as level 3 on the fair value hierarchy.

Deferred Tax Liability — Since the Bowl America acquisition was a non-taxable stock acquisition, the Company recorded deferred tax liabilities for the
difference between the tax carryover basis and the book value of the opening balances, which were recorded and allocated based on fair values to the respective
assets acquired.

(4) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill:

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021:

Balance June 28, 2020 $ 724,932
Goodwill resulting from acquisitions made during fiscal 2021 2,350
Foreign currency translation adjustment (1,126)

Balance as of June 27, 2021 726,156
Goodwill resulting from acquisitions during fiscal 2022 16,706
Goodwill adjustments made during fiscal 2022 (193)

Balance as of July 3, 2022 $ 742,669
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Intangible Assets:
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Weighted Weighted
average Gross Net average Gross Net
life carrying Accumulated carrying life carrying Accumulated carrying
(in years) amount amortization amount (in years) amount amortization amount
Finite-lived intangible assets:
AMEF trade name 2 $ 9,900 $ (8,593) §$ 1,307 1 $ 9,900 $ (7,920) $ 1,980
Bowlmor trade name 0 6,500 (6,500) — 6 6,500 (2,600) 3,900
Other acquisition trade names 4 1,761 (651) 1,110 7 1,010 (173) 837
Customer relationships 2 21,112 (13,989) 7,123 3 18,370 (10,471) 7,899
Management contracts 2 1,800 (1,443) 357 2 1,800 (1,150) 650
Non-compete agreements 4 2,450 (1,067) 1,383 4 1,200 (514) 686
PBA member, sponsor & media
relationships 8 1,400 (504) 896 8 1,400 (322) 1,078
Other intangible assets 4 921 (133) 788 — — —
3 45,844 (32,880) 12,964 4 40,180 (23,150) 17,030
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Liquor licenses 9,629 — 9,629 9,027 — 9,027
PBA trade name 3,100 — 3,100 3,100 — 3,100
Bowlero trade name 66,900 — 66,900 66,900 — 66,900
79,629 — 79,629 79,027 — 79,027
$ 125473 § (32,880) $ 92,593 $ 119,207 $ (23,150) $ 96,057

The Company reviewed the estimated useful life of its Bowlmor tradename as part of the Company’s plans to rebrand its Bowlmor centers to Bowlero
centers. Based on that review, the Company determined that the intangible asset associated with the Company’s Bowlmor tradename has a useful life shorter
than initially estimated. During the fiscal quarter ended December 26, 2021, the Company adjusted the remaining useful life of the Bowlmor tradename from
5.75 years to 6 months. The change in useful life was made as a prospective adjustment and resulted in an increase in amortization expense of $3,412 for the
fiscal year ended July 3, 2022.

The following table shows amortization expense for finite-lived intangible assets for each reporting period:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Amortization expense $ 9,461 $ 6,030

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for finite-lived intangibles included in intangible assets in our consolidated Balance Sheet for the next
five fiscal years is as follows:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereafter

Amortization expense $ 6,088 $ 4453 § 879 $ 648 $ 370 $ 526

Favorable and unfavorable leases:

The Company has favorable lease assets of $30,732 and $34,618, net of $14,002 and $12,300 accumulated amortization, reported in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets for the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively. Total amortization expenses for fiscal years 2022 and 2021
were $4,265 and $3,075, respectively.

The Company has unfavorable lease liabilities of $294 and $1,096, net of $2,537 and $5,135 accumulated amortization, reported in other long-term
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets for the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively. Total amortization expenses for fiscal years
2022 and 2021 were $478 and $458, respectively.
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(5) Property and Equipment

As of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, property and equipment consists of:

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Land 77,006 $ 19,879
Buildings and improvements 69,219 16,155
Leasehold improvements 349,534 313,441
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 375,780 315,719
Construction in progress 15,638 27,028
887,177 692,222
Accumulated depreciation (352,456) (276,561)
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 534,721 § 415,661
The following table shows depreciation expense related to property and equipment for each reporting period:
Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Depreciation expense $ 77471 $ 67,934

Assets held for sale:

Total assets held for sale at July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021 of $8,789 and $686, included liquor licenses of $315 and $175, respectively. Assets held for
sale are valued at the lower of its carrying value or its fair value less the costs to sell. During the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, we acquired approximately
$8,474 in real property, which we plan to sell within the next 12 months.

(6) Leases

The Company leases various assets under non-cancellable operating and capital leases. These assets include bowling centers, office space, vehicles, and
equipment.

The Company has three master lease agreements with a single landlord covering over 200 bowling centers. Our three master leases contain initial terms
ending in 2044 and 2047 with 8 renewal options for 10 years each. Most of our real estate leases have terms ranging from 10 to 15 years with renewal options
that are typically for five years each.

Most of our leases contain payments for some or all of the following: base rent, contingent rent, common area maintenance, insurance, real-estate taxes,
and other operating expenses. Rental payments are subject to escalation depending on future changes in designated indices or based on pre-determined amounts
agreed upon at lease inception.

Operating Leases: We recorded accrued rent of $26,417 and $26,853 within other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively.

In addition to previously received rent concessions, in response to the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, in March 2022, the Company
received a rent concession related to an operating lease in the form of a rent abatement retroactive to April 1, 2020 for amounts which had been previously
recognized as rent expense. We elected to not account for this concession as a modification in accordance with the relief provided by the FASB staff. As a
result, we recognized rent abatements of $7,470 (85,603 allocated to cost of revenues and $1,867 allocated to selling, general and administrative expenses) as a
reduction of rent expense during fiscal year 2022.

Capital Leases: We had $47,298 and $34,609 in accumulated amortization on property and equipment under capital leases as of July 3, 2022 and
June 27, 2021, respectively
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The following tables summarize the Company’s costs for operating and capital leases:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Operating Leases
Rent expense $ 55,189 § 58,114
Capital Leases
Interest expense $ 39,514 $ 35,599
Amortization expense 12,940 12,870
Total capital lease cost $ 52,454 § 48,469
The future minimum rent payments under our operating and capital leases as of July 3, 2022, were as follows:
Operating Leases Capital Leases
2023 $ 49,783 $ 41,261
2024 46,800 42,524
2025 50,345 42,551
2026 47,767 37,426
2027 48,269 39,989
Thereafter 525,028 995,185
Total rent payments $ 767,992 $ 1,198,936
Less: Imputed interest payments for capital leases 798,306
Present value of capital lease obligation $ 400,630

(7) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The table below presents supplemental cash flow information for each reporting period:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ 88,292 §$ 81,685

Income taxes, net of refunds 3,898 818
Noncash investing and financing transactions:

Capital expenditures in accounts payable 8,895 4,193

Capital lease assets obtained in exchange for capital lease liabilities 7,463 5,401

Modifications of capital lease assets and liabilities (15,001) 6,971

Change in fair value of interest rate swap 8,869 8,631

Issuance of warrants in Business Combination 22,426

Issuance of earnout shares in Business Combination 181,113

Warrant redemption (40,156) —

Unsettled treasury stock trade payable 3,094 —
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(8) Accrued Expenses
As of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, accrued expenses consist of:

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021

Compensation $ 15,746 $ 13,577
Taxes and licenses 11,568 9,646
Customer deposits 10,728 7,114
Insurance 5,229 8,285
Deferred revenue 6,384 5,885
Utilities 4,185 3,399
Deferred rent 3,252 4,384
Professional fees 3,062 4,473
Interest 498 4,693
Other 2,202 2,194

Total accrued expenses $ 62,854 $ 63,650
(9) Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s debt structure as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021:
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
First Lien Credit Facility Term Loan (Maturing July 3, 2024 and bearing variable rate interest; 5.17% and 4.55% at
July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively, excluding impact of hedging) $ 790,271 $ 800,534
New Revolver (Maturing April 4, 2024 and bearing variable rate interest; 4.13% at July 3, 2022) 86,434 —
First Lien Credit Facility Revolver — 39,853
Incremental Liquidity Facility — 45,000
876,705 885,387

Less:

Unamortized financing costs (6,649) (9,800)

Current portion of unamortized financing costs 3,245 3,152

Current maturities of long-term debt (8,211) (8,211)

Total long-term debt $ 865,090 § 870,528
As of July 3, 2022, minimum repayments of debt by fiscal year were as follows:
2023 $ 8,211
2024 94,645
2025 773,849
$ 876,705

First Lien Credit Facility Term Loan: The First Lien Credit Facility Term Loan is repaid on a quarterly basis on the last business day of the last month
of each calendar quarter in principal payments of $2,053.

Obligations owed under the First Lien Credit Facility Term Loan bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the applicable LIBOR rate, subject to a floor
of 1.00%, plus an applicable margin of 3.50%. Interest on term loans under the First Lien Facility bearing interest based upon the Base Rate will be due
quarterly, and interest on loans bearing interest based upon the LIBOR rate will be due on the last day of each relevant interest period or, if sooner, on the
respective dates that fall every three months after the beginning of such interest period.

Pursuant to the First Lien Guarantee and Collateral Agreements, obligations owed under the First Lien Credit Facility are secured by a first priority
security interest on substantially all assets of Bowlero Corp and the guarantor
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subsidiaries. The First Lien Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, restrictions on indebtedness, liens, investments, asset dispositions,
dividends and affirmative and negative covenants.

New Revolver: On December 15, 2021, the Company entered into a Sixth Amendment (“Sixth Amendment”) to the First Lien Credit Agreement, by and
among Bowlero, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the lenders.

Pursuant to the Sixth Amendment, the revolving credit facility under the First Lien Credit Agreement was refinanced and replaced by a $140,000 senior
secured revolving credit facility (“New Revolver”), which has a maturity date of the earlier of December 15, 2026 or the date that is 90 days prior to the
scheduled maturity date of any term loans outstanding under the First Lien Credit Agreement in an aggregate principal amount exceeding $175,000. Since the
term loan under the First Lien Credit Agreement matures on July 3, 2024, the maturity date for the New Revolver is currently April 4, 2024. Interest on
borrowings under the New Revolver is initially based on either the Adjusted Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) or the Alternate Base Rate, as
further described in the First Lien Credit Agreement.

In addition, on December 17, 2021, Bowlero entered into a Seventh Amendment (“Seventh Amendment”) to the First Lien Credit Agreement pursuant to
which the total revolving commitments under the New Revolver were increased by $25,000 to an aggregate amount of $165,000. No changes, other than
increasing the aggregate principal amount of revolving commitments thereunder, were made to the terms of the New Revolver in connection with the Seventh
Amendment.

The New Revolver is subject to, among other provisions, covenants regarding indebtedness, liens, negative pledges, restricted payments, certain
prepayments of indebtedness, cross-default with other agreements relating to indebtedness, investments, fundamental changes, disposition of assets, sale and
lease-back transactions, transactions with affiliates, amendments of or waivers with respect to restricted debt and permitted activities of Bowlero. In addition,
the New Revolver is subject to a financial covenant requiring that the First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the First Lien Credit Agreement) not exceed
6.00:1.00 as of the end of any fiscal quarter if the New Revolver is at least 35% utilized (subject to certain exclusions) at the end of such fiscal quarter.

The New Revolver is also subject to customary events of defaults. Payment of borrowings under the New Revolver may be accelerated if there is an
event of default, and Bowlero would no longer be permitted to borrow additional funds under the New Revolver while a default or event of default were
outstanding. No changes were made to the terms of the term loan under the First Lien Credit Agreement in connection with the Sixth Amendment or the
Seventh Amendment.

Incremental Liquidity Facility: On December 15, 2021, the principal, accrued and unpaid interest and fees outstanding under the Incremental Liquidity
Facility were repaid in full and all commitments to extend credit thereunder were terminated and any security interests and guarantees in connection therewith
were terminated and/or released.

The Company had previously entered into a $150,000 Incremental Liquidity Facility with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as the lender with a maturity
date of July 3, 2024 at an interest rate of the applicable LIBOR rate plus an initial applicable margin of 3.00%. The loan was structured as a revolver, with
$45,000 utilized at the closing date and with the remaining $105,000 available subject to approval by Atairos as credit support provider and the prior
satisfaction of certain conditions. The Incremental Liquidity Facility was secured on a pari passu first lien basis with the existing credit facility (with respect to
assets of Bowlero Corp. and its guarantor subsidiaries).

First Lien Credit Facility Revolver: On December 15, 2021, the principal, accrued and unpaid interest and fees outstanding under the First Lien Credit
Agreement Revolver were repaid in full and all commitments to extend credit thereunder were terminated and any security interests and guarantees in
connection therewith were terminated and/or released.

The Company had previously entered into a $50,000 First Lien Credit Facility Revolver with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as the lender with a maturity
date of July 3, 2022. Obligations owed under the First Lien Credit Facility bore interest at a rate per annum equal to the applicable LIBOR rate, subject to a
floor of 1.00%, plus an applicable margin of 3.75% to 4.25% depending on the leverage level. Interest on loans under the First Lien Facility bearing interest
based upon the Base Rate was due quarterly, and interest on loans bearing interest based upon the LIBOR rate was due on the last day of each relevant interest
period or, if sooner, on the respective dates that fall every three months after the beginning of such interest period. The Base Rate was defined as a rate per
annum equal to the highest of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day plus 0.50%, (b) to the extent ascertainable, the Published LIBOR Rate
plus 1.00%, (c) the Prime Rate and (d) solely with respect to the expanded term loan under the July 2018 Credit Agreement, 2.00%.

Pursuant to the First Lien Credit Agreement collateral and guarantee requirement, obligations owed under the First Lien Credit Facilities were secured
by a first priority security interest on substantially all assets of Bowlero Corp. and the
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guarantor subsidiaries. The First Lien Credit Agreement contained customary events of default, restrictions on indebtedness, liens, investments, asset
dispositions, dividends and affirmative and negative covenants.

Letters of Credit: Outstanding standby letters of credit as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021 totaled $9,136 and $9,100, respectively, and are
guaranteed by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. The available amount of the New Revolver is reduced by the outstanding standby letters of credit as of July 3,
2022 and the available amount of the First Lien Credit Facility Revolver was reduced by the outstanding standby letters of credit as of June 27, 2021.

Covenant Compliance: The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants as of July 3, 2022.

Interest rate swaps and caps

Derivatives: The Company used interest rate swaps and cap agreements which expired as of July 3, 2022, to convert a portion of its variable interest rate
exposure to fixed rates to protect the Company from future interest rate increases. The Company’s interest rate swap and cap agreements consist of the
following:

June 27, 2021

Notional
Amounts Expiration
Interest rate swaps $ 552,500 June 30, 2022
Interest rate caps 97,500 March 31, 2022
Total notional amounts $ 650,000

Under the swap agreements, the Company paid a fixed rate of interest of 2.561% and received an average variable rate of the one-month LIBOR
adjusted monthly. Under the interest rate cap agreements, the Company paid a fixed rate fee of 0.179% on the notional amount and had a strike rate of 3.00%.

The fair value of the swap and cap agreements as of June 27, 2021 was a liability of $8,869, and was included in other current liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) into income during each reporting period were as follows:

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021

Interest expense reclassified from AOCI into net loss $ 8,809 $ 9,002

The fair value of the swap and cap Agreements excludes accrued interest and takes into consideration current interest rates and current likelihood of the
swap counterparties’ compliance with its contractual obligations. There are no income taxes related to the amounts recorded to AOCI due to tax credits and the
full valuation allowance on deferred taxes.

(10) Income Taxes

Total loss before income taxes consists of:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Loss before tax:
U.S. $ (31,388) $ (123,360)
Foreign 764 (4,136)
Total loss before tax $ (30,624) $ (127,496)
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Income tax (benefit) expense consists of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Current income tax provision:
Federal $ 2,481 $ —
State and local 3,601 505
Foreign 107 (122)
Total current provision 6,189 383
Deferred income tax provision:
Federal (6,307) 9
State and local (895) (1,707)
Foreign 323 280
Total deferred provision (6,879) (1,418)
Total income tax benefit $ (690) $ (1,035)

The 2022 and 2021 provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory rate to the income before income taxes
primarily due to the changes in the valuation allowance, state and local taxes and for 2022, items associated with the Business Combination and asset
acquisitions.

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Federal statutory rate $ (6,431) 21.0% $ (26,774) 21.0 %
State and local tax net of federal benefit 6,675 (21.8) (6,190) 4.9
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (29,901) 97.6 34,060 (26.7)
Business Combination and asset acquisition items 10,800 (35.3) — —
Compensation limited by section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code 17,590 (57.4) — —
Uncertain tax positions 1 — 2 0.0
Foreign tax rate difference 65 0.2) (1,251) 1.0
Other 511 (1.6) (882) 0.6
Effective tax rate $ (690) 23% $ (1,035) 0.8 %

The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted by the reduction of the valuation allowance due to the recognition of deferred tax liabilities with the
Bowl America acquisition, as well as becoming subject to Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code that limits executive compensation tax deductibility
and non-deductible transaction related costs as a result of the Business Combination. The increase in state and local tax expense reflects higher taxable income
and the impact of having fully utilized net operating losses in certain states.

As of July 3, 2022, the Company had a net consolidated income tax receivable of $147 reflected in other current assets, a current consolidated income
tax payable of $2,417 reflected in other current liabilities and a non-current consolidated income tax payable of $27 reflected in other long-term liabilities. As
of June 27, 2021, the Company had a net consolidated income tax receivable of $119 reflected in other current assets and a non-current consolidated income
tax payable of $26 reflected in other long-term liabilities.
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The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities consist

of:
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Deferred income tax assets:
Reserves not currently deductible $ 21,961 $ 40,458
Capital lease liability 105,157 98,545
Net operating loss, interest, and tax credit carryforwards 109,504 132,184
Subtotal 236,622 271,187
Less: Valuation allowance 138,605 166,323
Total net deferred income tax assets 98,017 104,864
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment 83,994 85,377
Favorable and unfavorable leases 7,827 8,886
Goodwill and intangibles 21,078 22,468
Total deferred income tax liabilities 112,899 116,731
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ 14882 $ 11,867

As of July 3, 2022, the Company has U.S. tax credit carryforwards of $209, U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of $460,572, and
interest carryforward of $20,825. As of June 27, 2021, the Company has U.S. tax credit carryforwards of $209, U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards
(NOLs) of $546,452, and interest carryforward of $24,340. The tax credits were generated in the July 1, 2007 and June 29, 2008 tax years. The credits have a
20-year federal carryover period and will begin to expire starting in the fiscal year ending 2027. The NOL carryforwards will begin to expire in 2023. The
interest carryforward and $37,851 of NOL carryforwards do not expire.

Realization of deferred tax assets associated with deductible temporary differences, net operating losses and other carryforwards is dependent on
generating sufficient future taxable income. Under Sections 382 and 383 of the Code, the Company’s federal net operating loss carryforwards and other tax
attributes may become subject to an annual limitation in the event of certain cumulative changes in the ownership of the Company’s stock. An “ownership
change” pursuant to Section 382 of the Code generally occurs if one or more stockholders or group of stockholders who own at least 5% of a company’s stock
increase their ownership by more than 50 percentage points over their lowest ownership percentage within a rolling three year period. The Company’s ability to
utilize certain net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes to offset future taxable income or tax liabilities may be limited as a result of ownership
changes. Similar rules may apply under state laws. It is currently estimated that $276,057 of the Company’s NOLSs are subject to limitation due to the changes
in ownership that occurred in 2004 and 2017 and that $195,900 of this amount may expire unused even if there is sufficient taxable income to absorb such
NOLs. The Company has not experienced an ownership change, as defined under Section 382 and 383, since July 2017.

Based on the historical losses of the Company and limitations placed on NOLs due to changes in ownership in 2004 and 2017, the Company believes it
is more-likely-than-not that the Company will not realize the benefit of certain deferred tax assets, and, accordingly, has established a valuation allowance
against certain deferred tax assets of $138,605 as of July 3, 2022 and $166,323 as of June 27, 2021.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal years ended July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021 was as
follows:

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Balance at beginning of year $ 26 $ 22
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1 4
Reductions for tax positions of prior years — —
Tax settlements — —
Balance at end of year $ 27 $ 26

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate at July 3, 2022 was $6, along with $21 affecting
deferred taxes. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate at June 27, 2021 was $5, along with $21
affecting deferred taxes.

As of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, the Company had not recorded an income tax liability on certain undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries.
It is expected that these earnings will be permanently reinvested in the operations within the respective country. The Company has not calculated the deferred
tax liability that would come due if the earnings were distributed to the U.S. as the calculations are not material.

(11) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation and Claims: The Company is currently, and from time to time may be, subject to claims and actions arising in the ordinary course of its
business, including general liability, fidelity, workers’ compensation, employment claims, and Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) claims. The Company
has insurance to cover general liability and workers’ compensation claims and reserves for claims and actions in the ordinary course. The insurance is subject to
a self-insured retention. In some actions, plaintifts request punitive or other damages that may not be covered by insurance.

There is currently a group of approximately 76 pending claims, filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (the “EEOC”) between 2016
and 2019, generally relating to claims of age discrimination. To date, the EEOC issued determinations of probable cause as to thirteen of the charges, which the
Company contests and intends to defend vigorously. The EEOC has also alleged a pattern or practice of age discrimination, which resulted in a determination
of probable cause and, on August 22, 2022, a proposal for the Company to participate in conciliation. The EEOC’s proposal includes a demand for monetary
and non-monetary remedies. The Company contests such determination and intends to defend vigorously. The Company cannot estimate the possible range of
loss, if any, associated with these EEOC matters.

(12) Warrants

Warrant activity from the Closing Date to July 3, 2022 is as follows:

Warrants ‘Warrants
outstanding at outstanding at July
Closing Date Repurchased Exercised @ Redeemed 3,2022
Publicly traded warrants 11,827,864 (2,690,272) (9,128,891) (8,701) —
Private placement warrants 3,778,480 — (3,778,480) — —
Unvested private placement warrants 1,619,348 = (1,619,348) — —
Total 17,225,692 (2,690,272) (14,526,719) (8,701) —

a - As a result of exercising the warrants, 4,266,439 shares of Class A common stock were issued, of which 475,440 shares that were issued in exchange for
unvested private placement warrants are subject to additional earnout provisions. Please refer to Note 13 - Earnouts for more details on the additional Earnout
Shares.

Share and Warrant Repurchase Plan: On February 7, 2022, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a share and warrant
repurchase program providing for repurchases of up to $200,000 of the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock and warrants through February 3, 2024.
2,690,272 warrants were repurchased for
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$5,382 under the repurchase program as of July 3, 2022. Please refer to Note 15 - Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity for more details on
share repurchases under the program.

Redemption of Public and Private Placement Warrants: On April 14, 2022, the Company announced that it would redeem all of its outstanding publicly
traded and privately held warrants to purchase shares of its Class A common stock as of May 16, 2022 (the “Redemption Date”) for a redemption price of $0.10
per warrant (the “Redemption Price”).

After the announcement and prior to the Redemption Date, holders of the warrants could choose to elect to exercise their warrants on a “cashless basis”
by receiving a number of shares of Class A common stock based on the volume weighted average price of the Class A common stock for the ten trading days
immediately following on the third trading day prior to the date on which notice of redemption was delivered to holders (the “Redemption Fair Market Value”),
which was $12.0985 per warrant. As a result, holders who exercised their warrants on a “cashless” basis before the Redemption Date received 0.2936 shares of
Class A common stock per warrant exercised.

As a result of the completion of the redemption of the warrants, the Company issued 4,266,439 shares of Class A common stock after 9,128,891 publicly
traded warrants and 5,397,828 privately held warrants were exercised on a cash or cashless basis. The Company redeemed 8,701 publicly traded warrants at the
redemption price of $0.10 per warrant. The amount of cash generated from the exercise of warrants and the amount of cash paid at the redemption price of
$0.10 per warrant was not material. In connection with the warrant redemption, the warrants ceased trading on the NYSE and were delisted. The change in
value of the warrants was recorded through earnings through the settlement date. The Company no longer has any warrants outstanding.

(13) Earnouts

Old Bowlero’s stockholders and option holders received additional shares of Bowlero common stock (the “Earnout Shares”). Earnout Shares vest during
the period from and after the Closing Date until the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date (the “Earnout Period”). The following tranches of Earnout Shares
were issued to Old Bowlero stockholders:

(a) 10,375,000 Earnout Shares, if the closing share price of Bowlero’s Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (Class A common stock)
equals or exceeds $15.00 per share for any 10 trading days within any consecutive 20-trading day period that occurs after the Closing Date and

(b) 10,375,000 Earnout Shares, if the closing share price of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per share for any 10 trading days within
any consecutive 20-trading day period.

During the Earnout Period, if Bowlero experiences an Acceleration Event, which as detailed in the BCA includes a change of control, liquidation or
dissolution of the Company, bankruptcy or the assignment for the benefit of creditors the appointment of a custodian, receiver or trustee for all or substantially
all the assets or properties of the Company, then any Earnout Shares that have not been previously issued by Bowlero (whether or not previously earned) to the
Bowlero stockholders or holders of Options or Earnout shares issued but not vested will be deemed earned and issued or vested by Bowlero as of immediately
prior to the Acceleration Event, unless, in the case of an Acceleration Event, the value of the consideration to be received by the holders of Bowlero common
stock in such change of control transaction is less than the applicable stock price thresholds described above. If the consideration received in such Acceleration
Event is not solely cash, Bowlero’s Board of Directors will determine the treatment of the Earnout Shares.

As part of the Sponsor Support Agreement, the Sponsor and LionTree were issued 1,611,278 Earnout Shares which vest during the period from and after
the Closing Date until the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date: (a) 805,639 Earnout Shares if the closing share price of Bowlero’s Class A common stock
equals or exceeds $15.00 per share for any 10 trading days within any consecutive 20-trading day period that occurs after the Closing Date and (b) 805,639
Earnout Shares, if the closing share price of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per share for any 10 trading days within any consecutive 20-
trading day period. As a result of the cashless exercise of their unvested private placement warrants, the Sponsor and LionTree were issued 475,440 additional
Earnout Shares, which vest during the period from and after the Closing Date until the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date: (a) 237,721 Earnout Shares if the
closing share price of Bowlero’s Class A common stock equals or exceeds $15.00 per share for any 10 trading days within any consecutive 20-trading day
period that occurs after the Closing Date and (b) 237,719 Earnout Shares, if the closing share price of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per
share for any 10 trading days within any consecutive 20-trading day period.

All but 129,336 Earnout Shares are classified as a liability and changes in the fair value of the Earnout Shares in future periods will be recognized in the

statement of operations. Those Earnout Shares not classified as a liability are classified as equity compensation to employees and recognized as compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over the expected term or upon the contingency being met.
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(14) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Debt

The fair value and carrying value of our debt as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021 are as follows:

July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Carrying value $ 876,705 $ 885,387
Fair value 841,637 887,102

The fair value of our debt is estimated based on trading levels of lenders buying and selling their participation levels of funding (Level 2).

There were no transfers in or out of any of the levels of the valuation hierarchy in fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Company holds certain liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The following table is a summary of fair value
measurements and hierarchy level as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021:

July 3, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Earnout shares $ — 3 — 3 210,952 $ 210,952
Contingent consideration — — 1,470 1,470
Total liabilities $ — — 3 212,422 $ 212,422

June 27, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Interest rate swaps and caps $ = 8,869 $ - 8,869
Total liabilities $ —  $ 8,869 § — 8 8,869

&~
&

The fair value of earn-out shares was established using a Monte Carlo simulation Model (level 3 inputs). The key inputs into the Monte Carlo simulation
as of July 3, 2022 were as follows:

Earnout
Expected term in years 4.45
Expected volatility 55%
Risk-free interest rate 2.87 %
Stock price $ 11.00

Dividend yield -

The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the estimated fair value of the Company's Level 3 Earnout liability for the year ended July 3,
2022:

June 27, Changes in fair July 3,
2021 Issuances @ Settlements value 2022
Earnout liability $ — 3 185,152 $ — 3 25,800 $ 210,952
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a - In addition to the earnout liability resulting from the Business Combination, the issuances include $3,854 related to the 475,440 shares subject to earnout
provisions that were issued upon the cashless exercise of unvested private placement warrants. Please refer to Note 13 - Earnouts for more details on the
additional Earnout Shares.

Redeemable Common Stock - Old Bowlero

The redeemable common stock of Old Bowlero was not listed on an established public trading market, therefore, market prices were not available. The
Company utilized an independent valuation specialist to assist with determining the fair market value of our redeemable common stock based upon our
estimated enterprise value using the income approach, which includes the use of Level 3 inputs. As a result, the redeemable common stock was classified
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of Old Bowlero's redeemable common stock included projected
revenue growth and costs and expenses, which were based on internal projections, historical performance, and the business environment, as well as the
selection of an appropriate discount rate based on weighted-average cost of capital and company-specific risk premium. See Note 15 - Common Stock,
Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity, for further information.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

The Company’s significant assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis subsequent to their initial recognition include assets held for sale. We
utilize third party broker estimate of value amounts to record the assets held for sale at their fair value less costs to sell. These inputs are classified as Level 2
fair value measurements.

Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses. The financial
statement carrying amounts of these items approximate the fair value due to their short duration.

(15) Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue three classes of stock to be designated, respectively, Class A common stock, Class B common stock (together with
Class A common stock, the “Common Stock”) and Preferred Stock. The total number of shares of capital stock which the Corporation shall have authority to
issue is 2,400,000,000, divided into the following:
Class A:

e Authorized: 2,000,000,000 shares, with a par value of $0.0001 per share as of July 3, 2022. As of June 27, 2021, Old Bowlero authorized 496,829,868
shares at a $.0001 par value per share, which is inclusive of redeemable Common Stock.

¢ Issued and Outstanding: 110,395,630 shares (inclusive of 3,209,972 shares contingent on certain stock price thresholds but excluding 3,430,667 shares
held in treasury) as of July 3, 2022. As of June 27, 2021, Old Bowlero had 146,848,328 shares issued and outstanding, which is inclusive of
redeemable Common Stock.
Class B:
*  Authorized: 200,000,000 shares, with a par value of $0.0001 per share as of July 3, 2022. There were no Class B shares authorized as of June 27, 2021
e Issued and Outstanding: 55,911,203 shares as of July 3, 2022.

Preferred Stock:

*  Authorized: 200,000,000 shares, with a par value of $0.0001 per share as of July 3, 2022. As of June 27, 2021, Old Bowlero had 4,968,299 shares
authorized at a $0.0001 par value per share.

e Issued and Outstanding: 200,000 shares and 2,642,587 shares as of July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, respectively
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The rights of the holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock are identical, except with respect to conversion and voting. Shares of
Class B common stock are convertible into an equivalent number of shares (one-for-one) of Class A common stock automatically upon transfer, or upon the
earliest to occur of the 15th anniversary of the Closing Date, or terms associated with Thomas F. Shannon, which consists of his death or disability, ceasing to
beneficially own at least 10% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock or his employment as our CEO for being
terminated for cause. Holders of Class B common stock may convert their shares into shares of Class A common stock at any time at their option. Holders of
Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share and holders of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Any dividends paid to the
holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock will be paid out in shares. On a liquidation event, any distribution to common stockholders is
made on a pro rata basis to the holders of the Class A common stock and Class B common stock.

Redeemable Common Stock - Old Bowlero

Old Bowlero had issued 51,397,025 shares (“Old Bowlero Redeemable Common Stock”) to its Chairman and CEO on July 3, 2017. These shares were
subject to a repurchase option in the event of the Chairman’s death or disability. The amount presented in temporary equity as of June 27, 2021 represents the
estimated fair value of those shares. Old Bowlero’s obligation to repurchase these shares would terminate upon the occurrence of a Change of Control or upon
the consummation of a Public Offering. The increase in the repurchase obligation was recorded via adjustments to additional paid-in capital.

As of the Closing Date, we exchanged 51,397,025 shares of Old Bowlero Redeemable Common Stock for 51,397,025 shares of Class B Common stock
of the Company. As of July 3, 2022, there was no Old Bowlero Redeemable Common Stock remaining.

Series A Preferred Stock - Old Bowlero

Old Bowlero had issued 2,642,587 shares of Old Bowlero Series A Preferred Stock (“Old Bowlero Preferred Stock’) which were outstanding as of
June 27, 2021. There were no voting rights associated with the Old Bowlero Preferred Stock. Dividends accumulated on a daily basis commencing from the
July 3, 2017 issue date. The dividend rate was 8% for the first 3 years. Effective November 15, 2019, the rate following the first three years was amended from
10% to 6%. The Old Bowlero Preferred Stock was redeemable at the option of Old Bowlero at any time on or after July 3, 2020. The Old Bowlero Preferred
Stock was classified as temporary equity because the shares had certain redemption features that were not solely in the control of the reporting entity.

As of the Closing Date, we redeemed the Old Bowlero Preferred Stock with a cash payment of $145,298. As of July 3, 2022, there was no Old Bowlero
Preferred Stock outstanding.

Series A Preferred Stock

As of July 3, 2022, the Company had issued and outstanding 200,000 shares of Preferred Stock. Holders of Preferred Stock have voting rights in certain
matters that require vote or consent of holders representing a majority of the outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock. There are no other voting rights
associated with the Preferred Stock as long as management holds over 50% of the equity voting power.

Dividends accumulate on a cumulative basis on a 360-day year commencing from the issue date. The dividend rate is fixed at 5.5% per annum on a
liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. Payment dates are June 30 and December 31 of each year with a record date of June 15 for the June 30 payment
date and December 15 for the December 31 payment date. Declared dividends will be paid in cash if the Company declares the dividend to be paid in cash. If
the Company does not pay all or any portion of the dividends that have accumulated as of any payment date, then the dollar amount of the dividends not paid in
cash will be added to the liquidation preference and deemed to be declared and paid in-kind. As of July 3, 2022, there have been no dividends declared or paid
in cash. For the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, accumulated dividends in the amount of $6,002 were added to the liquidation preference and deemed to be
declared and paid in-kind. For the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, dividends in the amount of $6,097 have accumulated on the Preferred Stock.

The Preferred Stock is redeemable if a Fundamental Change occurs and each holder will have the right to require the Company to repurchase such
holders’ shares of Preferred Stock or any portion thereof for a cash purchase price. A Fundamental Change includes events such as a person or a group
becoming direct or indirect owners of shares of the Company’s Common Stock representing more than 50% of the voting power, consummation of a
transaction with which all the Common Stock is exchanged for, converted into, acquired for, or constitutes solely the right to receive cash or other property,
Company’s stockholders approve any plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of the Company, or the Company’s Common Stock ceases to be listed
on any of the NYSE or The Nasdaq Global Market or The Nasdaq Global Select Market (or any of their respective successors).
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The Preferred Stock has conversion options providing (1) the holder the right to submit all, or any whole number of shares that is less than all, of their
shares of Preferred Stock pursuant to an Option Conversion and (2) the Company has the right to exercise at its election a Mandatory Conversion settled in
Common Stock with the exception of the payment of cash in lieu of any fractional shares following the second anniversary of the initial issue date, if the
closing price of the stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30
consecutive trading day period. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, repurchase Preferred Stock in the open market purchases or in negotiated
transactions without delivering prior notice to holders of Preferred Stock.

The Company has classified the Preferred Stock as temporary equity as the shares have certain redemption features that are not solely in the control of
the Company. The Preferred Stock is not currently redeemable because the deemed liquidation provision is considered a substantive condition that is contingent
on the event and it is not currently probable that it will become redeemable.

Shares and Warrant Repurchase Program

On February 7, 2022, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a share and warrant repurchase program providing for repurchases
of up to $200,000 of the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock and warrants through February 3, 2024. Repurchases of shares and warrants are made
in accordance with applicable securities laws and may be made from time to time in the open market or by negotiated transactions. The amount and timing of
repurchases are based on a variety of factors, including stock price, regulatory limitations, debt agreement limitations, and other market and economic factors.
The share repurchase plan does not require the Company to repurchase any specific number of shares, and the Company may terminate the repurchase plan at
any time. Please refer to Note 12 - Warrants for more details on warrant repurchases under the program.

As of July 3, 2022, the remaining balance of the repurchase plan was $160,061. For the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, 3,430,667 shares of Class A
common stock have been repurchased for a total of $34,557.

(16) Stock Based Compensation

The Company has three stock plans: the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (“2017 Plan”), the Bowlero Corp. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2021 Plan”) and
the Bowlero Corp. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”). These stock incentive plans are designed to attract and retain key personnel by providing them the
opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company and align the interest of key personnel with those of the Company’s stockholders.

2017 Stock Incentive Plan

The 2017 Plan was approved on September 29, 2017 and is a broad-based plan that provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options to our
executives and certain other employees for up to a maximum of 16,316,506 shares (retroactively stated for application of the recapitalization). The 2017 Plan
was subsequently amended on January 7, 2020 to 50,581,181 shares (retroactively stated for application of the recapitalization). As of the Closing Date, no
additional options are available to be granted under the 2017 Plan. The 2017 Plan was administered by the Board of Directors, which approved grants to
individuals, number of options, terms, conditions, performance measures, and other provisions of the award. Awards were generally granted based on the
individual’s performance. Stock options granted under the 2017 Plan had a maximum contractual term of twelve years from the date of grant, an exercise price
not less than the fair value of the stock on the grant date and generally vested over four years in equal quarterly installments for the time-based options and
upon occurrence of a liquidity event for the performance-based options.

The Company recorded compensation cost for all performance-based and unvested time-based options of $24,516 and $138 respectively, due to the
Business Combination on December 15, 2021, since the terms of these options were such that the options vested upon the occurrence of a liquidity event. The
Business Combination was a liquidity event that triggered the vesting of these options. For the fiscal year ended June 27, 2021, we recorded compensation cost
of $3,140 in selling, general and administrative expenses and $24 in cost of revenues within the consolidated statements of operations.

The aggregate intrinsic value, which is the amount by which the market value of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price of outstanding options,
is before applicable income taxes and represents the amount option holders realized (in the case of exercised options) or would realize if all in-the-money
options had been exercised on the last business day of
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the period. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended July 3, 2022 was $70,576, and the total intrinsic value of options repurchased
during the year ended July 3, 2022 was $4,362.

A summary of the 2017 Plan stock options outstanding at July 3, 2022 and June 27, 2021, and changes during the years then ended is presented below:

Weighted
‘Weighted Average

Average Remaining

Number of Exercise Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Options Price Per Share Term Value

Outstanding at June 28, 2020 49,789,060 $ 8.53 9.00 $ —
Granted 68,513 3.25 11.00 —
Exercised - stock — — — _
Forfeited and cancelled (526,093) 3.12 — —
Outstanding at June 27, 2021 49,331,480 8.58 9.13 —
Exercised - stock (10,436,555) 3.25 — —
Repurchased - cash (639,122) — — —
Forfeited and cancelled (17,962,453) 13.53 — —
Outstanding at July 3, 2022 20,293,350 $ 7.16 948 §$ 77,948
Vested as of July 3, 2022 20,293,350 $ 7.16 948 $ 77,948
Exercisable as of July 3, 2022 20,293,350 7.16 9.48 77,948

The fair value of options at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes model with the following ranges of weighted average assumptions:

Options granted during the fiscal year ended June

27, 2021
Expected term in years 5.00
Interest rate 0.54 %
Volatility 71.5%

Dividend yield —

The expected volatility is based on historical volatilities of companies considered comparable to the Company. The risk-free interest rates are based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected life of the option. The average expected life represents
the weighted average period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding

2021 Stock Incentive Plan

The 2021 Plan was effective December 14, 2021 and provides for the grant of equity awards to an individual employed by the Company or Subsidiary, a
director or officer of the Company or Subsidiary, a consultant or advisor to the Company or an Affiliate or to a prospective employee, director, officer,
consultant or director who has accepted an offer of employment or service from the Company. Equity awards include incentive stock options, nonqualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, RSUs and other stock based awards granted under the 2021 Plan. Shares to be granted under the 2021
Plan shall be not more than 26,446,033 shares of common stock, subject to an annual increase on the first day of each calendar year beginning January 1, 2022.
As of July 3, 2022, the Company had 28,587,357 shares of common stock authorized under the 2021 plan. The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors or subcommittee thereof, administers the 2021 Plan. The Compensation Committee may delegate all or any portion of its responsibilities and powers
to any person(s) selected by it, except for grants of Awards to persons who are non-employee members of the Board or are otherwise subject to Section 16 of
the Exchange Act. Any such delegation may be revoked by the Committee at any time. The Board may at any time and from time to time grant awards and
administer the 2021 Plan with respect to such awards. In any such case, the Board shall have all the authority granted to the Compensation Committee under
the 2021 Plan. The Compensation Committee approves grants to individuals, number of options, terms, conditions, performance measures, and other provisions
of the award. Stock options granted under the 2021 Plan have a maximum contractual term of ten years from the date of grant, unless trading is prohibited by
the Company’s insider-trading policy or
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a Company-imposed blackout period, in which case the terms shall be extended automatically, and an exercise price not less than the fair value of the stock on
the grant date. The manner and timing of vesting and expiration are determined by the Compensation Committee.

During the year ended July 3, 2022, the Company recorded $3,323 in compensation cost recognized for 665,912 fully vested options and $14,228 in
compensation cost for 1,422,813 shares for a share-based bonus.

The Company issued fully vested and unvested stock options to certain employees. The unvested stock options vest based on a service condition. The
average expected life represents the weighted average period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The following table presents the
significant assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model with the following range of weighted average assumptions for options granted in fiscal 2022:

Expected term in years 6.68
Interest rate 1.39 %
Volatility 55.6 %
Dividend yield -

A summary of stock options outstanding under the 2021 Plan at July 3, 2022, and changes during the period then ended is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average

Average Remaining

Number of Exercise Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Options Price Per Share Term Value

Outstanding at June 28, 2021 — 3 — — 3 =
Granted 9,415,912 13.72 10.00 —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited and cancelled — — — —
Repurchased or settled — — — —
Outstanding at July 3, 2022 9415912 § 13.72 945 $ 2,416
Vested as of July 3, 2022 665912 § 10.00 945 § 666
Exercisable as of July 3, 2022 665,912 10.00 9.45 666

The Company issued RSUs to employees and board members that vest based on service conditions (Service based RSUs). The Company measures the
grant-date fair value based on the price of the Company's shares on the grant date. The following table presents a summary of RSUs subject to time-based
service conditions and changes during the period then ended is presented below as of July 3, 2022:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number of Grant Date Fair Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Units Value Per Share Term Value

Outstanding at June 28, 2021 — 3 — — 3 =
Granted 947,325 9.72 2.51 —
Vested — — — —
Forfeited (29,700) 9.67 — —
Outstanding at July 3, 2022 917,625 $ 9.72 2.14 § 10,094

The Company issued earnout RSUs to employees that vest upon the achievement of market conditions with a 5-year expiration date (Earnout RSUs).
The fair value of the earnout RSUs was determined based on a Monte-Carlo simulation method reflecting those market conditions, and the Company
recognizes compensation expense evenly over the 5-year
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service period. The following table presents a summary of the earnout RSUs subject to market conditions and changes during the period then ended as of
July 3, 2022:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number of Grant Date Fair Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Units Value Per Share Term Value

Outstanding at June 28, 2021 — 3 — $ —
Granted 152,370 8.16 5.00 —
Vested — — — —
Forfeited (23,034) 8.16 — —
Outstanding at July 3, 2022 129,336 $ 8.16 445 § 1,423

The Company issued RSUs to employees and board members that vest based upon the achievement of market and service conditions (market and
service based RSUs). The fair value of those RSUs was determined using a Monte-Carlo simulation method reflecting those market conditions. The following
table presents a summary those RSUs subject to market and service conditions, and changes during the period then ended as of July 3, 2022:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number of Grant Date Fair Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Units Value Per Share Term Value
Outstanding at June 28, 2021 — $ — 3 =
Granted 266,775 6.64 2.79 —
Vested — — — —
Forfeited (9,900) 6.64 — —
Outstanding at July 3, 2022 256,875 $ 6.64 245 § 2,826
As of July 3, 2022, the total compensation cost not yet recognized is as follows:
Unrecognized Weighted Average Remaining Period of
Award Plan Compensation Cost Recognition
Stock options 2021 Plan $ 37,273 2.68
Service based RSUs 2021 Plan 7,211 2.14
Market and service based RSUs 2021 Plan 1,498 2.45
Earnout RSUs 2021 Plan 939 4.45
Total unrecognized compensation cost $ 46,921 2.63
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Share-based compensation recognized in the consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022 is as follows:

Selling, general and

administrative
Award Plan expenses Cost of revenues Total
Performance-based options 2017 Plan $ 24468 $ 48 $ 24,516
Time-based options 2017 Plan 916 36 952
Stock options 2021 Plan 8,505 — 8,505
Service based RSUs 2021 Plan 1,652 59 1,711
Market and service based RSUs 2021 Plan 194 14 208
Earnout RSUs 2021 Plan 116 — 116
Share-based bonus — 14,228 — 14,228
Total share-based compensation expense $ 50,079 $ 157§ 50,236

The Company did not have any recognized income tax benefits, net of valuation allowances, related to our share-based compensation plans.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On December 14, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the ESPP, subject to stockholder approval. The ESPP became effective July 1, 2022, and
purchase rights may be granted under the ESPP prior to stockholder approval, but no purchase rights may be exercised unless and until stockholder approval is
obtained. The maximum number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock available for sale under the ESPP shall not exceed an aggregate of
4,926,989 shares, subject to an annual increase on the first day of each calendar year beginning on January 1, 2022 and ending on and including January 1,
2031, equal to the least of (i) 1% of the aggregate number of Shares outstanding on the final day of the immediately preceding calendar year, (ii) 1,753,487
Shares and (iii) such number of shares as is determined by the Board. If the aggregate funds available for purchase of the Shares would cause an issuance of
Shares in excess of the Shares then available for issuance under the ESPP, the Committee will proportionately reduce the number of Shares that would
otherwise be purchased by each participant to eliminate the excess. Under the ESPP, employees are offered the option to purchase discounted shares of Class A
common stock during offering periods designated by the administrator. Each offering period will be one year commencing each January 1 and ending on
December 31 with the exception of the initial offering period, which commenced on July 1, 2022 and will end on December 31, 2022. Shares are purchased on
the applicable exercise dates, which is the last trading day of each purchase period. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the
grant date fair values of ESPP awards.

(17) Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share calculations for all periods prior to the Closing Date have been retrospectively adjusted for the equivalent number of shares
outstanding immediately after the Closing Date to effect the reverse recapitalization. The computation of basic and diluted net loss per Class A and B common
share is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 3, 2022 June 27, 2021
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total

Numerator

Net loss allocated to common stockholders $ (32,198) § (7,969) $ (40,167) (134,476) $ — $ (134,476)
Denominator

Weighted-average shares outstanding 124,920,063 30,917,091 155,837,154 146,848,329 — 146,848,329
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.26) $ (0.26) $ 0.26) $ 0.92) $ — 3 (0.92)
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The impact of potentially dilutive RSUs, PSUs, stock options, earnouts, and purchases of shares under our ESPP were excluded from the diluted per share
calculations because they would have been antidilutive.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our reports filed pursuant to the Exchange Act is properly and timely reported and communicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management recognizes that any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In
addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply
judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.

An effective internal control system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error and circumvention
or overriding of controls and therefore can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to reliable financial reporting. Furthermore, effectiveness of an
internal control system in future periods cannot be guaranteed because the design of any system of internal controls is based in part upon assumptions about the
likelihood of future events. There can be no assurance that any control design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
Over time certain controls may become inadequate because of changes in business conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may
deteriorate. As such, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. We have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of July 3, 2022 with the participation, and under the supervision, of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer. Based upon this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of July 3, 2022, our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective because of the material weaknesses described below in Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Notwithstanding these material weaknesses, the Company has concluded that the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report are
fairly stated in all material respects in accordance with GAAP

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the most recently completed quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, except as noted in this paragraph regarding material weaknesses. We did
not design and maintain effective controls over certain financial reporting processes, including acquisition accounting, accounting for fixed assets, and certain
financial reporting disclosures. Additionally, we did not design and maintain effective controls over system access controls to establish segregation of duties for
those with roles and responsibilities for the general ledger. We continue to develop and implement a plan to remediate the material weaknesses described
above, which will include additional training of existing staff, hiring additional staff with technical accounting skills and engaging third-party experts to assist
in accounting for acquisitions and technical areas, as well as the development of more formal internal control processes and improving information technology
controls over system access.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting due to a
transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies.

Under the rules and regulations of the SEC, the Company is not required to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 until the Company files its Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ending July 2, 2023.

Attestation report of the registered public accounting firm

Our independent registered public accounting firm is not required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for as long
as we are an “emerging growth company” pursuant to the provisions of the JOBS Act.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspection

Not applicable.
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Part 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement, expected to be filed within 120 days of our fiscal
year end.

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics, which is applicable to all directors, officers and employees, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer. Our Code of Conduct and Business Ethics is posted on our Investor Relations website at https://ir.bowlerocorp.com/ on the
Governance page of the website. To the extent required by SEC rules, we intend to disclose any amendments to our code of conduct and ethics, and any waiver
of a provision of the code with respect to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons
performing similar functions, on our web site referred to above within four business days following any such amendment or waiver, or within any other period
that may be required under SEC rules from time to time.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement, expected to be filed within 120 days of our fiscal
year end.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owner and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement, expected to be filed within 120 days of our fiscal
year end.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement, expected to be filed within 120 days of our fiscal
year end.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement, expected to be filed within 120 days of our fiscal
year end.
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Part 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

See index to consolidated financial statements on page 39.

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable or not required or the required information is shown in the consolidated
financial statements or Notes thereto under “Part Il — Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Exhibits Required by Item 601 of SEC Regulation S-K

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Business Combination Agreement dated as of July 1, 2021, by and between Isos Acquisition Corporation and Bowlero Corp. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).*

2.2 Amendment to Business Combination Agreement dated as of November 1, 2021, by and between Isos Acquisition Corporation and Bowlero
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
November 1, 2021).*

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Bowlero Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Bowlero Corp’s
registration statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on December 15, 2021). (File No. 001-40142).

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Bowlero Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form §-K
filed with the SEC on December 21, 2021).

33 Certificate of Designations of Series A convertible preferred stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Bowlero Corp’s registration
statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on December 15, 2021). (File No. 001-40142).

4.1 Specimen Class A common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Amendment No. 2 to Isos Acquisition
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on October 15, 2021). (File No. 333-258080).

4.2 Specimen Class B common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Amendment No. 2 to Isos Acquisition
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on October 15, 2021). (File No. 333-258080).

4.3 Form of Stockholder Support Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

4.4 Form of Sponsor Support Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

4.5 Form of Lockup Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

4.6 Stockholders Agreement, by and among Isos Acquisition Corporation, A-B Parent, LLC, Cobalt Recreation LLC, Thomas F. Shannon and
Atairos Group, Inc., dated as of July 1, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on July 22, 2021). (File No. 333-258080).

4.7+ Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

10.1 Letter Agreement, dated March 2, 2021, by and among_Isos Acquisition Corporation its officers, directors, and Isos Acquisition Sponsor LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 5,
2021).

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Bowlero Corp.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on December 21, 2021).

10.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 2, 2021, by and among Isos Acquisition Corporation and certain security holders (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2021).

10.4 Form of Common Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).
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Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).
Amended and Restated Forward Purchase Contract dated as of July 1, 2021, by and among Isos Acquisition Corporation and the subscribers

November 15, 2021). (File No. 333-258080).

First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2017, among A-B Merger Sub II LLC (to be merged with and into Kingpin Intermediate
Holdings LLC), A-B Merger Sub I Inc. (to be merged with and into Bowlmor AMF Corp.), the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase

with the SEC on September 20, 2021). (File No. 333-258080).
Second Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of July 5, 2018, among Kingpin Intermediate Holdings LLC, Bowlero

Amendment No. 1 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on September 20, 2021). (File
No. 333-258080).

Third Incremental Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of November 20, 2019, among Kingpin Intermediate Holdings

Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to Isos Acquisition Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on September
20,2021). (File No. 333-258080).

Fourth Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2020, among Kingpin Intermediate Holdings LLC, Bowlero
Corp., the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to

No. 333-258080).

Fifth Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2020, among Kingpin Intermediate Holdings L.I.C, Bowlero
Corp., the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to

No. 333-258080).
Sixth Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2017, by and among Bowlero Corp., Kingpin Intermediate

Holdings LLC, as the borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, and the lenders from time to time party thereto,
dated December 15, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

December 21, 2021).

Seventh Amendment to the First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2017, by and among Bowlero Corp., Kingpin Intermediate
Holdings LLC, as the borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, and the lenders from time to time party thereto

December 21, 2021).

First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2020, among Kingpin Intermediate Holdings LLC, Bowlero Corp., the lenders party
thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Amendment No. 1 to Isos

filed with the SEC on December 21, 2021).
Employment Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2021, by and between Bowlero Corp. and Thomas F. Shannon (incorporated by reference
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Exhibit No. Description

10.20% Employment Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2021, by and between Bowlero Corp. and Brett I. Parker (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.20 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2021).

10.21¢ Form of Option Award Agreement (Initial Option)_for Thomas F. Shannon and Brett I. Parker under the Bowlero Corp. 2021 Omnibus
IZIice;(;iZVle) Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December

10.22% Form of Option Award Agreement (Reallocated Option)_for Thomas F. Shannon and Brett I. Parker under the Bowlero Corp. 2021 Omnibus
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December
21,2021).

16.1 Response Letter from Marcum, LLP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to Bowlero Corp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 21, 2021).

21.1+ Subsidiaries of Bowlero Corp.

23.1+ Consent of KPMG LLP.

31.1+ Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)_or Rule 15d-14(a).

31.2+ Certification of the Principal Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32.1+ Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. 1350.

32.2+ Certification of the Principal Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b)_or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. 1350.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline i XBRL document).

* Certain of the exhibits and schedules to this Exhibit 2.1 and 2.2 have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Company hereby

undertakes to furnish copies of any of the omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon its request.
T Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

+ Filed herewith.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BOWLERO CORP.
Date:  September 15,2022 By: /s/ Thomas F. Shannon
Name: Thomas F. Shannon
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Thomas F. Shannon Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director September 15, 2022
Thomas F. Shannon (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Brett 1. Parker President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and Director September 15, 2022
Brett I. Parker (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Jeffrey Kostelni Chief Accounting Officer September 15, 2022
Jeffrey Kostelni (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Michael J. Angelakis Director September 15, 2022
Michael J. Angelakis

/s/ George Barrios Director September 15, 2022
George Barrios

/s/ Robert J. Bass Director September 15, 2022
Robert J. Bass

/s/ Sandeep Mathrani Director September 15, 2022
Sandeep Mathrani

/s/ Rachael A. Wagner Director September 15, 2022
Rachael A. Wagner

/s/ Michelle Wilson Director September 15, 2022
Michelle Wilson

/s/ John A. Young Director September 15, 2022

John A. Young
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Exhibit 4.7

DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

In this document, the “Company,” “Bowlero,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Bowlero Corp., a Delaware corporation. The
following description of our capital stock summarizes certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
(the “certificate of incorporation”) and our amended and restated bylaws (the “bylaws”). The description is intended as a summary,
and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws, copies of which have been filed as
exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of 2,400,000,000 shares of all classes of Bowlero’s capital stock,
consisting of:

. 2,000,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Class A Common Stock™);

. 200,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Class B Common Stock™); and

. 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock (the “Preferred Stock™), par value $0.0001 per share.

As of September 6, 2022, there were 110,122,265 issued and outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock, 55,911,203 issued
and outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock (collectively, “Bowlero common stock™), and 200,000 issued and outstanding
shares of Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

We have two classes of authorized common stock: Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Generally, Class B
Common Stock can only be issued to, transferred to, and held by Thomas F. Shannon and Cobalt Recreation LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“TS”), or trusts or legal entities through which the right to vote the shares of Class B Common Stock held
thereby is exercised exclusively by Thomas F. Shannon or TS (Thomas F. Shannon, TS and any trust or legal entity, an “Eligible
Holder”). Each outstanding share of Class B Common Stock will automatically convert into one share of Class A Common Stock
upon the earliest to occur of: (i) Mr. Shannon ceasing to beneficially own at least 10% of Bowlero common stock, (ii) death or
disability of Mr. Shannon, (iii) Mr. Shannon being terminated for cause as the Chief Executive Officer and (iv) the 15" anniversary
of the issuance of Class B Common Stock.

Voting Rights

Class A Common Stock

Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one (1) vote for each share of Class A Common Stock held of record by such
holder on all matters voted upon by stockholders.

Class B Common Stock

Holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes for each share of Class B Common Stock held of record by
such holder on all matters voted upon by stockholders.
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Stockholder Votes

Holders of Bowlero common stock generally vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of Bowlero’s
stockholders (including the election and removal of directors), unless otherwise provided in Bowlero’s certificate of incorporation or
required by applicable law. Any action or matter submitted to a vote of Bowlero’s stockholders will be approved if the number of
votes cast in favor of the action or matter exceeds the number of votes cast in opposition to the action or matter, except that
Bowlero’s directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast. Holders of Class A Common Stock are not be entitled to cumulate
their votes in the election of Bowlero’s directors.

Delaware law could require holders of a class of Bowlero’s capital stock to vote separately as a class on any proposed
amendment of Bowlero’s certificate of corporation if the amendment would increase or decrease the par value of the shares of that
class or would alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the shares of that class in a manner that affects them
adversely.

Stockholder Action by Written Consent

The certificate of incorporation prohibits stockholders to act by written consent if Class B Common Stock represents less than
50% of the voting power of Bowlero’s outstanding capital stock entitled to vote in the election of directors at an annual meeting of
stockholders. In such circumstances, any action required or permitted to be taken by Bowlero’s stockholders must be effected at a
duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders and may not be taken or effected by written consent.

Special Meetings of Stockholders

The certificate of incorporation provides that, except as otherwise required by applicable law, special meetings of Bowlero’s
stockholders may be called only by our board of directors, the Chairperson of our board of directors, Bowlero’s Chief Executive
Officer or President, or, at any time that Class B Common Stock represents at least 50% of the voting power of Bowlero’s
outstanding capital stock entitled to vote in the election of directors at an annual meeting of stockholders, the holders of shares
representing a majority of the voting power of all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Bowlero.

Economic Rights

Except as otherwise expressly provided in Bowlero’s certificate of incorporation or required by applicable law, shares of each
class of Bowlero common stock has the same rights, powers and preferences and rank equally, share ratably and be identical in all
respects as to all matters, including the following:

Dividends and Distributions, Rights upon Liquidation

Subject to the rights of holders of any outstanding series of Preferred Stock, the holders of shares of each class of Bowlero
common stock are entitled to receive ratably, on a per share basis, any dividend or distribution (including upon the liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of Bowlero) paid by Bowlero, except that, if a dividend or distribution is paid in the form of shares (or
options, warrants or other rights to acquire shares) of Bowlero common stock, then holders of Class A Common Stock will receive
shares (or options, warrants or other rights to acquire shares) of Class A Common Stock and holders of Class B Common Stock will
receive shares (or options, warrants or other rights to acquire shares) of Class B Common Stock.

Subdivisions, Combinations and Reclassifications



If Bowlero subdivides or combines any class of Bowlero common stock with any other class of Bowlero common stock, subject
to the rights of holders of any outstanding series of Preferred Stock, then each class of Bowlero common stock must be subdivided
or combined in the same proportion and manner.

Conversion

Optional Conversion

Holders of Class B Common Stock will have the right to convert shares of their Class B Common Stock into fully paid and
non-assessable shares of Class A Common Stock, on a one-to-one basis, at the option of the holder at any time.

Automatic Conversion

Generally, shares of Class B Common Stock will convert automatically into Class A Common Stock upon (i) Thomas
F. Shannon ceasing to beneficially own, at least 10% of the number of shares of Bowlero common stock outstanding at such time;
(ii) the death or disability of Thomas F. Shannon; (iii) the employment of Thomas F. Shannon as the Chief Executive of Bowlero
being terminated for cause; and (iv) the 15" anniversary of the effective time of the Business Combination.

Conversion Policies and Procedures

Bowlero may establish from time to time certain restrictions, policies and procedures relating to the general administration of
its multi-class structure and the conversion of Class B Common Stock to Class A Common Stock.

Registration Rights

Certain stockholders are party to a Registration Rights Agreement with Bowlero, dated as of March 2, 2021 (the “Registration
Rights Agreement”) that grants such stockholders the right to require, subject to certain conditions and limitations, that Bowlero
register for resale securities held by such stockholders and certain “piggyback” registration rights with respect to registrations
initiated by Bowlero. Certain PIPE investors also hold registration rights pursuant to PIPE subscription agreements. On January 31,
2022 Bowlero’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 was declared effective, pursuant to which the stockholders who are party to the
Registration Rights Agreement may resell such shares of Class A Common Stock without restriction under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended.

Other Rights

Bowlero’s certificate of incorporation and the bylaws do not provide for any preemptive or subscription rights with respect to
Bowlero common stock, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to Bowlero common stock. All the shares
of Bowlero common stock outstanding as of September 6, 2022 have been validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

Preferred Stock

Bowlero’s certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, to
issue up to an aggregate of 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series from time to time by resolution, without
further action by Bowlero’s stockholders, and to fix the powers (which may include full, limited or no voting power), designations,
preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, if any, of the shares of each such series (which rights may be
greater than the rights of any or all of the classes



of Bowlero common stock) and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereto. The issuance of additional shares of Preferred
Stock could adversely affect the voting power of holders of our Class A Common Stock and the likelihood that such holders will
receive dividend payments or payments upon liquidation. In addition, the issuance of Preferred Stock could have the effect of
delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control or other corporate action.

As of September 6, 2022, 200,000 shares of Preferred Stock have been issued and are outstanding.

Dividends

Holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, out of funds legally
available for such dividends, cumulative cash dividends at an annual rate of 5.5% on the stated amount per share plus the amount of
any accrued and unpaid dividends on such share, accumulating on a daily basis and payable semi-annually on June 30 and
December 31, respectively, in each year. Such a dividend will accumulate, whether or not declared. Any dividends not paid in cash
will be added to the liquidation value of the Preferred Stock.

Holders of the Preferred Stock are also entitled to such dividends paid to holders of Bowlero common stock to the same extent
as if such holders of Preferred Stock had converted their shares of Preferred Stock into Bowlero common stock (without regard to
any limitations on conversions) and had held such shares of Bowlero common stock on the record date for such dividends and
distributions. Such payments will be made concurrently with the dividend or distribution to the holders of the Bowlero common
stock.

Holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together as a single class with the holders of Bowlero common stock, with
each such holder entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the number of votes such holder would have been entitled to cast if
such holder were the holder of a number of shares of Bowlero common stock equal to the whole number of shares of Bowlero
common stock that would be issuable upon conversion of such holder’s shares of Preferred Stock.

So long as any shares of Preferred Stock are outstanding, a vote or the consent of at least two holders not affiliated with each
other, representing a majority of the Preferred Stock will be required for (i) effecting or validating any amendment, modification or
alteration to the certificate of incorporation that would authorize or create, or increase the authorized amount of, any shares of any
class or series or any securities convertible into shares of any class or series of capital stock that would rank senior or pari passu to
the Preferred Stock with respect to dividend payments or upon the occurrence of a liquidation, (ii) effecting or validating any
amendment, alteration or repeal or change to the rights, preferences, or privileges of the Preferred Stock, (iii) effecting or validating
any amendment, alteration or repeal of any provision of the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws that would have an adverse
effect on the rights, preferences, privileges or voting power of Preferred Stock or the holders thereof in any material respect, or
(iv) any action or inaction that would constitute a Fundamental Change (as defined in the Certificate of Designations filed with the
Secretary of State of the Delaware on December 15, 2021, as amended (the “Certificate of Designations™)), with certain exceptions.

Liquidation

Upon liquidation, Preferred Stock will rank senior to the Bowlero common stock, and will have the right to be paid, out of the
assets of the Company legally available for distribution to its stockholders, an amount equal to the Liquidation Preference (as
defined in the Certificate of Designations) per share of Preferred Stock.

Other Rights



Bowlero will have a right to effect a mandatory conversion of Preferred Stock after the second anniversary of the issuance date
if the last reported price per share of the Bowlero common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price on each of at least 20 trading
days during a 30-day consecutive trading days period.



Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF BOWLERO CORP.

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization

AMF Bowling Centers, Inc.

Virginia

Not included above are other subsidiaries which, if considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, would not constitute a significant subsidiary, as such term

is defined by Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X



Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement (No. 333-263146) on Form S-8 of our report dated September 15,
2022, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Bowlero Corp.
/sl KPMG LLP

Richmond, Virginia
September 15, 2022



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Thomas F. Shannon, certify that:
1.1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowlero Corp.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: September 15, 2022 /s/ Thomas F. Shannon

Thomas F. Shannon

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
Bowlero Corp.



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Brett 1. Parker, certify that:
1.1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowlero Corp.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: September 15, 2022 /s/ Brett 1. Parker
Brett 1. Parker
Chief Financial Officer
Bowlero Corp.




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowlero Corp. (the “Company”) for the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, as filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Thomas F. Shannon, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: September 15, 2022 /s/ Thomas F. Shannon

Thomas F. Shannon

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
Bowlero Corp.

The foregoing certification is being furnished as an exhibit to the Report pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K and Section 1350 of Title 18 of the
United States Code and, accordingly, is not being filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the Report and is not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (whether made before or after the date of
the Report, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing).



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowlero Corp. (the “Company”) for the fiscal year ended July 3, 2022, as filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Brett I. Parker, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certitfy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: September 15, 2022 /s/ Brett 1. Parker
Brett 1. Parker
Chief Financial Officer
Bowlero Corp.

The foregoing certification is being furnished as an exhibit to the Report pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K and Section 1350 of Title 18 of the
United States Code and, accordingly, is not being filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the Report and is not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (whether made before or after the date of
the Report, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing).



